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” BRAC BANK

BRAC Bank Limited (hereinafter referred as the “Bank” or the “Issuer”) has prepared this
Information Memorandum in connection with the proposed transaction outlined in it (the
“Transaction”) and the bonds proposed to be issued in the Transaction (the “Bonds”) and
the Issuer is solely responsible for its contents. The Issuer will comply with all laws, rules
and regulations and will obtain all regulatory, governmental and corporate approvals for the
issuance of the Bonds. All the information contained in this Information Memorandum has
been provided by the Issuer or is from publicly available information. While all reasonable
care has been taken by the Issuer in preparing this Information Memorandum, no
representation or warranty, expressed or implied, is or will be made, and no responsibility
or liability is or will be accepted, by the Issuer or its affiliates for the accuracy,
completeness, reliability, correctness or fairness of this Information Memorandum or any of
the information or opinions contained therein, and the Issuer hereby expressly disclaim, to
the fullest extent permitted by law, any responsibility for the contents of this Information
Memorandum and any liability, whether arising in tort or contract or otherwise, relating to
or resulting from this Information Memorandum or any information or errors contained
therein or any omissions therefore. By accepting this Information Memorandum, you agree
that the Issuer will not have any such liability.

The Issuer has authorized BRAC EPL Investments Limited (the “Arranger”) to distribute this
Information Memorandum, subject to obtaining the necessary regulatory approval from
Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission (“BSEC”). While all reasonable care has been
taken by the Arranger in reviewing this Information Memorandum, no representation or
warranty, expressed or implied, is or will be made, and no responsibility or liability is or
will be accepted, by the Arranger or its affiliates for the accuracy, completeness, reliability,
correctness or fairness of this Information Memorandum.

Nothing in this Information Memorandum constitutes an offer of securities for sale in
Bangladesh or any other jurisdiction where such offer or placement will be in violation of
any law, rule or regulation.

Investing in the Bonds involves risks. You as Investor should carefully consider the risk factors
mentioned in this Information Memorandum before investing in the Bonds. You should also
carefully consider the representation and warranties to be provided by the Investors before
investing in the Bonds. However, you are not to construe the contents of this Information
Memorandum as investment, legal, accounting, regulatory or tax advice. You should consult
with your own advisors as to all legal, accounting, regulatory, tax, financial and related
matters, concerning any investment in the Bonds.
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Issuer's Contact (BRAC Bank Limited)
Mohammad Mahbubur Rahman, FCS
Company Secretary

Phone: +88 02 988 4292, 885 9202

Ext: 52038

Mobile: +8801713060835

Email: mahbubur.rahman@bracbank.com

Md. Mahbub Hossain

Head of Asset-Liability Management
Phone: +88 02 988 4292, 885 9202
Ext: 52414

' Mobile: +8801730077561

| Email: mdmahbub.hossain@bracbank.com
Trustee's Contact (UCB Investment Limited) |
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Managing Director & CEO

Contact: +88-02-55668070

Ext: 800060

Email: tanzim.alamgir@ucbil.com.bd
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Head of Corporate Advisory

Phone: (+880 2) 222292417

Mobile: +880 17556317 24
E-mail: anup.datta@bracepl.com

Shah Rakib Khan, CFA

| Senior Assistant Vice President

[ Investment Banking
Phone: (+880 2) 222292417
Mobile: +880 1730 3243 76
E-mail: rakib.khan@bracepl.com
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Arranger’s Contact (BRAC EPL Investments Limited)
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Analyst

Investment Banking
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Mobile: +880 17556317 32
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% BRAC BANK
REPORT TO THE ELIGIBLE INVESTORS

By investing in the Bonds, you are hereby deemed to have acknowledged, represented and
warranted to, and agree (as the case may be), as set out below:

High Risk: You are fully aware of that any investment in the Bonds involves a high degree of
risk.

Consultation with Advisers: You have,

(i) consulted with your own legal, regulatory, tax, business, investment, financialand
accounting advisers in connection herewith to the extent you have deemed
necessary,

(i1) collected and reviewed all information that you or your advisers believe is
necessary or appropriate in connection with the purchase of the Bonds, and

(i)  made your own investment decisions based upon your own judgment, due
diligence and advice from such advisers as you have deemed necessary and not
upon any view expressed by or on behalf of the Issuer.

No Reliance: You acknowledge and agree that you may not rely on any investigation that the
Issuer or any of its affiliates or any person or entity acting on their behalf may have conducted
with respect to the Company or any of their affiliates, and none of the Issuer or its affiliates,
employees, officers, directors, legal advisers or representatives has made any representation
to you, express or implied, with respect to your investment in the Bonds.

Informed Decision: You are in possession of all the information that you believe is necessary
or appropriate in order to make an informed decision regarding your purchase of the Bonds,
includingwithout limitation adequate information concerning the Issuer’s business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.

Knowledge and Experience: You have such knowledge and experience in financial, business
and international investment matters that you are capable of evaluating the merits and risks
of purchasing the Bonds and are aware that you may be required to bear, and are able to bear,
all risk including economic risk of an investment in the Bonds.

Information of the Company: You acknowledge that the information provided to you with
regard to the Issuer and the Bonds in this Information Memorandum, has been supplied to
you by the Arranger and that none of the Arranger or any of its affiliates, employees, officers,
directors, legal advisers or representatives has verified such information or makes any
representation or warranty as to its accuracy or completeness.

Review of Information Memorandum: You have reviewed this Information Memorandum in
its entirety, including the risks specifically outlined in the section titled “Risk Factors”, and
you understand and acknowledge all of the risks described therein. Based on all of the above,
you have determined that:

the Bonds are a suitable investment for you and your investment in the Bonds does not and
will not, when consummated, violate any investment or other guidelines, policies or
restrictions (corporate or otherwise), or any law, rule, regflation or order applicable to you;
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2 BRACBANK

bear the economic risk of the investment and are able to sustain a complete loss in
connection with your investment. Additionally, you confirm that you have no need for
liquidity in respect of the Bonds.

Own Account: You are purchasing the Bonds for your own account, including fund account
and portfolio manager account and not with a view to any distribution thereof.

No Representation or Warranty: The Arranger has not made, and you have not relied upon
any representation, warranty or condition (express and/or implied), and the Arranger shall
not owe any duty whatsoever to you in connection with the Bonds.

No Obligation to Purchase: The Arranger shall have no obligation to purchase or acquire all
or any part of the Bonds purchased by you or to support losses, if any, directly or indirectly
sustained or incurred by you for any reason whatsoever in connection with the Bonds,
including the non-performance by the issuance, whether to you or otherwise.
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1. MANAGEMENT'S PERCEPTION & ANALYSIS ON RISK

FACTORS

1.01 Interest Rate Risk

The banking book comprises assets and liabilities primarily acquired through relationships
or for stable income and legal obligations, generally held until maturity or payment by the
counterparty. The primary emphasis in the banking book is on earnings or variations in
economic value. Interest rate risk refers to the potential decline in a bank's financial position
due to changes in interest rates over time. This risk arises from the core banking activities of
a bank.

Management's Perception

BRAC Bank Limited effectively manages its Interest Rate Risk through various strategies.
These include conducting Market Trend Analysis, Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis, and GAP
Analysis. The bank's Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) regularly evaluates the
interest rate risk associated with its banking book, while the Asset Liability Management
(ALM) Unit is responsible for measuring and monitoring this risk. ALM analyzes interest rate
sensitivity by calculating the GAP, which represents the difference between Rate Sensitive
Assets and Rate Sensitive Liabilities. Based on this analysis, necessary adjustments are made
considering market dynamics and predictable events that may impact the money market.
BRAC Bank also considers interest rate risk when pricing its products and offers floating or
variable rate products to better manage this risk.

1.02 Exchange Rate Risk

Exchange Rate Risk pertains to the possibility of fluctuations in earnings caused by changes
in exchange rates, unfavorable currency holdings or positions, and market volatility. If the
local currency strengthens against major foreign currencies and the bank possesses a
substantial net long position in those currencies, it may suffer financial losses. Likewise, if
the local currency weakens against major foreign currencies while the bank maintains a net
short position in those currencies, it may also face potential losses.

Management’s Perception

BRAC Bank effectively handles exchange rate risk through the following measures:

(i) It establishes specific limits on open foreign exchange positions.
(i1) It continuously monitors the open position against these limits.
(i) It implements and monitors a stop loss mechanism.

By keeping foreign exchange risks at minimum levels, BRAC Bank ensures the smooth
execution of foreign trade and remittance transactions on behalf of its customers. Regular
reconciliations are performed for all NOSTRO accounts, and any outstanding entries are
promptly escalated to the relevant departments and reporfed to higher management for
immediate settlement. The Treasury Department holds the/responsibility of measuring and
mjnimizing the bank's foxei

M an FCS .
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PIBRAC BANK

price movements of foreign exchange and employ various hedging techniques to manage the
bank's open position, minimizing risk and maximizing returns.

1.03 Non-Repayment Risk (Credit Risk)

Non-repayment risk refers to the risk that a borrower or counterparty may fail to fulfill their
obligations as per the agreed terms. While BRAC Bank maintains a strong track record of
repaying all its obligations to depositors and lenders, there is a remote possibility that the
bank might be unable to repay its obligations related to issued bonds under extreme
circumstances. If a default occurs, investors could experience financial losses.

Management's Perception

BBL functions within the framework of stringent regulations and rigorous oversight by
Bangladesh Bank. Additionally, it is highly improbable for a reputable institution like BRAC
Bank Limited to jeopardize its standing by defaulting on its obligations. Moreover, in the
event of any default or non-repayment, the Trustee will provide a notice period to the Issuer
to safequard against an Event of Default and proceed with necessary actions to protect the
investors' interests.

1.04 Prepayment, Call or Refunding Risk

Prepayment, call or refunding risks are the risks associated with the early repayment of the
principal amount of a bond. Such risks exist in a bond that has prepayment or call option.

Management's Perception
The bond does not have voluntary prepayment option hence, the risk does not prevail.
1.05 Security Risk

Security refers to the designated revenue sources or assets that an issuer pledges to
bondholders as a means of ensuring repayment of the bond. Consequently, security risk
revolves around the bondholder's ability to recover their investment through the utilization
of the collateral securities in the event that the issuer is unable to repay the full value of the
bond(s).

Management's Perception

BRAC Bank issues unsecured subordinated bonds, which means that specific revenue sources
or assets are not being pledged as collateral for the bond issuance. Nevertheless, investors
will have the right to repayment from the bank's cash flow. However, it's important to note
that subordinated bondholders have a lower priority compared to other loans or securities
when it comes to claiming agsets or earnings.

=

w P

: Tanzim Alamgir
ECRA e oA ; : & CEO
Hana ! SELIM . ’M' aqing Director x A
Masud cinancial Office Managing Pirecihr and BEQ Moneg sstment Limited
Corgpany Secretary OMD & Chief Find . iy é i UGB Inv
; k Limited K Limite RRAC B
BRAC Ban BRAC B2l Page | 9

Strictly Private & Confidential
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1.06 Liquidity Risk

The Bank faces liquidity risks that can impact its capacity to fulfill its financial commitments.
To ensure the Bank's ongoing ability to meet funding obligations and sustain or expand its
operations, it relies on customer savings/deposits and continuous access to wholesale
lending markets. However, the Bank's ability to access favorable funding sources is
contingent upon several factors, including some beyond its control, such as overall market
conditions and the level of confidence in the banking system.

Management’s Perception

BRAC Bank's management possesses a keen understanding of the challenges associated with
liquidity limitations and demonstrates competence in managing such risks through the
implementation of contemporary Asset Liability Management (ALM) techniques. The ALCO
consistently oversees the bank's overall liquidity position and takes proactive measures to
adjust policies as necessary. As a result, the likelihood of bondholders experiencing
significant losses due to liquidity risk is highly improbable.

1.07 Management Risk

Management risk encompasses the possibility that company managers may prioritize their
personal interests over the welfare of the company and its shareholders. This term signifies
the risk associated with situations where choices made by management result in the
company or other stakeholders being worse off compared to alternative decisions. In such
instances, bondholders may face financial losses.

Management's Perception

BRAC Bank is led by a team of skilled professionals who possess extensive experience and a
reputable standing within the financial industry of the country. As a result, the likelihood of
the management behaving in an unprofessional manner is extremely low. Additionally, the
bank's management is under constant supervision from a board of directors, comprised of
seasoned professionals and entrepreneurs, who diligently work to safeguard the interests of
all stakeholders. Furthermore, operating within the tightly regulated banking industry
provides an additional safeguard against this risk, as Bangladesh Bank monitors the
management to ensure adherence to best practices in the industry.

1.08 Operational Risk

Operational risks refer to the likelihood of incurring losses from inadequate or ineffective
internal procedures, personnel, systems, or external events. Acquiring loss from numerous
variables such as human error, system flaws, fraud payment processing, clearing and
settlement, accounting and financial reporting, information technology, compliance or
external incidents like natural disasters or unstable political conditions is the outcome of
Operational risk. It can also arise from legal risks, such as those arising from breaches of
contracts or regulations. 0qnsequences of operationa risks can be significant, including
financial losses, damage to thgbank's reputation, regufatory sanctions and even bankruptcy

=J. T .-
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Management's Perception

BBL operational risk management framework includes policies, procedures, limits and
controls in its foundation. This foundation provides adequate, timely, and continuous
identification, assessment, measurement, monitoring, mitigation, reporting & assurance of
risks posed by its activities at the business line and bank-wide levels. At BBL we have
dedicated desk within the Risk Management unit.

1.09 Business Risk

Business risk pertains to the potential for a bank to generate lower profits than expected or
incur losses instead of profits. The issuer's business risk can arise from various factors, such
as interest spreads, non-interest income, operating expenses, volatility in the money and
capital markets, competition, government regulations, and the overall economic climate.
Similar to other companies, BRAC Bank is also exposed to these business risk factors.

Management's Perception

The Bank diligently assesses the risks associated with its clients using contemporary risk
evaluation techniques, enabling it to maintain a favorable asset quality in the past and
anticipate the same in the future. Additionally, the Bank acknowledges that there may be
systematic (market) risks originating from the external environment, which is a common
occurrence for banks as well.

1.10 Industry Risk

The issuer operates within a market characterized by intense competition, as the modern
banking industry has introduced greater business diversification. Banks in developed
economies have expanded their operations to include investments, underwriting of
securities, and portfolio management. The entry of new competitors into the market has the
potential to impact the competitive landscape and potentially reduce the bank's profitability.

Management’s Perception

BBL, as a strongly expanding third-generation private commercial bank, has established an
admirable presence in the banking sector of Bangladesh. The Bank consistently exercises
caution in providing its products and services with competitive terms and conditions, which
effectively manages its exposure to industry risks. The management also emphasizes the
ongoing diversification of the loan portfolio. Nonetheless, similar to other banks operating
in Bangladesh, industry risk remains a significant factor of concern for BBL.

1.11 Market & Technology Related Risk

Market risk is the possibility that alterations in market circumstances will have a negative
impact on the values of assets, obligations, or income. It may have an impact on both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions due to interght rate movement, exchange rate
fluctuation, spread variatiop and changes in equity vajuation. Both trading books and
banking books are expdgsed toparket risk.
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The modern banking industry is highly competitive and one of the fastest growing sectors in
Bangladesh. To cope with the modern economy, the banking industry has become more
technology dependent. With the increasing reliance on technology, the risks associated with
its usage are also escalating. Cyber-attacks, system failures, unauthorized access or
transfers, and system hacking are the consequences of the rising dependence on technology
in banking operations.

Management's Perception

This risk isinherent in the financial industry. BBL practices regular market condition analysis,
uses VaR (value at risk) to measure potential market risk, uses stress testing to assess the
sensitivity of the bank’s capital in different situations, and presents the prevailing market
condition to the BRMC (Board Risk Management Committee), ALCO (Asset & Liability
Management Committee), ERMC (Executive Risk Management Committee) and other related
stakeholders. Based on the market condition, the board and management realign the bank’s
strategy to cope with the market condition. Risk tolerance limits, MAT (management action
trigger) and stop loss limits are also in place to manage adverse situations.

Technological advancements have played a crucial role in achieving the bank's diverse
strategies. However, the risk of business interruption and disaster is still prevalent and has
evolved alongside technology. Recognizing this, BRAC Bank has prioritized its business
continuity plan (BCP) as a significant challenge. The aim is to prevent, if possible, and
effectively manage the consequences of a disaster within the limits of the business's
capabilities.

In addition to BCP, the bank is actively addressing security threats. Following a centralized
management model, each branch within the bank has its own ICT systems. Various measures
have been implemented, including software updates, analysis of new software,
strengthening ICT-related controls, providing system knowledge training to staff, and
promoting the sharing of best practices among branch users. These actions collectively
enhance the bank's overall security posture and resilience.

1.12 Risk Related to Potential or Existing Government Regulations

BBL abides by guidelines issued by Bangladesh Bank, the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission and other regulatory authorities. Also operates under the Companies
Act, 1994, the Bank Companies Act-1991, Income Tax Ordinance, 1984, Income Tax Rules,
1984, Value Added Tax (VAT) Act, 1991, Value Added Tax (VAT) Rules, 1991, Customs Act,
1969, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and other related regulations. The
company also obtained a license from Bangladesh Bank as a bank under the Bank Companies
Act, 1991. Any noncompliance with the regulatory regime may have an adverse impact on the
reputation of the Bank. Moreover, sudden changes in the guidelines and regulations may
affect BBL's business position.

Management's Perception

The bank's business is anticipated to be unaffected unless a policy is altered that could
considerably and adversely affect the banking indugtry as a whole. After maintaining the
required Statutory Liquiditi\Ratio (SLR) from their ddposit, BBL has funded their assets, with
which the bank has tdcomphy consistently. It is quite impgrobable that the government or
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central bank will implement any fiscal measures that would have a negative impact on the
industry's expansion.

1.13 Risk Related to Potential Changes in Global or National Policies

Changes in existing global or national policies can have either positive or negative impact for
the Issuer. The performance of the Issuer will be hindered due to unavoidable circumstances
such as political turmoil either in Bangladesh or foreign countries or both.

Management's Perception

A significant change in the global or national policies in the future, particularly in the
financial sector, could affect businesses and overall economic condition of Bangladesh. Such
developments may also affect the bank's business, prospects, results of operations and
financial condition. The management of BBL transcribes the prevailing and upcoming future
changes in the global or national policy; and responds appropriately for timely management
of the risks.

1.14 Emerging Risk

Emerging Risks refer to unpredictable and uncontrollable outcomes from certain events
which may have the potential to adversely impact our business. As part of our continuous risk
identification process, we realized that notable emerging risks like Global Supply Chain
Disruption due to crisis between Russia and Ukraine Inflation and Macroeconomic
Uncertainty and Evolving Cyber Security Threats are concerns for the bank in coming days.

Management's Perception

We have initiated number of steps to address these risk factors namely thematic stress tests
and portfolio reviews to assess the impact of extreme but plausible events and manage the
portfolio accordingly. Vulnerable sectors are regularly reviewed and exposures to these
sectors are managed as part of Credit Risk reviews. Sovereign ratings, exposures, outlooks
and country risk limits are regularly monitored, and mitigating actions are taken as required.
In addition, we also remained vigilant in monitoring geopolitical relationships. Increased
scrutiny is applied when on-boarding clients in sensitive industries and in ensuring
compliance with sanctions

A
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2 BRAC BANK
2. DETAILED DESCRIPTION & INFORMATION

Particulars of Issuer j
Name: BRAC Bank Limited |
BRAC Bank Limited (the "Bank" or "BRAC Bank") is a
scheduled commercial bank established under the Bank
Company Act, 1991, and incorporated as a public company,
limited by shares, on 20 May 1999 under the Companies
Act, 1994, in Bangladesh, vide RISC registration no.
C37782(2082)/99.

Legal Status: The primary objective of the bank is to conduct all kinds of
banking businesses. On completion of all legal formalities,
the bank commenced its operations on 4th July 2001.

BRAC Bank has been listed on the Dhaka Stock Exchange
and Chittagong Stock Exchange as a publicly traded
company from 28 January 2007 and 24 January 2007,
respectively.

| Address: Anik Tower, 220/B Tejgaon I/A, Tejgaon Gulshan
Link Road, Tejgaon, Dhaka-1208

Mohammad Mahbubur Rahman, FCS
Company Secretary

Phone: +88 02 988 4292, 885 9202

Ext: 52038

Mobile: +8801713060835

Email: mahbubur.rahman@bracbank.com

Md. Mahbub Hossain

Head of Asset-Liability Management
Phone: +88 02 988 4292, 885 9202

Ext: 52414

Mobile: +8801730077561

Email; mdmahbub.hossain@bracbank.com

Md. Abu Jafor

Manager

Basel Implementation

Phone: +88 02 988 4292, 885 9202
Ext: 52444

Mobile: +8801313401010

Email: abu.jafor@bracbank.com

Details of Contact
Information:

Incorporated as a Public Limited Company on 20 May,

Datg Of Incorporation: 1999 under the Companies Act, 1994 in Bangladesh

Date Of Commencement of The Bank started its operations from 04 July, 2001.

Business:
; il 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of BDT 10 each
Authorized Capital: | 115 amount - BDT 20,099,000,000
_ Paid-up Capital:  \ BDT 14,965,853,280 [

i Tanzim Alamgir
sotor and f:LO Page | 1“3”&‘[@1119 Director & Cl
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M Matibubur'Rahman FCS ~

Chmpany Secretary M Masud Rana Fca SEL

C Bank Limited DMD & Chief Financial Officer Managing |
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Total Consolidated Equity:

BDT 81,029,610,610

Total Consolidated BDT 574,907,709,477
Liabilities:

Total Consolidated

Financial Obligation: BOTS74, 807 JO3 77
Total Consolidated Assets: | BDT 655,937,320,087
Total Consolidated

Tangible Assets: BDT 13,463,514,348

Consolidated Net Worth:

BDT 81,029,610,610

Date of Audited Accounts

For the period ended on December 31° 2022.

Included in the IM:
| Particulars of Issue Manager
| Not Applicable
Particulars of the Issue
Name: BBL 2" Subordinated Bond

Type of Instrument:

Non-Convertible, Fully Redeemable, Coupon Bearing,
Floating Rate, Subordinated Bond

Purpose of Issue:

To strengthen BBL's capital base (Tier-Il Regulatory
Capital Raising) in line with the Basel-Ill framework.

Number of Securities &
Total Size of the Issue
Offered:

7000 bonds, totaling BDT 7,000,000,000

| Face value and issue price
of securities mentioning
discount or premium
thereof:

Face value: BDT 7,000,000,000
Issue Size: Same as Face Value (At Par)

Coupon Rate or Rate of
Profit or Discount Rate and
Yield to Maturity (YTM):

Reference Rate + Coupon Margin

Reference Rate: Average of most recent published 6-
month average deposit rates of Private Commercial
Banks (PCBs), excluding 4th and 5th Generation
Banks, Islamic Banks and Foreign Banks, published by
Bangladesh Bank in its website at the beginning of any
Coupon Period. As of April 2023, this is 5.92%.

Coupon Margin: 2.50% p.a.

Tenor or Maturity:

7 Years from the date of issue

Details of

conversion/exchange Not applicable
option features:

Mode of redemption or Not applicable
conversion/exchange:

Mode of option (call or
put), if any, in case of
redemption or

' Not applicable

ersion/exchange and 7\ /f__ 'J
M ahbugujiaﬁanms N
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¥ BRAC BANK

discount or premium
thereof:

Rate of Return: Reference Rate + 2.50% Margin

Applicable tax rate: As per the tax law of People’s Republic of Bangladesh
Default protection
mechanism (details of
credit enhancement
arrangement/agreement,
redemption reserve,
sinking fund etc.), if any:
Type of collateral
securities being offered, if | Unsecured
any:

Not Applicable

The Claims of the Investors/Bondholders shall:

a) be superior to the claims of investors in equity
shares;

b) be subordinated to the claims of depositors and
general creditors of the bank;

c) pari-passu without preference amongst
themselves and other unsecured debt instruments
classifying as Tier 2 in terms of Basel Ill guidelines
whether currently outstanding or issued at any
time in the future.; and

d) neither be secured nor covered by a guarantee of
the Issuer nor related entity or other arrangement
that legally or economically enhances the seniority
of the claim bank creditors.

Tier 1 Capital and Tier 2 Capital shall have the meaning
ascribed to such terms in the Basel |1l Guidelines.

Period within which Within 6 (six) months of requlatory approval in Single
securities to be issued: or multiple tranches as per the guidance of BSEC.
Nature of tradability or
listing in the stock
exchange(s) (Main Board /
ATB /any other platform,
mentioning the name of
the stock exchange):

Status of securities holders
in case of priority of
payment:

Listed on the ATB

Others: Not Applicable
Particulars of Trustee _
Name: UCB Investment Limited
Paid Up Capital: BDT 1,000,000,000
Net Worth: BDT 1,173,067,142

1. NRBC Bank Subordinated Bond-Bank Asia 1st
Perpetual Bon

Name Of Issue(s) Where Y
 N\_ 2. Mercantile Bafik Perpetual Bond

Performing as Trustee'\

any Secretary DMD & Chief Financial Officer

BRAC Bank Limited RRAC Bank Limited
Strictly Private & Confidential
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2 BRAC BANK

Mir Akhter Zero Coupon Bond

Envoy Textiles Zero Coupon Bond

3rd Subordinated Bond of EBL

MTB 5th Subordinated Bond

. 1CB 1st Mudaraba Sukuk

| Others: Not Applicable il

Nowv s w

Particulars of Credit Rating Agency
Name: Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh (CRAB)
Long Term: AAA
Credit Rating Status of The | Short Term:ST-1
Issuer: Outlook: Stable
Agency: CRAB
Long Term: AA1 (Hyb)
Outlook: Stable
Agency: CRAB
For the Issuer (CRAB):
Date And Validity of Rating | Date of Rating: 30" April, 2023

Credit Rating Status of The
Issue:

Along with Surveillance Valid Till: 30" June, 2024
Rating for The Issuer or

Originator and For the For the Issue (CRAB)

Issue: Date of Rating: 14" June, 2023

Valid Till: 13'" December, 2023

Latest Default Rate of The | 1-Year Default Rate - 0.00%

Credit Rating Company: 3-Year Cumulative Default Rate (CDR) - 0.00%
Average Time to Default of
The Rated Category:

No default in this category

If the credit rating of the Issue falls below the minimum
investment gradei.e., “BBB" in the long term or "ST-3" in
the short term, then BRAC Bank Limited shall pay an
additional fee on top of the stipulated Coupon Rate as a

Rating Trigger, If Any Risk Premium as mentioned in the below table:

Issue Rating Risk Premium to be Added
BB 0.25%
B 0.50%
C 0.75%
D 1.00%
Others: Not Applicable |

| Particulars of Originators
| Not Applicable

| Particulars of other Contractugl Parties
Name of the Mandated
Lead Arranger (MLA)  \

AC EPL Investments Li)fited

=y
ahbubur Rahman FCS M Masud Rana o/ Tanzim Alamgir
ompany SBCT'EYE.ITY DMD & Chief Financial Officer Managing Director & C-E-Oi_
AC Bank Limited BRAC Bank Limited Pageh lvestment Limitee
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]r:::':cli:::;ufegzt:franger Private Limited Company
Details of Contact Anup Datta
Information of the MLA: Head of Corporate Advisory
Investment Banking Department
Mobile: +880 17556317 24
E-mail: anup.datta@bracepl.com
Legal Advisor Humayra Noor
Advocate, Supreme Court of Bangladesh Senior Associate,
Farooq & Associates
Phone: +8801707072179
Email: humayra@faroogandassociates.com
Depository Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL)
_?f:":::;i:gp::‘tng Apant; UCB Investment Limited
Others Not applicable

-
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3. DETAILS OF UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS

3.1 Purpose of Issuance of BBL 2" Subordinated Bond
BRAC Bank Limited has decided to raise capital through issuance of subordinated bonds in

order to strengthen its capital base in accordance with Basel Il guidelines of Bangladesh
Bank.

3.2 Plan Regarding Use of Proceeds from the Subordinated Bonds

The proceeds from the issue will be used for undertaking general business activities of the
bank including loans and investments in treasury and other securities.

\ _/-’_. t/_
Tanzim Alamgir
M Mahbubur RahmanFCS M Masud Rana Fca \ianaging Director & CEO
Caompany Secretary DMD & Chief Financial Officer UCB \nvestment Limited
BRAC Bank Limited BRAC Bank Limited

Page | 19
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4. FEATURES OF DEBT SECURITY TO BE ISSUED

Issuer: BRAC Bank Limited (“BBL")

The Issue: BBL 2" Subordinated Bond

Mandated Lead | BRAC EPL Investments Limited (BEIL) and also referred to as the

Arranger: "MLA" or Arranger.

Arra!ngement Best Efforts/Non-Underwritten.

Basis:

Purpose: T_o strs_engthen BBL's capital base (Tier-Il Regulatory Capital Raising) in
line with the Basel-Ill framework.
Banks, Non-Bank Financial Institutions (NBFI), Insurance Companies,

Investors: Provident & Gratuity Funds, Corporates, High Net-Worth Individuals
and any other eligible investors

Currency: Bangladesh Taka (BDT)

Issue Size: BDT 7,000,000,000

Trustee: UCB Investment Limited

Listing Status: Alternative Trading Board (ATB)
Face Value of

BDT 1,000,000 (One Million)

Each Bond:

Total Bonds: 7000

Minimum

Application BDT 1,000,000 (One Million)

Amount:

g:::::::s?f 100% at face value/par.

Tenor: 7 years from the date of issue

Nature of Non-Convertible, Fully Redeemable, Coupon Bearing, Floating Rate,
Instrument: Subordinated Bond

Feature: Fully-Redeemable

Issuer:

Long Term: AAA

Short Term: ST-1

Outlook: Stable

Validity: June 30" 2024

Credit Rating: Rating agency: Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh Limited (CRAB)
Issue:

Long Term: AA1 (Hyb)

Outlook: Stable

Validity: 13" December 2023

Rating agency: Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh Limited (CRAB)

Form: Registered

Payment of Semi-annually beginning at the end of 6 months from drawdown date
Coupon: and afterwards semi-annually throughout the tenor of the Bond.
Over In event of this issue of the bond being oversubscribed, the allotment
Subscription: will be a first come first serve basis. 4

Under Any undey-subscribed portion will be ge-offered for fresh subscription

Subscription: ddpendingyqn prevailing market condfti

Tanzim Alamgir
Managing Director & QEO
cB Investment Limited
%age | 20
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The Bonds are being made in pursuance of "Guidelines on Risk Based
Capital Adequacy (Revised Regulatory Capital Framework for banks in
line with Basel 11)" on Basel |1l capital regulations issued by
Bangladesh Bank vide BRPD Circular No- 18 dated December 21, 2014

Applicable (herein after Basel Ill Regulations/ Basel lll Guidelines/ Bangladesh

Bangladesh Bank RBCA Guidelines-2014) covering criteria for inclusion of

Bank instruments in Regulatory Capital (Specific Eligibility Criteria for

Guidelines: subordinated Debt to Qualify as Tier 2 Capital stated in ANNEX-4 of
Bangladesh Bank RBCA Guidelines-2014). The issue of Bonds and
terms and conditions of the Bonds will be subject to the applicable
guidelines/orders /rules/circulars issued by Bangladesh Bank and
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission from time to time.

Regulatory Upon approval from the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange

: Commission and No-Objection Certificate from Bangladesh Bank, the

Approval: g o
Issuer will issue the Bonds

Validity of the The consent for issuance of securities under private offer shall remain

Consent (to be

issued by BSEC:

valid for 06 (six) months from the date of consent or for such a period
as determined by the BSEC in the consent letter.

Compliance:

The bond indenture to be aligned, where applicable, for compliance
with Guideline of Risk Based Capital Adequacy" issued by Bangladesh
Bank (BB). Rules & Regulations of Bangladesh Securities & Exchange
Commission (BSEC) and applicable Laws of the land.

Conditions
Precedent:

In form and substance satisfactory to the MLA including without
limitation: (i) due diligence having been conducted and completed, (ii)
documentation for Financing and appropriate business description
disclosure in the offering circular, (iii)receipt by the MLA of
appropriate legal opinions from external counsel, (iv) the Issuer
having obtained all relevant approvals for Financing

Trustee
Authority:

At any time after the Bonds have become due and repayable, the
Trustee may, and without further notice in writing, take such
proceedings against the Issuer as it may think fit to enforce
repayment of the Bonds and to enforce the provisions of the Trust
Deed, but it will not be bound to take any such proceedings unless (a)
it shall have been so requested in writing by the holders of not less
than 662/ per cent. in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding
or shall have been so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution of the
Bondholders and (b) it shall have been indemnified and/or secured to
its satisfaction. No Bondholder will be entitled to proceed directly
against the Issuer unless the Trustee, having become bound to do so,
fails to do so within a reasonable period and such failure shall be
continuing.

Status of
securities
holdersin

case of priority
of payment:

pany Secretary
Bank Limited

The Claims of the Investors/Bondholders shall:

(i) be superior to the claims of investors in equity shares;

(i) be subordinated to the claims of depositors and general creditors
of the bank;

(iii) pari-passu without preference amongst themselves and other
unsecured debt instruments classifying as Tier 2 in terms of Basel Il
guidelineswhether currently outstanging or issued at any time in the

SRS
Tanzim Alamgir
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(iv) neither be secured nor covered by a guarantee of the Issuer nor
related entity or other arrangement that legally or economically
enhances the seniority of the claim bank creditors.

Tier 1 Capital and Tier 2 Capital shall have the meaning ascribed to
such terms in the Basel |1l Guidelines.

:caltcj:n:\;nt: Private Placement
Security: Unsecured
If the credit rating of the Issue falls below the minimum investment
gradei.e., "BBB" in the long term or “ST-3"in the short term, then BRAC
Bank of Bangladesh Limited shall pay an additional fee on top of the
stipulated Coupon Rate as a Risk Premium as mentioned in the below
table:
el
BB 0.25%
B 0.50%
C 0.75%
D 1.00%

Will include but not limited to:

s Term Sheet

e Trust Deed
Documentation: e Subscription Agreement

e Anyother documentation related to the transaction
Customary Capital Market documentation including force majeure,
' negative pledge, cross default and indemnity provisions.
Legal Counsel: Farooq & Associates
Governing Law: | The Laws of The People's Republic of Bangladesh

Rate of Return, Yield to Maturity, Coupon/Discount Rate

Reference Rate + Coupon Margin

Reference Rate: Average of most recent published 6-month average deposit rates of PCBs
(excluding 4th and 5th Generation Banks, Islamic Banks and Foreign Banks) published by
Bangladesh Bank in its website at the beginning of any Coupon Period. As of April 2023, this
is 5.92%.

Coupon Margin: 2.50% p.a.
Transferability/Liquidity

Transfer and transmission of the Bonds shall be subject to the Depositories Act. '1999, the
rules made thereunder, the byelaws, rules and regulations of the Depositories as amended
from time to time.

Prepayment, Call, Refunding, Conversion or Exchange option

Not applicable

Early redemption or Late redemption = (,
Tanzim Alamgir
M Masud Rana FCA SELIMR P <A 1N Managing Director & CEO
any Secretary DMD & Chief Financial Officer “ Rk and CEO UCB Investment Limited
Limited BRAC Bank Limited BRAC Bank Limited Page | 22
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Incremental charge at the rate of 2% per annum payable by the Issuer to the Bondholders
above the amount to be paid by the Issuer to the Bondholders on the Redemption date for
failure of the Issuer to make payment to the Bondholders on the Redemption date.

Tax Features
As per the tax law of People's Republic of Bangladesh

Costs related to the issue

Particulars Metric Fees

Non-Regulatory Fees 27,945,000
Arranger Fee ( ™M iMU.M)* 0.30% of Capital Raised 21,000,000
Legal Fee (Total) 150,000 one time 150,000
Credit Rating Fee (Total) 150,000 per year 1,050,000
Annual Trustee Fee (Total) 300,000 per year 2,100,000
MNon-Regulatory Fee 27,945,000
VAT on Non-Regulatory Fee 15% 3,645,000
Incidental Expense 1,000,000
Regulatory Fees 12,172,000
BSEC Application Fee At Actual 10,000
BSEC Consent Fee 0.10% of Capital Raised 7,000,000
BSEC Trustee Application Fee At Actual 50,000
BSEC Trustee Registration Fee At Actual 100,000
BSEC Annual Trustee Fee (Total) 50,000 per year 350,000
Trust Deed Stamp Duty At Actual 1,100,000
CDBL Fee At Actual 1,050,000
CDBL Security Deposit At Actual 500,000
CDBL Annual Fee (Total) 26,000 per year 182,000
ATB Listing Fee At Actual 500,000
ATB Annual Listing Fee (Total) 190,000 per year 1,330,000
Total 41,117,000
% Of Amount Raised 0.59%
Annualized Cost 0.05%

¥ 030 [ & raiscc amouNt o RNT |0 500,000 Whicheye 1o |caRr
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Managing Director & CEO
UCB Investment Limited
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To be redeemed at par in 5 equal annual instalments starting from end of 3rd year from the
subscription closing date/deemed date of allotment and each 12 months from thereafter as

per following table:

Years Repayment (BDT) Balance
End of 1% year - 7,000,000,000
End of 2" year - 7,000,000,000
End of 3" year 1,400,000,000 5,600,000,000
End of 4" year 1,400,000,000 4,200,000,000
End of 5" year 1,400,000,000 2,800,000,000

End of 6" year

1,400,000,000

1,400,000,000

End of 7'" year

1,400,000,000

Call or put option, and premium or discount thereof, if any

Not applicable
Credit enhancement or guarantee, if any
Not applicable

Enforcement of charges over securities

At any time after the Bonds have become due and repayable, the Trustee may, at its sole
discretion and without further notice in writing, take such proceedings against the Issuer as
it may think fit to enforce repayment of the Bonds and to enforce the provisions of the Trust
Deed, but it will not be bound to take any such proceedings unless (a) it shall have been so
requested in writing by the holders of not less than 662/3 per cent in principal amount of the
Bonds then outstanding or shall have been so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution of the
Bondholders and (b) it shall have been indemnified and/or secured to its satisfaction. No
Bondholder will be entitled to proceed directly against the Issuer unless the Trustee, having
become bound to do so, fails to do so within a reasonable period and such failure shall be
continuing.

s 3 A
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5. DESCRIPTION OF COLLATERAL SECURITY & TYPE OF

CHARGES TO BE CREATED AGAINST ISSUE

The issue is a non-convertible, fully redeemable, coupon bearing, floating rate, subordinated
bond, hence no charge on assets is to be created. The issuer only owes the bondholders an
indebtedness which is secured by claims over all present and future assets of the issuer
subsequent to all secured lenders/investors.

=
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO
UCE Investment Limited

M Masud Rana Fca
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6. RIGHTS & OBLIGATIONS OF THE ISSUER

Covenant to Repay

The Issuer covenants with the Trustee that it will, as and when the Bonds or any of them
become due to be redeemed or any principal on the Bonds or any of them becomes due to be
repaid in accordance with the Conditions, unconditionally pay or procure to be paid to or to
the order of the Trustee in Bangladeshi Taka in Dhaka in immediately available freely
transferable funds the principal amount of the Bonds or any of them becoming due for
redemption or repayment on that date and shall (subject to the provisions of the Conditions)
until all such payments (both before and after judgment or other order) are duly made
unconditionally pay or procure to be paid to or to the order of the Trustee as aforesaid on the
dates provided for in the Conditions- Coupon on the principal amount of the Bonds or any of
them outstanding from time to time as set out in the Conditions provided that:

o every payment of principal or Coupon in respect of the Bonds or any of them made to
or to the account of the Bondholders shall satisfy, to the extent of such payment;

o if any payment of principal or Coupon in respect of the Bonds or any of them is made
after the due date, payment shall be deemed not to have been made until either the
fullamount is paid to the Bondholders or, if earlier, the [seventh day] after notice has
been given to the Bondholders in accordance with the Conditions that the full amount
has been received by the Trustee to the extent that there is failure in the subsequent
payment to the Bondholders under the Conditions; and

o in any case where payment of the whole or any part of the principal amount due in
respect of any Bond is improperly withheld or refused penalty shall accrue at
applicable rate of 2.00% p.a. for the Bond on the whole or such part of such principal
amount from the date of such withholding or refusal until the date either on which
such principal amount due is paid to the Bondholders or, if earlier, the seventh day
after which notice is given to the Bondholders in accordance with the Conditions that
the full amount payable in respect of the said principal amount is available for
collection by the Bondholders provided that on further due presentation thereof such
payment is in fact made.

The Trustee will hold the benefit of this covenant and the covenants in Clause 12.3 (Covenant
to comply with Trust Deed, Conditions and Schedules and applicable law) and Clause 12.4
(Covenants by the Issuer) on trust for the Bondholders.

Following an Event of Default

At any time after any Event of Default shall have occurred, the Trustee may:

by notice in writing to the Issuer, require it to make all subsequent payments in respect of
Bonds to or to the order of the Trustee and with effect from the issue of any such notice until
such notice is withdrawn, sub-clause 12.1.10f Clause 12.1 (Covenant to Repay) and (so far as
it concerns payments by the Issuery{lause 21.2 (Payment tg Bondholders) shall cease to have
effect.

L

M Masud Rana FCA
DMD & Chief Einancial Officer
BRAC gank Limited
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Managing Director & CEO
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Covenant to comply with Trust Deed, conditions, Schedules and applicable law

1. Thelssuer hereby covenants with the Trustee to comply with, perform and observe all
those provisions of the Trust Deed, the Conditions (including, without limitation,
Condition 5 (Covenants)) and the other Schedules which are expressed to be binding
on it and to perform and observe the same. The Bonds are subject to the provisions
contained in the Trust Deed, all of which shall be binding upon the Issuer and the
Bondholders and all persons claiming through or under them respectively. The
Bandholders and all persons claiming under or through them respectively will also be
entitled to the benefit of, and will be bound by, the Trust Deed and the other Bond
Documents and will be deemed to have notice of all of the provisions of the Bond
Documents applicable to them.

2. The Issuer hereby covenants with the Trustee to comply with, perform and observe all
those provisions of the applicable law including but is not limited to Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021. The Issuer agrees
that Bondholders and all persons claiming under or through them respectively will
also be entitled to the benefit of, and will be bound by, the applicable law and will be
deemed to have notice of all of the provisions of the applicable law applicable to
them.

3. The Trustee shall itself be entitled to enforce the obligations of the Issuer under the
Bonds and the Conditions and the applicable law as if the same were set out and
contained in the Trust Deed which shall be read and construed as one document with
the Bonds.

Covenants by the Issuer

The Issuer hereby covenants with the Trustee that, so long as any of the Bonds remain
outstanding, it will:

1. Books of account

At all times keep and procure that all its Subsidiaries keep such books of account as may
be necessary to comply with all applicable laws and so as to enable the financial
statements of the Issuer to be prepared and allow, subject to confidentiality obligations
under applicable law, the Trustee and any person appointed by it free access to the same
at all reasonable times and to discuss the same with responsible officers of the Issuer;

2. Event of Default
Give notice in writing to the Trustee forthwith upon becoming aware of any Event of
Default and without waiting for the Trustee to take any further action;

3. Corporate Governance
Comply (and shall ensure that each member of the Group will) in all material respects
with the corporate governance guidelines set out by the Bangladesh Bank and the BSEC.

4. |nformation
So far as permitted by applicable law, at all times give to tife Trustee such information,

opinions, certificates and\Qt idence as it shall requir¢land in such form as it shall
W i, ==
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require in relation to Issuer for the performance of its obligations under the Bond
Documents;

5. Execution of further Documents

So far as permitted by applicable law, at all times execute all such further documents and
do all such further acts and things as may be necessary at any time or times in the opinion
of the Trustee to give effect to the provisions of the Trust Deed;

6. Notices to Bondholders

Send or procure to be sent to the Trustee not less than 5 (five) business days prior to the
date of publication, one copy of each notice to be given to the Bondholders in accordance
with the Conditions and, upon publication, send to the Trustee two copies of such notice;

7. Notification of non-payment
Notify the Trustee forthwith in the event that it does not, on or before the due date for

payment in respect of the Bonds or any of them, pay unconditionally the full amount in
the relevant currency of the moneys payable on such due date on all such Bonds;

8. Notification of late payment

In the event of the unconditional payment to the Trustee of any sum due in respect of the
Bonds or any of them being made after the due date for payment thereof, forthwith give
notice to the Bondholders that such payment has been made;

9. Notification of redemption or repayment

14 (Fourteen) days prior to the Redemption Dates or purchase in respect of any Bond,
give to the Trustee notice in writing of the amount of such redemption or purchase
pursuant to the Conditions and duly proceed to redeem or purchase such Bonds
accordingly;

10. Authorized Signataries

Upon the execution hereof and thereafter forthwith upon any change of the same, deliver
to the Trustee a list of the Authorized Signatories of the Issuer, together with certified
specimen signatures of the same; and

11. Payments

Pay moneys payable by it to the Trustee hereunder without set off, counterclaim,
deduction or withholding, unless otherwise compelled by law and in the event of any
deduction or withholding compelled by law will pay such additional amount as will result
in the payment to the Trustee of the amount which would otherwise have been payable
by it to the Trustee hereunder.

M Masud Rana FCA SELIM R, TJHUSSAIN Tanzim Al'amg!(r:izo
Mafibubut Rahman FCS DMD & Chief Financial Officer Vanaging Dirbdtor and CEO Managing Dlref;tol' &‘ml'led
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12. Risk Premium

In case where the credit rating of the Issue falls below the minimuminvestment gradei.e.
“BBB" in the long term or “ST-3" in the short term, the Issuer shall pay an additional
interest on top of the stipulated Coupon Rate as a Risk Premium as mentioned in the

below table:

Risk Premium to be Added

Issue Rating

0.25%
_ 0.50%
% C 0.75%

D 1.00%
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7. RIGHTS & OBLIGATIONS OF THE TRUSTEE

RIGHTS

1. Applicable Law: Notwithstanding anything contained in the Trust Deed the Trustee shall
have all such rights and powers granted to it under the applicable law including but is not
limited to the Rules.

2 Advice: The Trustee may in relation to the Trust Deed act on the opinion or advice of or a
certificate or any information obtained from any lawyer, banker, valuer, surveyor, broker,
auctioneer, accountant or other expert (whether obtained by the Trustee, the Issuer, or
any Subsidiary) and which advice or opinion may be provided on such terms (including as
to limitations on liability) as the Trustee may consider in its sole discretion to be
consistent with prevailing market practice with regard to advice or opinions of that
nature and shall not be responsible for any Liability occasioned by so acting; any such
opinion, advice, certificate or information may be sent or obtained by letter, telegram,
telex, cablegram or facsimile transmission;

3 Resolution or direction of Bondholders: the Trustee shall not be responsible for acting
upon any resolution purporting to be a Written Resolution or to have been passed at any
meeting of the Bondholders in respect whereof minutes have been made and signed or a
direction of a specified percentage of Bondholders, even though it may subsequently be
found that there was some defect in the constitution of the meeting or the passing of the
resolution or the making of the directions or that for any reason the resolution purporting
to be a Written Resolution or to have been passed at any Meeting or the making of the
directions was not valid or binding upon the Bondholders;

4. Trustee not responsible for investigations: save as otherwise provided by applicable law,
the Trustee shall not be responsible for, or for investigating any matter which is the
subject of, any recital, statement, representation, warranty or covenant of any person
contained in the Trust Deed, the Bonds, or any other agreement or document relating to
the transactions herein or therein contemplated or for the execution, legality,
effectiveness, adequacy, genuineness, validity, enforceability or admissibility in evidence
thereof;

5. Entry on the Register: The Trustee shall not be liable to the Issuer or any Bondholder by
reason of having accepted as valid or not having rejected any entry on the Register later
found to be forged or not authentic and can assume for all purposes in relation hereto
that any entry on the Register is correct;

6. Events of Default: save as otherwise provided by applicable law, until it shall have actual
knowledge or express<otice to the contrary, the Trustee shall be entitled to assume that
no such Event of Befaulh\has happened and that theflssuer is abserving and performing
all the obligations contained in the Bonds and under the Trust Deed and no

M ahbuburRahman FCS M Masud Rana FCA
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event has happened as a consequence of which any of the Bonds may become repayable;
and

7. Right to Deduct or Withhold: notwithstanding anything contained in the Trust Deed, to
the extent required by any applicable law, if the Trustee is or will be required to make any
deduction or withholding from any distribution or payment made by it hereunder or if the
Trustee is or will be otherwise charged to, or is or may become liable to, tax as a
consequence of performing its duties hereunder whether as principal, agent or otherwise,
and whether by reason of any assessment, prospective assessment or other imposition of
liability to taxation of whatsoever nature and whenever made upon the Trustee, and
whether in connection with or arising from any sums received or distributed by it or to
which it may be entitled under the Trust Deed (other than in connection with its
remuneration as provided for herein) or any investments or deposits from time to time
representing the same, including any income or gains arising therefrom or any action of
the Trustee in connection with the trusts of the Trust Deed (other than the remuneration
herein specified) or otherwise, then the Trustee shall be entitled to make such deduction
or withholding or, as the case may be, to retain out of sums received by it an amount
sufficient to discharge any liability to tax which relates to sums so received or distributed
or to discharge any such other liability of the Trustee to tax from the funds held by the
Trustee upon the trusts of the Trust Deed.

8. Liability: The Trustee shall not be liable to any person for any matter or thing done or
omitted in any way in connection with or in relation to the Trust Deed or the Bonds save
in relation to its own gross negligence, willful default or fraud. The Clause 6.1.8 of Trust
Deed shall survive the termination or expiry of the Trust Deed or the removal or
termination of the Trustee.

9. Force Majeure: The Trustee shall not be liable for any failure or delay in the performance
of its obligations under the Trust Deed or any other Bond Document because of
circumstances beyond such Trustee's control, including, without limitation, acts of God,
flood, war (whether declared or undeclared), terrorism, fire, riot, embargo, labor
disputes, any laws, ordinances, regulations or the like which restrict or prohibit the
performance of the obligations contemplated by the Trust Deed or any other Bond
Document, inability to obtain or the failure of equipment, or interruption of
communications or computer facilities, and other causes beyond such Trustee's control
whether or not of the same class or kind as specifically named above. However, the
Trustee shall use commercially reasonable efforts consistent with accepted practice inits
industry to resume performance as soon as practicable under the circumstances.

10. Immunities: The Trustee's immunities and protections from liability and its right to
indemnification in connection with the performance of its duties under the Trust Deed
shall extend to the Trustee's officers, directors and employees. Such immunities and
protections and right to indemnification, together with the Trustee's right to
compensation, shall survive the Trustee's resignation or removal, the defeasance or
discharge of the Trust Deed and final payment of the Bonds. The Issuer acknowledges
that in any proceedings taken in relation to the Trust Deed, it will not be entitled to claim
for itself or any of its assets immunity from suit, execytion, attachment or other legal
process.

3
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11. Professional charges: any trustee being a banker, lawyer, broker or other person engaged
in any profession or business shall be entitled to charge and be paid all usual professional
and other charges for business transacted and acts done by him or his partner or firm on
matters arising in connection with the trusts of the Trust Deed and also his properly
incurred charges in addition to disbursements for all other work and business done and
all time spent by him or his partner or firm on matters arising in connection with the Trust
Deed, in each case as agreed pursuant to the Fee Letter (including matters which might
or should have been attended to in person by a trustee not being a banker, lawyer, broker
or other professional person);

12. Expenditure by the Trustee: nothing contained in the Trust Deed shall require the Trustee
to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the
performance of its duties or the exercise of any right, power, authority or discretion
hereunder if it has grounds for believing the repayment of such funds or adequate
indemnity against, or security for, such risk or liability is not reasonably assured to it; and

13. Trustee may enter into financial transactions with the Issuer: no Trustee and no director
or officer of any corporation being a Trustee hereof shall by reason of the fiduciary
position of such Trustee be in any way precluded from making any contracts or entering
into any transactions in the ordinary course of business with the Issuer or any Subsidiary,
or any person or body corporate directly or indirectly associated with the Issuer or any
Subsidiary, or from accepting the trusteeship of any other debenture stock, debentures
or securities of the Issuer or any Subsidiary or any person or body corporate directly or
indirectly associated with the Issuer or any Subsidiary, and neither the Trustee nor any
such director or officer shall be accountable to the Bondholders or the Issuer or any
Subsidiary, or any person or body corporate directly or indirectly associated with the
Issuer or any Subsidiary, for any Coupon, fees, commissions, discounts or share of
brokerage earned, arising or resulting from any such contracts or transactions and the
Trustee and any such director or officer shall also be at liberty to retain the same for its
or his own benefit.

14. Trustee Liability: The Trustee shall not be liable to any person for any matter or thing
done or omitted in any way in connection with orin relation to the Trust Deed or the Bonds
save in relation to its own gross negligence, willful default or fraud.

15. Right to Sue: The Trustee may sue and may be sued on behalf of the Bondholders.

POWERS & DUTIES

Applicable Law: Notwithstanding anything contained in the Trust Deed the Trustee shall have
all such responsibility as set out in the applicable law including but is not limited to the Rules.

Act for Bondholders: Subject to applicable law and terms and conditions of the Trust Deed,
the Trustee shall act on behalfand for the exclusive interesf of the Bondholders;

— .
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Monitoring: Trustee shall ensure that Issuer is observing the applicable law for the Bonds and
the terms and conditions of the Bond Documents. As soon as the Trustee is aware of any
breach by the Issuer it shall immediately inform the Bondholders and the Issuer of such
breach;

Report to BSEC: Trustee shall submit an annual compliance report to the BSEC on the
activities of the Issuer including repayment of dues to the Bondholders. When Trustee shall
submit such report to the BSEC it shall provide copy to the Issuer and the Bondholders;

Grievances of the Bondholders: Upon receipt of a complaint from the Bondholders Trustee
shall take necessary steps for redress of grievances of the Bondholders within one month of
the date of receipt of the complaints and he shall keep the BSEC and the Issuer informed
about the number, nature and other particulars of the complaints received and the manner
in which such complaints have been redressed;

Trustee's determination: The Trustee may determine whether or not a default in the
performance or observance by the Issuer of any obligation under the provisions of the Trust
Deed or contained in the Bonds is capable of remedy and/or not materially prejudicial to the
interest of the Bondholders and if the Trustee shall certify that any such default is, in its
opinion, not capable of remedy and/or /or materially prejudicial to the interest of the
Bondholders, such certificate shall be conclusive and binding upon the Issuer and the
Bondholders;

Determination of questions: the Trustee as between itself and the Bondholders shall have
full power to determine all questions and doubts arising in relation to any of the provisions
of the Trust Deed and every such determination, whether made upon a question actually
raised or implied in the acts or proceedings of the Trustee, shall be conclusive and shall bind
the Trustee and the Bondholders:

Trustee's discretion: the Trustee shall (save as expressly otherwise provided herein) as
regards all the trusts, powers, authorities and discretions vested in it by the Trust Deed or by
operation of law, on reasonable ground have absolute and uncontrolled discretion as to the
exercise or non-exercise thereof and the Trustee shall not be responsible for any Liability
that may result from the exercise or non-exercise thereof (save as otherwise pravided by
applicable law) but whenever the Trustee is under the provisions of the Trust Deed bound to
act at the request or direction of the Bondholders, the Trustee shall nevertheless not be so
bound unless first indemnified and/or provided with security to its satisfaction against all
actions, proceedings, claims and demands to which it may render itself liable and all costs,
charges, damages, expenses and liabilities which it may incur by so doing;

Trustee's consent: any consent given by the Trustee for the purposes of the Trust Deed may
be given on such terms and subject to such conditions (if any) as the Trustee may require;

Application of proceeds: the Trustee shall not be responsible for the receipt or application by
the Issuer of the proceeds of the issue of the Subordinated Bonds;

Error of judgment: the Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good
faith applying due diligence and without negligence by any officer or employee of the Trustee
assigned by the Trustee to administer its corporate trust matters, save in relation to its own

gross negligence, willfukdefall{ or fraud;
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Agents: Subject to the provisions of the Trust Act 1882 and the Rules, the Trustee may, in the
conduct of the trusts of the Trust Deed instead of acting personally, employ and pay an agent
on any terms, whether or not a lawyer or other professional person, to transact or conduct,
or concur in transacting or conducting, any business and to do or concur in doing all acts
required to be done by the Trustee (including the receipt and payment of money) with the
consent of Issuer and the Trustee shall not be responsible for any loss, liability, expense,
demand, cost, claim or proceedings incurred by reason of the misconduct, omission or default
on the part of any person appointed by it hereunder or be bound to supervise the proceedings
or acts of any such person provided that the Trustee had exercised reasonable care in the
appointment of such person;

Confidential information: the Trustee shall not (unless required by law or ordered so to do by
a court of competent jurisdiction) be required to disclose to any Bondholder confidential
information or other information made available to the Trustee by the Issuer in connection
with the Trust Deed and no Bondholder shall be entitled to take any action to obtain from the
Trustee any such information.

Determination of Coupon Rate: The Trustee shall determine Coupon Rate in accordance with
Conditions of the Bond.

Exercise of Discretion

1. Notwithstanding anything in the Trust Deed to the contrary, the Trustee shall not be
obliged to exercise or consider exercising any discretion or consider making or make
any determination (including, without limitation, any determination as to whether
any fact or circumstance or activity or thing is material or substantial or complies with
some such similar quantitative standard) or to consider taking or take any action
whatsoever in connection with or under or pursuant to the Bonds unless directed to
do so by the Bondholders of not less than 662/spercent in principal amount of the
Bonds then outstanding or if so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution of
Bondholders (subject in all cases to the Trustee having been indemnified or provided
with security to its satisfaction and otherwise being satisfied that it is lawful for it to
so exercise discretion, make a determination or otherwise take any action). Such
direction shall specify the way in which the Trustee shall exercise such discretion or,
as the case may be, make the determination or take the action to be taken by the
Trustee.

2. The Trustee will be responsible for any loss, expense, damage, claim, cost, charge or
liability which may be suffered as a result of any exercise or non-exercise of a
discretion or the making or failure to make any determination or the taking or failure
to take any action by the Trustee, acting on the directions of the Bondholders as
aforesaid or pending the provision of such a direction.

(’
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8. RIGHTS & OBLIGATIONS OF OTHER CONTRACTUAL PARTIES

ARRANGER:

The ISSUER has appointed BRAC EPL Investments Limited as the Mandated Lead Arranger of
the proposed Subordinated Bonds.
Rights and Obligations of the Arranger of the Subordinated Bonds include:
e Due diligence of the issue prior to submission of the proposed Bonds to external
parties.
= Coordinate and provide integral support for preparation of Information Memorandum
and appointment of relevant parties.
e Ensure proper documentation completion and compliance with regulatory
requirements, prior to submission to regulators.
» Engage with regulators and ISSUER for approval of the Bonds.
e Support due diligence of prospective investors for investing in the Bonds.
o Complete documentation of the Bonds prior to subscription of the Bonds.
e Monitor compliance with conditions precedent prior to issuance of the Bonds.

LEGAL COUNSEL:

Pursuant to the Letter issued under Ref. BBL/HO/FIN/2023/06-240(a) dated June 11, 2023,
the Issuer agrees to appoint Farooq & Associates as the Legal Counsel of the Bonds in order
to provide legal advice and legal assistance or any other legal services deliverables to the
Issuerin relation to the issuance as per the following scope:

e Draft, negotiate and finalize Trust Deed, Subscription Agreements and other ancillary
documents in relation to the issuance of Bonds;

* Review of applications to be made by the Issuer to relevant Regulators;

e Provide necessary legal opinion on various issues as required upon execution of the
Bond Documents;

e Assist with registering the required agreements, documents and related forms with
the respective authorities and entities and

e Attend meetings, telephone calls, discussions, correspondences, perusals and any
other services incidental to the completion of the transactionin various stages for the
issuance of Bond.

CREDIT RATING AGENCY:

For the purpose of conducting the Bond Rating Service for the Bonds having total issue size
of BDT 7,000,000,000.00 (SEVEN BILLION TAKA) only (which shall be referred to as “Rated
Subject”) the Issuer has appointed Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh Limited (the “Credit
Rating Agency” or “CRA") under the terms and covenants as detailed under Credit Rating
Agency Agreement dated, 7 Jupe 2023, executed by and jpetween the Issuer and the CRA to
be conducted-as per the Rangladesh Securities and Ex¢hange Commission (Credit Rating
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Companies) Rules, 2022 issued by the BSEC and the Standard Methodology and Ethical Code
of the CRA etc.

Moreover, for providing the requested rating services for the Rated Subject, the Issuer agrees
to make payment to the CRA as per the payment schedule mentioned under Credit Rating
Agency Agreement dated, 7 June 2023, up to end of bond maturity for any debt instrument
as per requirements of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Credit Rating
Companies) Rules, 2022.

ANY OTHER CONTRACTUAL PARTY:

The rights and obligations of any other contractual party should be governed by the
respective contract or agreement entered into by the parties the rein.
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9. RIGHTS OF BONDHOLDERS

e Each Bondholder has the right to demand information from the Issuer as set out in the
Trust Deed and the Condition attached in Schedule 1 Part B of the trust deed (Terms and
Conditions of the Bonds).

e Each Bondholder has the right to receive payment of principal amount of the Bond on the
Redemption Date as set out in the Condition attached in Schedule 1 Part B of the trust
deed (Terms and Conditions of the Bonds).

e Each Bondholder has the right to receive Coupon on the Bond on the Coupon Payment
Date as set out in the Condition attached in Schedule 1 Part B of the trust deed (Terms
and Conditions of the Bonds).

e Each Bondholder has the right to attend meeting of the Bondholders and vote there in
accordance with Condition 12 of the trust deed (Meetings of Bondholders, Modification,
Waiver and Substitution).

AN Tanzim Alamgir
) and CEO Managing Director & CEQ

Mmﬂ-‘ M Masud Rana Fca
Mahbubur Rafiman FCS  pwip & Chief Financial Officer 1= oy
Gianaging Lhge in

Cor:l%anyaSecrgxtwa;tfgd BRAC Bank Limited ARAC Bank L.imiiéd U&E,Egl;“(*‘g“}m“m Limited
S@m‘:‘#y"ﬂnwte & Confidential




? BRAC BANK
10. DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER

Since its inception in 2001, BRAC Bank Limited has adopted a values-based banking approach
to promote sustainable economic development. The bank places a strong emphasis on
governance, transparency, ethics, and a compliance culture. Its primary objective is to provide
formal banking solutions to small and medium enterprises that have been excluded from the
banking system. Over time, BRAC Bank has emerged as a prominent financial institution that
actively contributes to the country's economic progress through inclusive banking practices,
collateral-free financing, and strategic collaboration with the government to implement
broader economic policies.

Founded by Sir Fazle Hasan Abed, a visionary, BRAC Bank has a distinctive vision of offering
banking solutions to small and medium entrepreneurs who are excluded from the formal
banking system. Through its collateral-free loans, BRAC Bank extends formal banking
services to grassroots SME entrepreneurs, resulting in significant socio-economic upliftment
and impact. The bank's approach to banking goes beyond profit-making, focusing on shared
prosperity while prioritizing economic, social, and environmental considerations.
Sustainable banking now constitutes a fundamental pillar of the bank's business strategy.

As a distinguished member of the Global Alliance for Banking on Values (GABV), BRAC Bank
is deeply committed to humanizing finance and embraces the comprehensive '3P' philosophy
of People, Planet, and Prosperity. With a collaborative mindset, the bank is dedicated to
accelerating social, cultural, environmental, and economic transformations throughout
Bangladesh. By doing so, BRAC Bank aims to create more inclusive communities and enhance
the well-being of its people. The bank actively explores and embraces opportunities in green
climate funds, bankable climate adaptation projects, and green bonds, aligning its impact
with the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and the government's development
priorities.

10.01 Capital Structure

= Authorized capital - 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of BDT 10 each
Total amount-BDT 20,000,000,000

= |ssued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital

Particulars (Figures in BDT) plip 2021
ELO0,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/- each 1,000,000,000 1.000,000,000
issued for cash !
1,142,355,082 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/- each
issued as bonus share

26,400,000 Right Shares of Tk. 10/- each issued

11,423,550,820 10,379,421,530

: 264,000,000 264,000,000
in 2008 2 _
i2{12;}'5&315;42,288 Right Shares of Tk. 10/- each issued 216,522,880 2.216,522,880
1,149,589 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/- each issued
as 1st bond converted share in 2016 [ LLAE.E0 N 11,195,890
2,237,835 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/- each issued

| as 2nd bond converted share in'R017 ?2‘378'350 45,318,550 |
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2,790,534 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/- each issued
as 3rd bond converted share in 2018 21,305,340 afpusea0
Total: 14,965,853,280 | 13,921,723,990

10.02 Business

The core business of BRAC bank is to provide financial services, primarily involving the
acceptance of deposits and lending money to individuals & businesses. BRAC Bank has a wide
range of financial services & products available for customers, as mentioned below:

SME (Deposit Products/Services)

Prothom Account
Shadhin Current Account
Prapti (Current Account)
TARA SME Deposit

TARA Prothom Account
TARA Shonchoy Monthly Deposit
Prachurjo Fixed Deposit
Shonchoy SME Deposit

. EKOTA Current Account
10. DIPTO Fixed Deposit

11. UDDIPON Fixed Deposit

CENOUI AW

SME (Asset Products/Services)

Women Entrepreneur Loan

Agriculture Finance

Commercial Vehicle Financing

Cash Secured Loan

Secured Loan

Unsecure quick loan for CMSE

Loan for E-commerce & F-commerce businesses
Financing for new entrepreneurs

. Business loan for remittance earners’ families
10. Unsecured loan with unsecured higher loan Llimit

CENOUIAWNE

Corporate (Services)

1. Cash Management
Custodial Service
Probashi Biniyog Deposit
Agency

Buying House

Digital Banking
Employee Banking

N A WN

Corporate (Deposit)

1. Current Account
2. SND Account
3. Term Deposit

ahbubur Rahman FCS M Masud R?"af‘:g”. <SG F NN ESAN Tanzim Alamaif
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4, FCY Account
Corporate (Funded Facilities)

Overdraft

Working Capital
Trade Finance
Project Finance
Work Order Finance
Refinance

Lease Finance

Bill Discounting

. Invoice Financing
10. Syndication Loans
11. Supply Chain Finance

ol e Ll Al SR g

Corporate (Non-Funded Facilities)

1. Import LC

2. Export LC

3. Letter of Guarantee

4. Documentary Collections

Retail (Deposit Products)

1. Flexi & Classic Deposit Schemes
2. Savings Account

3. Current Account

4. Fixed Deposit

Retail (Loan Products)

Personal Loan

Auto Loan

Home Loan

Secured Loan/Overdraft
Credit Cards

O s bk ek b

10.03 Shareholding Structure & Board of Directors

Shareholding Status: (as on December 31%, 2022)

Shareholders Ownership (%)
Sponsors & Directors 46.24%

| Foreign 33.64%
Others c 20.12%
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Board of Directors:
SL Name Board Position
1 | Mr. Meheriar M. Hasan Chairman
2 | Mr. Asif Saleh Nominated Director
3 | Ms. Fahima Choudhury Independent Director
4 | Ms. Farzana Ahmed ' Independent Director
5 | Dr. Zahid Hussain Independent Director J
6 | Mr.Shameran Bahar Abed Nominated Director
7 | Dr. Mustafa Kamal Mujeri Independent Director
8 | Mr. Farug Mayeenuddin Ahmed Independent Director
9 | Mr. Salek Ahmed Abul Masrur Independent Director
| 10 | Mr. Selim R. F. Hussain Managing Director & CEO

Management Committee:

SL Name Designation
| 1. | Mr.Selim R. F. Hussain Managing Director & CEO
2. | Mr. Md. Sabbir Hossain Deputy Managing Director & CO0
3. | Mr. Mohammod Masud Rana FCA Deputy Managing Director & CFO
4. | Mr. Tareq Refat Ullah Khan DMD & Head of Corporate Banking
5, | Mr. Chowdhury Moinul Islam Deputy Managing Director & CAMLCO
| 6. | Mr. Syed Abdul Momen DMD & Head of SME Banking |
7. | Mr. Md Shaheen Igbal, CFA DMD & Head of Treasury & Fls
8. | Brigadier General Md. Amin Akbar (Retd.) | Head of General Services =
9. | Mr. M Sarwar Ahmed Head of Internal Controls & Compliance
10. | Mr. Nazmur Rahim Head of Alternate Banking Channels
11. | Mr. Ahmed Rashid Joy ] Head of CRM & Acting CRO
12. | Mr. Md Mahiul Islam Head of Retail Banking
13. | Mr. Md. Muniruzzaman Molla Head of Operations
14. | Mr. Akhteruddin Mahmood Head of Human Resources
15. | Mr. Ekram Kabir Head of Communications |
16 | Mr. Sheikh Mohammad Ashfaque Head of Branches ’
17. | Barrister Rasheed Ahmed Head of Legal & Recovery
18 | Nurun Nahar Begum Chief Technology Officer
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10.04 Description of Encumbered & Unencumbered Assets

There were no encumbered assets. All assets were unencumbered as of December 31, 2022.

Encumbered and unencumbered assets position as of 31 Dec 2022 is as below:

Figures In BDT

Total Assets (Solo) Encumbered Unencumbered
563,238,978,302 - | 563,238,978,302
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Managing Director & CEO
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10.05 Profile of Board of Directors

Meheriar M. Hasan
Chairman

Mr.Meheriar M. Hasan is a global thought leader, an innovator, and a voice of authority in the
realm of digital banking. He brings with him over 35 years of rich experience in breakthrough
innovation and pathbreaking disruption, building direct/digital distribution channels to
generate new profit sources at some of the world's largest financial institutions. He
possesses an unparalleled track record in enabling businesses to accelerate profitable
growth through design thinking and building multi-channel sales/ service processes and
platforms.

Mr. Hasan founded Terafina Inc, a leading digital omnichannel sales solution provider in
financial services. He also served as Senior Advisor to McKinsey from 2012 to 2014 and was
a guest lecturer at the University of Southern California, Marshall School of Business, from
2006 to 2008. Mr. Hasan holds a Master of Science in Finance, Master of Arts in Economics,
and Bachelor of Arts in Economics with a minor in Mathematics from the University of
Arizona.

Some of Mr. Hasan's distinguished engagements include:

1. Defined the vision and led the building of Terafina, which was ranked amongst the
top two fintech disruptors by Celent. Terafina was acquired by NCR Corporation in
February 2021.

2. As head of digital banking at the US Bank, he led the build-out of one of the largest
digital banking channels in the country in record time, which now delivers millions of
dollars of bottom line. The digital channel ranked first in over customer experience
by Keynote, a third-party benchmark.

3. As Executive Vice President at Wells Fargo, he designed and developed one of the
largest direct-to-consumer/ digital lending channels in the financial services
industry, resulting in 100 percent growth in revenue, 118 per cent growth in net
income, and 104 per cent growth in portfolio balance over three years.

4. He designed and delivered the largest digital sales channel in the financial services
industry at Wells Fargo, integrating call center and branch, which resulted in a 190
per cent growth in core bank product and investment product sales over two years.

5. He was responsible for the design, engineering, and management of B2B and B2C
products for Digital Insight, the largest online banking application service provider in
the US to serve credit unions and small/mid-sized banks.

6. At Transamerica, he pioneered the first private-labeled direct-to-consumer channel
in the insurance industry, fully integrated with ing@pendent agencies and business
back-office operations.
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over his long and resplendent career, Mr. Hasan, in addition to his current role, is the Director
of the Board of BRAC Bank Limited and bKash Limited.

Asif Saleh
Nominated Director

Asif Saleh is the executive director of BRAC. He brings with him a diverse multi-sectoral
experience in senior leadership roles in private, public, and non- government sectors, with a
proven track record of effectively managing interfaces of development programming,
operational and financial sustainability, and building effective partnerships, both within and
outside BRAC,

Prior to joining BRAC, Mr. Saleh worked as a policy specialist for the Access to Information
(a2i) Programme at the Prime Minister’s Office in Bangladesh. As part of the Government's
Digital Bangladesh initiative, he led the policy effort to expand affordable broadband
connectivity across Bangladesh and devised the Government's m-governance strategy. He
spent 12 years in Goldman Sachs in different fin-tech roles in New York and London ending
his term there as an Executive Director. He has also worked in Glaxo Wellcome, IBM and
Nortel.

Mr. Saleh is a non-resident fellow at the Center for Global Development in Washington, D.C.
He is also an active member in a range of international networks and alliances advocating
inclusive achievement of the Sustainable Development Goals. He is a member of the Millions
Learning International Advisory Group, Brookings Institute, a member of the advisory group
of South Africa-based Innovation Edge, an institution promoting early childhood
development. He is a member of the global board for Generate Unlimited, a global body of
UNICEF promoting youth skills, and also a member of the global governing council of Water
Resource Group 2030.

Mr. Saleh chairs BRAC IT Services Limited, co-chairs BRAC Net, and is on the Board of BRAC
Bank, bKash, and Edotco Bangladesh Ltd. He also chairs the Institute of Informatics and
Development.

He was recognised for his work by Asia Society's Asia 21 programme in 2008, the Bangladeshi
American Foundation in 2007, and was selected as an Asia 21 Fellow in 2012. He was selected
as a Young Global Leader by the World Economic Forum in 2013.

Mr. Saleh holds a Bachelor's degree in computer science and an MBA in management and
marketing from the Stern School of Business New York University.
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Shameran Bahar Abed
Nominated Director

Mr. Shameran Abed is the Executive Director of BRAC International.

Shameran joined BRAC Bangladesh in 2009 and BRAC International in 2012, and has been
instrumental in bringing BRAC's flagship programmes of microfinance and ultra-poor
graduation to global scale. Under his leadership, BRAC International's microfinance portfolio
has seen impressive growth and a renewed focus on client impact. Since 2016, Shameran has
also led BRAC's ultra-poor graduation work and played an instrumental role in setting up the
UPGI to spearhead global advocacy and provide technical assistance to governments and
other organizations.

Shameran has significant Board experience on several non-profit and corporate entities,
chairing the board of bKash, BRAC Bank's mobile financial services subsidiary and one of the
world's largest mobile money providers, and serving on the boards of several institutions.
Shameran holds a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from Hamilton College in the United States
and is a qualified Barristerin the UK.

Fahima Choudhury
Independent Director

Ms. Fahima Choudhury was appointed as an Independent Director to the Board of BRAC Bank
Limited in April 2018. At present, she is also the member of the Board Risk Management
Committee and the Board Audit Committee.

Since end-2018, Ms. Choudhury also serves as a BRAC Bank Nominated Director on the boards
of BRAC-EPL Investments Ltd. and BRAC-EPL Stock Brokerage Ltd.; and is currently the Chair
of both these companies. She is also Director of bKash Limited, nominated by BRAC Bank
Limited.

Ms. Choudhury is a management consultant and a marketing communications & advertising
specialist with over 25 years of experience in various entrepreneurial and leadership roles
across multiple firms. Due to her long involvement in the advertising business, she has had
the opportunity to serve diverse range of local and interngtional clients across a number of
sectors and industries.
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Ms. Choudhury started her career in Adcomm Limited (one of the oldest and most renowned
advertising agencies in the country) rising to the position of Director, before moving on to
establish her own integrated marketing communications agency called Marka. Later, Marka
was acquired by Ogilvy & Mather Worldwide (part of the WPP Group), and Ms. Choudhury
became the Managing Director (and shareholder) of Ogilvy & Mather Bangladesh. In the past
she was also a member of Ogilvy APAC regional council, as well as Assistant General Secretary
in the Advertising Agencies Association of Bangladesh. Ms. Choudhury left the advertising
industry in 2020 in order to focus on her consultancy business.

Aside from this, Ms. Choudhury is also a Director of Adcomm Holdings which has business
involvements in various other industries (including hospitality, media and IT).

Ms. Choudhury did her B.Sc. (Hons.) Management and M.Sc. Management from the London
School of Economics & Political Science in the United Kingdom.

Dr. Zahid Hussain
Independent Director

Dr. Zahid Hussain was appointed as Independent Director to the Board of BRAC Bank Limited
on September, 2020. He is also the Member of Board Audit Committee and Board Risk
Management Committee of BRAC Bank Limited.

At present, Dr. Hussain is a Director of BRAC EPL Investment Limited and BRAC EPL Stock
Brokerage Limited. He is also currently associated as a Consultant in the World Bank, Dhaka
Office.

Dr. Hussain retired from the World Bank, which he joined on May 1, 1995, as a Lead Economist
on June 30, 2019. During this time, he was a key member of the bank’s macro, trade, and
investment global practice providing budgetary support (development support credit) and
technical assistance to the government, and prepared growth diagnostics, public
expenditure reviews, periodic macroeconomic updates, and policy notes on macroeconomic
management and structural issues.

Dr. Hussain was also engaged as a Lecturer at Boston University, the University of
Massachusetts Boston and Framingham State College, Framingham, Massachusetts in the
USA during 1987-1992.

Dr. Hussain obtained Ph.D. in Economics from Boston University, USA, in 1992 and completed
Master of Arts in Political Economy from Boston University, USA, in 1987. He earned his MBA
from the Institute of Business Administration, University of Dhaka, Bangladesh in 1979 where
he was a member of the faculty from 1980-1984.

Dr. Hussain has published in numerous journals and articlesfon Economics, Management, and
Business.
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Dr. Mustafa Kamal Mujeri
Independent Director

Dr. Mustafa K. Mujeri was appointed as an Independent Director to the Board of BRAC Bank
Limited in December 2021. He is also the member of the Board Executive Committee of BRAC
Bank Limited.

Dr. Mujeri is currently the Executive Director of the Institute for Inclusive Finance and
Development (InM) and Chairman of the Center for Inclusive Development Dialogue (CIDD).
He also served as the Director General of the Bangladesh Institute of Development Studies
(BIDS) and the Chief Economist of the Bangladesh Bank. During his professional career, he
served as the Poverty Monitoring and Analysis Advisor of UNDP in Cambodia; Project Leader
of the IDRC's Programme on Micro Impact of Macroeconomics and Adjustments Policies
(MIMAP) in Bangladesh; Director Research of the Centre on Integrated Rural Development
for Asia and the Pacific (CIRDAP); Visiting Faculty at the Department of Economics, University
of Queensland, Brisbane: National Expert in the Bangladesh Planning Commission; and
Associate Professor of Economics, University of Rajshahi.

Dr. Mujeri obtained his Ph.D. from McMaster University in Canada in 1978 and M.A in
Economics from McMaster University in 1974 after completing an M.A. in Economics from the
University of Rajshahi, Bangladesh in 1972. He has wide-ranging experience in research and
policy-focused analysis on development issues in different UN and other international
organizations and multilateral, bilateral, and private sector organizations, including NGOs.
He has the experience of working and traveling in many countries and attended workshops,
seminars, and meetings on a wide range of development issues.

Dr. Mujeri has published extensively in national and international journals and written
several books on Bangladesh's economy that was published by some of the leading
international publishing houses. He was also a part of various policy-making and other
committees at both the national and international levels.
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Faruq Mayeenuddin Ahmed
Independent Director

Mr. Faruq Mayeenuddin Ahmed was appointed as an Independent Director to the Board of
BRAC Bank Limited in December 2021. He is also the Chair of the Board Executive Committee
of the bank.

Mr. Ahmed led Trust Bank Limited as its Managing Director and CEO from February 2018 to
February 2021. Before taking up the position, he served as the Additional Managing Director
of the bank.

Prior Joining Trust Bank, Mr. Ahmed served as the Additional Managing Director of The City
Bank Limited and held the positions of their Chief Risk Officer and CAMLCO. He also served
Mercantile Bank and AB Bank Limited as Deputy Managing Director.

After completing BSS Honours and MSS in Economics from the University of Dhaka, Mr.
Ahmed started his career as a Probationary Officer with AB Bank Limited in 1984. He received
Bangladesh Bank Gold Medal and BCCI (erstwhile) Gold Medal in the Banking Diploma
examination in 1987 for securing the first position obtaining above 60 per cent mark. He
gained hands-on experience and knowledge through working in different capacities in
almost all the banking fields at home and abroad. He served the Mumbai office of AB Bank
for five years as Country Manager facilitating correspondent and reimbursement banking
services in India to the Bangladeshi banks. He is a well-rounded banker and has led different
major sectors of banking areas in different phases of his service tenure.

Mr. Ahmed is the founder Chairman of the Association of Anti Money Laundering Compliance
Officers of Banks in Bangladesh (AACOBB) and a life member of the Bangladesh Economic
Association.

Mr. Ahmed has participated in various professional trainings, workshops and seminars at
home and abroad. A regular columnist on banking and economic issues in the national dailies,
Mt. Ahmed has so far authored more than two dozen of books and numerous articles on
economy and banking, capital market, accounting, literature and travel. For his noteworthy
contributions to Bangla language and literature, he received Bangla Academy Award in 2019
in the travel writing category. He also received IFIC Bank Literary Award 2011 for the
excellent translation of ‘A Poet Apart' - the literary biography of poet Jibanananda Das
originally written by Clinton B. Seely and “City-Anando Alo Award 2019 for one of his
travelogues.
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Salek Ahmed Abul Masrur
Independent Director

Mr. Salek Ahmed Abul Masrur was appointed as an Independent Director to the Board of BRAC
Bank Limited in March 2022. He is also the Chair of the Board Risk Management Committee
and member of the Board Executive Committee.

Presently, he is the Chief Executive Officer of The Consolidated Tea & Lands Co. (Bangladesh)
Limited (known as Finlay Tea).

Mr. Masrur is a seasoned banker with 35 years of banking experience in Bangladesh and
international market in senior positions.

Mr. Masrur was the Country Head of Bank Alfalah, Bangladesh from 2009 to 2019, the
longest-serving CEO of any Foreign Bank. He served as Global Head of Origination and Client
Coverage Islamic Banking at Standard Chartered Bank, UAE. He was also the Director
Portfolio Management of Standard Chartered Bank, Singapore from Sept 2005 to June 2007.
He served as Head of Client Relationship from 2002 to 2005 at Standard Chartered Bank,
Bangladesh, and as Head of Corporate Banking of Citibank NA, Bangladesh from 2000 to
2001. He also served as the Head of Corporate Banking in Standard Chartered Bank from
1995 to 1999.

He started his career at ANZ Grindlays Bank as Management Trainee in 1985. He led different
major sectors of banking areas in different phases during his service tenor.

Mr. Masrur was recognized for his strong leadership skills displayed through leading teams
to success both locally and abroad. He also participated in a good number of professional
trainings, workshops, and seminars both at home and abroad.

Mr. Masrur obtained his MBA Degree from the University of Tennessee, USA, and BBA from
the Trine University in Indiana. He is CSA qualified.

Tanzim Alamgir
Managing Director & CEO

M Masud Rana Fca -
Mahbubur Rahman FCS  pyp & Chief Financial Officer

mpany Secretary BRAC Bank Limited BRRAC Bank Limited UGB Investment Limited
BRAC. Bilnk Limited . _ Page | 49
rictly Private & Confidential



P/BRAC BANK

SelimR. F. Hussain
Managing Director & CEO

Selim R. F. Hussain is a Bangladeshi career banker with over 35 years of diversified local and
international banking experience. He is currently heading BRAC Bank, one of the leading full-
service commercial banks in Bangladesh, and one that is known for its particular focus on the
SME segment.

Mr. Hussain joined BRAC Bank in November 2015 and in a relatively short time, led the bank
to the top tier of the 60 odd scheduled banks in Bangladesh. He is elected Chairman of the
Association of Bankers Bangladesh Limited for 2022-2023. He is a member of the Governing
Board of the SME Foundation in Bangladesh, an apex semi-government institution
spearheading SME development. He is also a member of the Governing Board of the Financial
Alliance for Women, an international network of financial institutions dedicated to
championing the female economy. Mr. Hussain is also on the Board of the Global Alliance for
Banking on Values (GABV) - an international network of banks that use finance to serve
people and the planet.

Mr. Hussain also represents BRAC Bank in multiple BRAC Bank subsidiaries through board
directorship - at BRAC EPL Investments Ltd, BRAC EPL Stock-Brokerage Ltd, BRAC Saajan
Exchange Ltd, and BRAC IT Services Limited. He is the Chairman of the Board Audit
Committee of bKash, the largest mobile financial service company in Bangladesh, and also
the Vice-Chairman of the Industrial Infra-structure Development Finance Company (lIDFC),
a non-banking finance company. He is the Chairman of Association of Bankers Bangladesh
Limited, a professional forum of the CEOs of the commercial banks in Bangladesh.
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10.06 Profile of Management

Selim R. F. Hussain
Managing Director & CEO

Selim R. F. Hussain is a Bangladeshi career banker with over 35 years of diversified local and
international banking experience. He is currently heading BRAC Bank, one of the leading full-
service commercial banks in Bangladesh, and one that is known for its particular focus on the
SME segment.

Mr. Hussain joined BRAC Bank in November 2015 and in a relatively short time, led the bank
to the top tier of the 60 odd scheduled banks in Bangladesh. He is elected Chairman of the
Association of Bankers Bangladesh Limited for 2022-2023. He is a member of the Governing
Board of the SME Foundation in Bangladesh, an apex semi-government institution
spearheading SME development. He is also a member of the Governing Board of the Financial
Alliance for Women, an international network of financial institutions dedicated to
championing the female economy. Mr. Hussain is also on the Board of the Global Alliance for
Banking on Values (GABV) - an international network of banks that use finance to serve
people and the planet.

Mr. Hussain also represents BRAC Bank in multiple BRAC Bank subsidiaries through board
directorship - at BRAC EPL Investments Ltd, BRAC EPL Stock-Brokerage Ltd, BRAC Saajan
Exchange Ltd, and BRACIT Services Limited. He is the Chairman of the Board Audit
Committee of bKash, the largest mobile financial service company in Bangladesh, and also
the Vice-Chairman of the Industrial Infra-structure Development Finance Company (IIDFC),
a non-banking finance company. He is the Chairman of Association of Bankers Bangladesh
Limited, a professional forum of the CEOs of the commercial banks in Bangladesh.

Md Sabbir Hossain
Deputy Managing Director AND COO

Md Sabbir Hossain joined BRAC Bank Limited as a Deputy Managing Director (DMD) and the
Chief Operating Officer (CO0) on September 01, 2019.

Hossain brings more than two decades of diversified experience in technology and
operations. He joined Standard Chartered Bank (SCB) in 1994 and contributed for more than
23 years in building state of the art technology and operational processes. During his tenure
with SCB, he was Head of Banking Operations, Branch Operations, Personal Banking,
Proximity Banking, Country Technology, Operational Risk & Service Quality, and finally took
over the role of Head of Corporate, Institutional and Commercial Banking Operations before
leaving in December 2017.

He also worked for Citibank N.A. as Country Head, Operations & Technology for a brief period
of time. Prior to joining BRAC Bank, Hossain was the COO in MetLife.

He graduated from Bangladesh University of Engineering and Technology in Electrical &
Electronics Engineering and completed his MBA from North South University.

He will lead the Operations, Technology and the General Services functions of the bank.
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Mohammod Masud Rana FCA
Deputy Managing Director and CFO

Mohammod Masud Rana joined BRAC Bank Limited as Deputy Managing Director (DMD) and
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) on October 01, 2019.

With more than 23 years of diversified experience of public accounting, textile,
pharmaceutical and banking, Mr. Masud brings additional technical expertise and diversified
corporate experience to the leadership team at BRAC Bank. He started his career with SF
Ahmed & Co. before joining BEXIMCO Garments & Textile Division in 2001 as Finance
Manager. In 2004, he moved to Sanofi-Aventis as Financial Controller. He started his stint
with Standard Chartered Bangladesh (SCB) in 2006 as the Financial Controller. During his
tenure with SCB, he eventually went on to assume the role of CFO in 2016. Prior to joining
BRAC Bank, Mr. Masud was serving the role of CFO in Dhaka Bank Limited.

He is a Fellow Chartered Accountant of ICAB and completed his Honors and Masters in
Accounting from University of Dhaka

Tareq Refat Ullah Khan
Deputy Managing Director and Head of Corporate Banking

Tareq Refat Ullah Khan joined BRAC Bank Limited as the Head of Credit Risk Management on
March February 01, 2017. Later on March 30, 2017, he took over charges as the Head of
Corporate Banking Division.

Mr. Tareq has around 20 years of professional exposure in banking industry in various
capacities. He has started his career in 1996 with IFIC Bank Ltd and performed different roles
there in various positions till 2003. He has also worked for AB Bank Ltd. Prior to Joining BRAC
he was working for EBL as EVP and Head of Relationship in corporate Banking Division. Mr.
Tareq was awarded “CEQ” and “Chairman” Award by EBL for his consecutive outstanding
performances. He has also attended numerous trainings/workshops/seminars on Credit Risk,
Loan structuring, corporate structure, Leadership, International Trade etc. in Home and
abroad namely Malaysia, Bahrain, Germany and Italy.

Mr. Tareq completed B.Com under University of Chittagong and M.Com in Marketing from the
University of Dhaka. He also completed his MBA and Credit Risk Assessment by Omega
Performance Corporation, UK.

Mr. Tareq Refat Ullah Khan brings in a wealth of Corporate Relationship & Risk Management
experience to BRAC Bank Limited.

Chowdhury Moinul Islam
Deputy Managing Director and CAMLCO

Chowdhury Moinul Islam joined BRAC Bank on 20 June 2021 as its Deputy Managing Director
and CAMLCO.

Moinul has over 30 years of experience in the banking industry. He started his career with
American Express (AmEx) Bank as Manager Internal Control. Before joining BRAC Bank, he
was working as the Executive Director and Head of Conduct and Financial Crime Compliance
(CFCC) Advisory with Standard Chartered Bank (SCB) Banglgdesh.

Tanzim Alamagir
Managing Director & QEO
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Mainul joined SCB in 2005 and worked till 2016 before moving to the United States of
America where he worked as an AML Business System Analyst at SunTrust Bank. Returning
from the US, he joined back in SCB.

Moinul is a seasoned professional in the area of AML/CFT compliance, internal control and
risk management. He is a member of the Association of Certified Anti Monet Laundering
Specialists (ACAMS) and also has CAMS certification. He completed his graduation and
masters in Accounting from the University of Dhaka.

Syed Abdul Momen
Deputy Managing Director and Head of SME

Syed Abdul Momen took over as the Head of SME Banking on July 13, 2017.

Syed Abdul Momen joined BRAC Bank in August 2005. He has 13 years of multifaceted
experience in the Banking Sector primarily concentrating in Technology, Operations and
Business Functions.

During the first 2 years in BRAC Bank, he restructured technology infrastructure and played
a crucial role in the Core Banking Platform migration. In August 2007, Momen was posted in
BRAC Afghanistan Bank as Chief Operating Officer (CO0) on a 2 year secondment. During his
tenure in Afghanistan, he looked after the bank's SME Business & expanded bank's network
in three provinces. He has also contributed in the development of SME Banking Policies &
Guidelines of Central Bank of Afghanistan.

After his return from Afghanistan in 2009, he joined BRAC Bank's SME Division and ran a
special collection project, which was portfolio's prime concern. After successfully driving the
countrywide collection initiative, he was appointed as the Head of Small Business in July
2010 and since then he is leading the industry's largest small business portfolio. His team
was awarded Chairman's Excellence Award in 2012 for extraordinary business achievement.
Mr. Momen started his careerin ANZ Grindlays Bank in 1999 where he played an instrumental
role in the migration of Core Banking Platform in Middle East & South Asia region including
Bangladesh, Jordan, Oman, Qatar, UAE, Bahrain, Nepal, Sri Lanka after the acquisition of
Grindlays Bank's operation by Standard Chartered Bank. He was also instrumental in
standard Chartered Bank's IT service delivery & business process centralization Project.

Mr. Momen is a Computer Communications Graduate from Middlesex University, UK with
distinction. During his 13 years of banking career, he attended numerous seminars, trainings
and workshops in and out of country.

Md. Shaheen Igbal, CFA
Deputy Managing Director and Head of Treasury & Financial Institutions

Md. Shaheen Igbal, Head of Treasury and Financial Institutions, has been promoted to the
position of Deputy Managing Director at BRAC Bank on April 1, 2022.

Mr. Igbal has gained extensive experience in the arena of Treasury Management and
Relationship Management with global and local counterparts over the course of his
illustrious career.

His career at BRAC Bank began in 2004 as Manager, Assetfiability Management (ALM). He
rose to the rank of Head of Tregsury &&inancial Institutionk in 2014 by proving his mettle in
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the fields of foreign exchange, money market, capital market, asset liability management
and relationship management with global & local financial institutions.

He started his career in BEXIMCO where he gained hands-on experience in the Textile
Industry. Afterwards, his overture to the banking industry began in 1999 at Dutch Bangla
Bank Limited where he honed his prowess in both branch banking and international trade.

Mr. Igbal completed his B.Sc. in Mechanical Engineering from Bangladesh Institute of
Technology, Chattogram (now CUET) and M.B.A. from Institute of Business Administration
(IBA), University of Dhaka. He earned prestigious Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) charter
from CFA Institute, Virginia, USA. He is currently serving as the president of the CFA Society
Bangladesh, a member society of CFA Institute, USA.

Brigadier General Md. Amin Akbar (Retd.)
Head of General Services

Brigadier General Md. Amin Akbar (Retired) is an accomplished Bangladesh Army officer who
joined BRAC Bank as Head of General Services Division (GSD) on December 1, 2022.

Mr. Amin brings onboard his years of experience and expertise relevant to all four functional
areas of General Services: Procurement, Infrastructure, Development & Maintenance (IDM),
General Administration (GA), and Safety & Security. Regarding procurement, Mr. Amin was a
member of the highest procurement body (GSPC) of the Bangladesh Army and comes with an
in-depth understanding of procurement processes, tools and methods. As regards IDM, he
has supervised functions of Military Engineering Services (MES) and other asset
management agencies in the Army responsible for property acquisition and development,
construction projects and maintenance functions.

Running General Administration and Safety & Security affairs is his forte, developed through
years of supervising similar functions in the Army as a senior commander and staff officer.
Mr. Amin is a multi-tasker and a proponent of cross-functional teamwork. He has mastery in
stakeholder management and comes with professional networks in the security and
intelligence community at different tiers of the government and administration.

Mr. Amin is an MBA (Major in Finance) from the University of Dhaka. Additionally, he earned
two more master's degrees, one in Strategic Studies from the USA and another in Defense
Studies from National University, Bangladesh. He was a top graduate of his Staff Course class
at Mirpur Cantonment and earned a prestigious ‘psc’ symbol. He is also a US Army Command
& General Staff College, Kansas, USA graduate. As a senior leader, he attended US Army War
College, Pennsylvania and earned the ‘ndc’ symbol. Mr. Amin is an avid golfer and enjoys
intellectual discourse

M. Sarwar Ahmed
Head of Internal Control and Compliance

M. Sarwar Ahmed is the Head of Internal Control and Compliance (HolCC) of BRAC Bank
Limited.

Sarwar started his career with
Probationary Officer (5th BatcK). Afténgerving there in various roles, he left ABBL to join the
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Premier Bank Limited in July 1999 and contributed significantly in organizing the formal
opening of the Bank and later of its Agrabad Branch.

Sarwar joined BRAC Bank Limited on 1st January, 2002 as the Credit Manager- Retail. Later
on, he served as Branch and Cluster Manager in two key branches - Motijheel & Gulshan for
the period from 2003 to 2006. In June 2006, he organized and headed Impaired Assets
Management of BRAC Bank and continued in this role up to 2010. He assumed the role of
Head of SAM - SME & Retail in July 2010. In 2013, he briefly headed SME Collections before
taking over his role of Head of Monitoring in July 2013. Sarwar also double hatted as Regional
Head of Distribution from June 2017 to June 2018.

Sarwar has completed his B.A. and M.A. from University of Dhaka with distinction. He also
attended a good number of professional trainings, workshops and seminars at home and
abroad.

Nazmur Rahim
Head of Alternate Banking Channels

Nazmur Rahim joined BRAC Bank Limited on May 04, 2016. He took over as the Head of Retail
Banking on January 01, 2017.

Mr. Nazmur has 19+ years of corporate experiences in different leading organizations. He
began his career as a Management Trainee in ANZ Grindlays Bank Limited and later joined
Standard Chartered Bank where he worked in different senior, mainly Retail Banking,
capacities including the role of Head of Portfolio, Credit Cards and Consumer Transaction
Banking. Prior to joining BRAC Bank Limited, Mr. Nazmur was Head of Cards Business at AB
Bank Limited

He completed his BBA from Jahangirnagar University and MBA from Victoria University of
Australia.

Ahmed Rashid Joy
Head of Credit Risk Management

Ahmed Rashid Joy joined BRAC Bank Limited as Head of Credit Risk Management (CRM) on
October 01, 2019.

Rashid brings more than 20 years of diversified experience in the Bangladesh financial
sector. He started his banking career as a Management Trainee with Eastern Bank (EBL) in
1999. In EBL, he worked in various positions in Credit Risk Management & Consumer Finance
for 10 years. In 2009, he moved to SME Banking in EBL as the Head of Medium Business. In
2011, Rashid joined International Finance Corporation (IFC) as a Financial Market Specialist,
In Advisory Services across South Asia, he led various sectorial projects in SME Banking,
Weather Based Index Insurance, Risk Management & Agri-Finance in Bangladesh, Bhutan and
Nepal.

In 2014, he joined Mutual Trust Bank (MTBL) as an EVP and Head of SME Banking. In 2015,
Rashid joined IDLC Finance Ltd. as a General Manager and Head of the SME Division. At IDLC,
he was also a nominated Director in IDLC Securities Ltd. and IDLC Investment Ltd.

He completed his Masters in Bank Management (MBM) in 1998 from Bangladesh Institute of
Bank Management (BIBM)
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Md. Mahiul Islam
Head of Retail Banking

Md. Mahiul Islam joined BRAC Bank Limited as Head of Retail Banking on December 1, 2019.
Mahi brings with him more than 20 years of banking experience, having started his career
with Standard Chartered Bank, Bangladesh. At SCB, Mahi served in various roles, including,
credit card services, card operations, employee banking, retail products & segments,
marketing & service quality, etc. He has, at various times, held multiple roles in the SCB Retail
Banking Division and has also headed the Country Brand and Marketing unit.

Mahi completed his BBA in Finance from Independent University Bangladesh.

Md. Muniruzzaman Molla
Head of Operations

Mr. Md. Muniruzzaman Molla joined BRAC Bank Limited as the Head of Operations on 23
October 2016.

Prior to joining BRAC Bank Limited, Mr. Munir was working as Head of Country Operations in
Habib Bank Limited.

Mr. Munir started his career with ANZ Grindlays Bank in 1993 where he worked in branch
operations and trade finance areas. Later, he joined Citibank N.A. in 2000 where he worked
in different capacities of Head of Trade Operations, Treasury & FI Operations and Head of
Cash Management Operations & Citi Service. Munir completed his B.S.S. and M.S.S. from
University of Dhaka.

Akhteruddin Mahmood
Head of Human Resources

Akhteruddin Mahmood joined BRAC Bank as the Head of Human Resources on January i)
2021.

Before joining BRAC Bank, Mahmood was the Group Head of Human Resources for four years
at IDLC Finance Limited.

Mahmood has over 33 years of professional experience in various foreign and local
multinational companies and large-scale sectors. He started his career in the Bangladesh Air
Force (BAF) in 1987. Mahmood later worked for British American Tobacco Bangladesh and
Nestlé Bangladesh. He was also the Head of Learning and Training at Nestlé South Asia, based
in its Regional Head Office in Gurgaon, India.

Ekram Kabir
Head of Communications

Ekram Kabir joined BRAC Bank Limited as the Head of Communications and a member of

Senior Management Team on 15th May, 2019.

Mr. Ekram Kabir is a Communications Professional, bringing to us more than 28 years of
experience in Media, Journalism, Communications and CSR. He started his career with The

Daily Star in 1991 before moving on to The Financial Express in 1993. In 2001, he moved to

the digital media and joined Ekushey Television as Senior Edjtor. From 2004 to 2011, he

served in the BBC in different capacitjes. After the BBC, he toolf over the Editorial role in "ICE

Business Times”. In 2013, he ead of News in Ekattor TVAFrom 2014 to 2015, he —
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served as Head of Programme in ABC Radio. Prior to joining BRAC Bank, he had been working
in Robi Axiata for over four years and, latterly, was Vice President managing Media,
Communications and Sustainability.

Mr. Ekram Kabir completed both M.A. and B.A. in English Literature from the University of
Dhaka.

Sheikh Mohammad Ashfaque
Head of Branches

A trained MIT Sloan School of Management professional, Sheikh Mohammad Ashfaque is the
newest member of the BRAC Bank Management team. With 16 years of banking experience
in Large Corporate, Retail Banking and Distribution Network - Ashfagque was a Management
Trainee of BRAC Bank and the first homegrown talent to reach the ManCom.

He joined the bank in 2006 and successfully performed in different roles in the capacity of a
Branch Manager, a Cluster Manager, the Head of Corporate Branches and the Regional Head
of Branch Banking. He is now the Head of Branches of 187 Branch Distribution Network,
Premium Banking and Branch Corporate Team and currently looks after 1,800 people of BRAC
Bank.

Once the nominated ambassador of BRAC Bank to the GABV (Global Alliance for Banking on
Values) forum, Ashfaque received extensive leadership training of multiple rounds in four
different member-countries of GABV. He is now an active alumnus of the GABV forum.
Throughout his career, he has received numerous awards and recognitions for his noteworthy
contribution to BRAC Bank.

Ashfaque is a graduate of the University of Dhaka and an MBA from North South University
majoring in Finance. He is an avid Traveler and Netflix follower.

Barrister Rasheed Ahmed
Head of Legal and Recovery

Barrister Rasheed Ahmed joined BRAC Bank on September 19, 2010. Before joining BRAC
Bank, Rasheed served as Legal Affairs Manager at Orascom Telecom Limited (Banglalink).
Rasheed has over 19 years of experience in corporate legal practices, having worked with
some of the most reputed law chambers in the country, and multinational companies, such
as Grameenphone Limited, LM Ericsson Bangladesh Limited and Huawei Technologies
Bangladesh Limited.

Rasheed obtained LL.B (Hons) and LL.M degrees from the University of Rajshahi, Bangladesh,
and an LL.B (Hons) degree from the University of Wolverhampton, UK. Furthermore, he went
on to acquire Post Graduate Diploma in Law from the University of Northumbria, UK, and he
was called to the bar at Lincoln's Inn UK. He is also a BIBM Bangladesh Certified Expert in Anti
Money Laundering and Financial Crime.

Nurun Nahar Begum
Chief Technology Officer

Nurun Nahar Begum was appointed the Chief Technology Officer (CTO) of BRAC Bank from 01
January 2022.
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Nahar joined BRAC Bank in 2001. Before the appointment of CTO, she was the Head of Core
Banking in the Technology Division of the bank. She has successfully performed multiple
roles within the division and has contributed enormously towards building a strong
technology infrastructure of the bank in the last two decades.

Apart from her core responsibilities, Nahar also heads "TARA" - BRAC Bank's Internal Women
Forum that has played a pivotal role in establishing BRAC Bank as one of the most women-
friendly banks in Bangladesh.

Nahar completed both her Honors and Masters in Finance and Banking from Dhaka
University. She also completed a Post-Graduate Diploma in Bank Management & IT from
BRAC University and a Diploma in Programming & Information Technology from BRAC
Information and Technology Institute, Dhaka.
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10.07 Description of Assets & Liabilities

As per section 33 of Bank Company Act, 1991 (amended up to 2013), MPD circular No. 03
dated 09 April 2020 for Domestic Banking Operation (DBO) & BRPD circular No. 31 dated 18
June 2020 for Offshore Banking Operation (OBO) issued by Bangladesh Bank, BRAC Bank
Limited has been maintaining 3.5% & 1.5% CRR on daily basis and 4.0% & 2.0% on bi-weekly
basis for DBO & OBO respectively. CRR requirement is calculated on the basis of weekly
average total demand and time liabilities (ATDTL) of a base month which is two months back
of the reporting month (i.e. CRR of December 2022 is maintained on the basis of weekly
ATDTL of October 2022), according to DOS Circular No. 1 & 26 and BRPD circular No. 31 issued
on 19 January 2014, 19 August 2019 and 18 June 2020 respectively for both DBO & OBO.

Total Cash amount for BBL Group stands at BDT 31,871,593,250 and BDT 23,459,424,430 in
2022 and 2021 respectively. Total Cash amount for BBL Standalone it stands at BDT
31,776,214,097 and BDT 22,676,943,467 in 2022 and 2021 respectively.

Cash amount rose significantly for both group and solo categories in 2022,

ASSETS

Consolidated Standalone

Particulars (BDT)

2022 2021 2022 2021

Cash:

" Cash In Hand (Including
Foreign Currency)

11,918,067,777

9,207,161,626

11,822,688,624

8,424,680,663 |

Balance With BB & Its
Agent Bank(S)
(Including Foreign
Currency)

19,953,525,473

14,252,262,804

19,953,525,473

14,252,262,804

Total Cash 31,871,593,250 | 23,459,424,430 | 31,776,214,097 | 22,676,943,467
Cash In Hand:

Local Currency 11,836,218,828 9,166,408,109 11,740,839,675 8,383,927,146
Foreign Currency 81,848,949 40,753,517 81,848,949 40,753,517_
Total Currencies: 11,918,067,777 | 9,207,161,626 | 11,822,688,624 | 8,424,680,663

~ Balance With BB And
Its Agent Banks

Local Currency

17,384,764,667

12,208,257,526

17,384,764,667

12,208,257,526 |

Foreign Currency

1,611,159,007

961,504,172

1,611,159,007 |

961,504,172

Sonali Bank As An
Agent Of BB (Local
Currency

957,601,799

1,082,501,106

957,601,799

1,082,501,106

Total Balance

19,953,525,473

14,252,262,804

19,953,525,473 |

14,252,262,804
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Consolidated Standalone

Particulars (BDT)

2022 2021 2021

Balance With Other Banks and Financial Institutions

47,797,240,230 | 70,561,465,538 | 11,127,982,840
5,154,104,047 7,699,847,372 5,127,551,884

Balance Inside Bd
In Current Deposit '

Accounts With: Banks LhAseSug s )

| Less: Inter il

Unit/Company

Elimination

| In Fixed Deposit

Accounts With: Banks

| Non-Banking

Financial Institutions

(NBFls)

Less: Inter

Unit/Company

| Elimination

| Total Balance at The

\Ed of The Year

Inside BD
Qutside BD

12,261,365,946
7619,585,199

127,982,840 121,365,946

15,137,298,752

3,743,224,457 3,578,641,104 - -

32,060,644,035 | 57,278,619,910

7,300,000,000 5,200,000,000

3,700,000,000 6,940,000,000 3,700,000,000 6,940,000,000

2,115,165,839 5,215,812,020 : -

70,561,465,538 12,261,365,946

47,797,240,230 11,127,982,840

BBL Group has increased their investment portfolio to BDT 116,551,993,858 in 2022 from
BDT 70,068,593,304 in 2021. BBL has kept their most of their holdings in government
securities.

Loans & Advances portfolio (solo) has expanded to BDT 410,676,406,960 in 2022 from BDT
321,212,230,987

in 2021. A major portion of loans & advances goes to Small to Medium Enterprises.

Consolidated Standalone

Particulars (BDT)

2022 2021

| Money At Call on

Stort Nistos 6,826,376,000 | 3,500,000,000 | 6,826,376,000 |  3,500,000,000
Investments: 116,551,993,858 | 70,068,593,304 | 64,287,682,264 | 51,590,814,842
Government 107,319,008,486 | 60,998,642,835 | 56,637,669,673 | 44,051,798,178
Others 9,232,985372 | 9,069,950,469 | 7,650,012,591 |  7,539,016,664

Loans & Advances

412,084,750,584

| 322,135,188,439

410,676,406,960

321,212,230,987

ﬂerdrafts Etc.

| Loans, Cash Credit,

| 222,711,877,598

169,128,372,833

221,303,533,974

168,205,415,381

SMEs

187,247,111,913

150,749,009,625

187,247,111,913

150,749,009,625

*Bills Purchased &
| Discounted

2,125,761,073

2,257,805,981 |

2,125,761,073

2,257,805,981 ‘

*Bills purchased and discounted excludes bills purchasedpnd discounted of small and
medium enterprises (SME).
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Consolidated Standalone
Particulars (BDT)
2022 2021

Loans, Cash

Credit, Overdrafts | 222,711,877,598 | 169,128,372,833 221,303,533,974 | 168,205,415,381

Etc.: |

Overdrafts 14,264,660,532 9,386,377,592 14,264,660,532 | 9,386,377,592
| Demand Loans 93,550,846,726 63,339,447,043 93,550,846,726 63,339,447,043

Term Loans 101,066,162,683 84,980,045,030 | 101,066,162,683 84,980,045,030

Lease Receivables 488,267,689 823,850,563 488,267,689 823,850,563

Credit Cards 10,794,068,205 8,662,449,791 10,794,068,205 8,562,449,791

Staff‘LDans

1:152:911,62.7

© 1,123,591,696

1,139,528,139

1,113,245,362

Margin Loans

2,383,856,084

1,769,581,139

Less:
Intercompany
| Elimination

988,895,848

856,970,021

Particulars (BDT)

Consolidated

Stan

dalone

Fixed Assets:

2022

2021

2022

2021

| Land

527,275,400

527,275,400 |

527,275,400

527,275,400

Office Floor Space

20,855,926

20,855,926

4,034,334

4,034,334

Furniture & Fixture

2,387,318,002

2,336,543,136

2,170,822,095

2,140,914,382

Office Equipment

1,473,696,734

1,450,379,835

1,361,168,512

1,344,953,601

It Hardware 7.029,432,768 | 6,284,258,630 | 3,275504,031 | 3,049,688,043
Motor Vehicles 650,117,297 504,714,769 422,497,790 354,296,880
Leasehold 157,107,776 134,421,114 | : -
Improvements )

(ROU)

Right Of Use Assets

7,299,267,882

6,448,373,021

6,103,024,179

5,489,602,469

Capex Work in Progress | '

584,054,423

585,568,883

207,119,223

251,206,514

IT Software (Finite
Useful Lives)

7,542,139,410

6,081,922,651

2,800,445,366

2,322,117,221

| Total Cost

27,671,265,618

24,374,313,365

16,871,890,930

| 15,484,088,844

Accumulated
Depreciation &
Amaortization

14,207,751,270 |

11,540,143,941 |

9,092,544,237

8,029,221,445

Written Down Value At

31 December

13,463,514,348

12,834,169,424

7,779,346,693

7,454,867,399 |
|

Other Assets include income generating and non-i

portion lies in non-income.
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Particulars (BDT)

Consolidated

2022

2021

P BRAC BANK

Other Assets stands at BDT 20,803,842,677 (group) and BDT 25,626,075,864 (solo) in 2022
and BDT 16,222,224,464 (group) and BDT 22,763,775,341 (solo) in 2021.

Standalone

2022

Others Assets
(Income & Non-
Income Generating)

20,803,842,677

16,222,224,464

25,626,075,864

2021

22,763,775,341

Income Generating:

3,935,576,746

2,856,477,744

17,506,882,843

16,017,856,195

Interest Receivables

3,811,701,206

2,721,178,635

3,811,701,206

2,721,178,635

I Dividend Receivables

Expenditure

69,353,683 35,919,830 69,353,683 35,919,830
Investment in . _ | 13,571,306,097 | 13,161,378,451
Subsidiary | _
Investment/Carrying 21,206,835 21,115,234 21,206,835 21,115,234

Value In Associates o
'S"h":rfme”t In Swift 8,083,464 8,083,464 8,083,464 8,083,464
Prepaid Interest i )

Sk 2 24,511,806 2 24,511,806 |
RECIvabLEs Againist 22,879,838 44,502,037 22,879,838 44,502,037
Sanchayapatra B
Balance With BRAC

EPL Stock Brokerage 2,351,718 1,166,738 2,351,718 1,166,738 |
Limited .

hon-income 16,868,265,931 | 13,365,746,720 | 8,119,193,021 | 6,749,128,070

Generating:

Stock Of Stamps 49,971,414 48,826,086 49,971,414 48,826,086
Stock OF Seeurity 40,311,581 47,369,961 40,311,581 | 47,369,961
Stationery

Stock Of Printing 14,557,854 12,007,770 14,557,854 12,007,770
Stationery

Advance To Staff 7,503,770 6,617,457 7,503,770 6,617,457
Advance To Supplier 30,635,256 30,451,912 9,170,157 24,933,886
?S:a”ce KalE aeaad 5,858,631 4,370,000 5,858,631 4,370,000
Advance 7o SME Unit 1,308,690 1,308,690 1,308,690 1,308,690
Offices

Advance Against 72,000,795 68,234,617 72,000,795 68,234,617
Office Rent i

PNONGTES SECUH 16,571,559 13,362,635 12,103,651 12,103,651
Deposit

Receivables From Bits 154,857,249 187,859,621 154,857,249 187,859,621
Deferred Revenue 231,241,555 173,250,448 231,241,555 173,250,448

Deferred Tax Asset

6,411,981,091

5,233,012,588

4,769,561,708

4,147,255,591

Receivable Settlement |

Account-OBU/DBU - 1.1'166 = 11,166 :
Net Plan Assets -
Employees' Gratuity 13X156,493 | 127,281,040 132,156,493 127,281,040
| Fund P | ﬂ _
&> ’ f
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[ Other Receivables 2,618,589,473 | 1,887,698,086 | 2618589473 | 1,887,698,086
i 7,080,720,520 | 5524,084,643
Subsidiaries , ]

Consolidated Standalone

Particulars (BDT)

2022 2021 2022 2021

Non-Banking Assets: 11,341,700 4,541,700 11,341,700 4,541,700

| Goodwill: 1,372,563,393 | 1,427,468,911 N/A N/A |
EEGAC EPLITNGSTIERLS 246,289,821 | 246,289,821 N/A N/A
BRAC EPL Stock ]

| arokerage Ltd 1,126,273,572 | 1,126,273,572 N/A N,@_
BRACEPL Saajan

| ExchangelLtd 54,?05,518 _N/A N;A_

LIABILITIES

Borrowings From Other Banks, Fis & Agents (solo) have increased to BDT 38,685,377,271
in 2022 from BDT 24,134,564,025 in 2021. Borrowings from BB & Government Agencies
(solo) have also rose to BDT 42,184,501,809 in 2022 from BDT 23,175,903,824 in 2021.

Deposit Balance (solo) has expanded to BDT 384,466,775,242in 2022 from BDT
314,590,914,520 in 2021. Significant portion comes from Term Deposits.

Particulars Consolidated standalone

(BDT) 2022 2021

Borrowings
From Other
Banks, Fls And
| Agents:

38,908,810,526 24,150,953,707 38,685,377,271 24,134,564,025

Inside BD - 207,944,839 429,000,000 - 429,000,000

Outside BD 38,700,865,687 23,721,953,707 | 38,685,377,271 23,705,564,025
Borrowings
FromBB &
Government
Agencies:
BB - Export
development 16,168,162,980 9,124,444,403 16,168,162,980 9,124,444,403
fund (EDF)
SME Foundation
pre finance
BB - Long term
financing facility 785,064,454 763,079,166 785,064,454 763,079,166
(LTFF)

BB - Green
transformation 232,733,347 261,070,057 232,733,347 261,070,057

fund (GTF) SN |
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BB - Stimulus
fund

55,370,628

387,594,399

55,370,628

387,594,399

BB - Working
capital stimulus
fund

1,514,040,573

528,491,391

1,514,040,573

528,491,391

BB - PSC stimulus
package

1,367,527,000

45,242,000

1,367,527,000

45,242,000

BB - Refinancing
forgreen
initiatives

30,000,000

40,000,000

30,000,000

40,000,000

BB - SME re-
finance

21,370,475,640

11,108,860,408

21,370,475,640

—

11,108,860,408

Joyeeta
foundation pre or
re-finance

155,050,000

99,900,000

155,050,000

99,900,000

Deposits & Other
Accounts:

447,058,816,329

364,329,900,482

384,466,775,242

314,590,914,520

Current accounts
and other
accounts

187,855,608,325

164,417,743,536

123,148,401,399

109,462,945,554

Bills Payable

1,739,503,614

2,367,889,416

1,739,503,614

2367,889,416 |

| Savings Deposits

71,890,957,598

68,334,576,200 |

71,890,957,598

68,334,576,200

*Term Deposits

182,973,780,522

127,956,809,129

185,088,946,361

133,172,621,149

Other Deposits

2,598,966,270

1,252,882,201

2,598,966,270

1,252,882,201 |

*Term deposits include the deposit pension scheme (DPS).
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Other Liabilities: 42,004,580,813 | 39,308,075,071 | 34,760,769,207 | 32,763,271,381

Provision farloans 14,602,789,573 | 13,213,625,459 | 13,390,953,803 | 11,994,520,290

and advances -

Spectal genetal 784,207,224 784,207,224 784,207,224 784,207,224

provision Covid-19

Provision for

interest receivable 20,676,127 13,457,003 20,676,127 13,457,003
from loan

Provisions for off 911,486,554 706,746,134 911,486,554 706,746,134

balance sheet ltems |
| Provision for

diminution in value 34,119,549 13,580,119 34,119,549 13,580,119

of investments ) 0

g;g;‘t‘;‘”" forather 247,263,926 | 234,820,125 247,263,926 234,820,125

s 6,800,000 . 6,800,000

non-banking assets I

Interest suspense 1710681,546 | 1,637,871,114 | 1,710,681,546 | 1,637,871,114

Withhclding tax 546,837,799 201,214,386 546,837,799 201,214,386 |
| payable = ~ . |
| VAT payable \231,322,683 208,608(833 | 231,322,683 208,608,833 |

Tanzim Alamgir
Managin

Director & CEO
UCB InfegenkRfLimited
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borrowings

| Excise duty payable 329,663,279 262,341,336 | 329,663,279 | 262,341,336
Provision for 5448,621,002 | 5920,521,742 | 4,144,359,024 | 5,021,558503
| taxation net off AIT
Deferred tax liability 347,178,871 377,334,278 | 1,696,104,735 1,680,555,555
Interest payable on 733,123,758 | 331,043,315 733,123,758 331,043,315

Accrued expenses

4,781,984,329

5,337,303,430

1,367,743,072

2,108,043,731

CSR Fund (FX gain) 188,198,573 = 188,198,573 -
Share subscription -

| iPei(esrund warran) 273,606 229,509 273,606 229,509
Payable to off-shore 4 ) a r
banking unit
Unclaimed and
undistributed 11,588,296 9,676,218 11,588,296 9,676,218
dividend
Suppliers payable 162,427,092 125,946,941 162,427,092 125,946,941 |
Leased liabilities as 4,465,075,566 | 4,085,484,681 | 3,861,470,127 | 3,603,554,604
per IFRS 16 ]
Pajanle.against 60,200 100 60,200 100
exchange houses A
Payable against 6,260,997 6,155,625 6,260,997 6,155,625
insurances =
Payahte against 1,366,816 206,092 1,366,816 206,092
proxy accou nt .
Fayahie againat 27,144,741 1,716,000 27,144,741 1,716,000
SWIFT charge i |
Start-up Fund 158,509,361 100,877,625 158,509,361 100,877,625

Other payables

4,188,126,315

3,716,340,999

4,188,126,315

3,716,340,999

| Other liabilities of
subsidiaries

2,058,793,026

2,018,766,783

10.08 Description of Previously Issued Debt and/or Securities

Description of Debt Securities:

Issue

Tenor

Amount at
Face Value

Redemption Outstanding

(years)

Subordinated 25%
Convertible Bond Issue of BDT 300 Fully )
2010 BRAC Bank Ltd. With | Gt Crores Redeemed
qualification as Tier 2
: BDT 600 Not Fully BDT 475.1
2022 | Affordable Housing Bond | 5 Years Crovas Redeemed Crores
- ) r‘_

Masud Rana FCh
ubur Rahman FCS OMD & Chie Financial Office

Company Secretary BRAC Bank Limited
BRAC Ba'yfrrc ysrwute & Confidential

Tanzim Alamgir
Managing Director & CEO
UCB Investment Limited
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Affordable Housing Bond Term Sheet:

[ Issuer BRAC Bank Limited (BBL)
a. Basic Features of the
Instrument
Non-Convertible Fixed Coupon Senior Bond of BRAC
The Issue Bank Limited
(BBL)

Part A Bonds: International investors,
Part B Bonds: Banks, Corporate Houses, Insurance
Companies, NBFI's,Asset Management Firms, Mutual

Investor Funds, Merchant Banks, Non-residentBangladeshis and
individuals and High Net Worth Individuals etc.
Arrangement Basis Best Efforts / Strictly Non-Underwritten
To provide housing financing facility, including
Purpose affordable housing to
lower- and middle-income group
Currency Bangladeshi Taka (BDT)
Face Value of each bond BDT 1,000,000.00
No. of Bonds in Each Lot 1
Part A Bonds: Up to 2
Number of tranches Part B Bonds: Up to 3
Denomination of each lot of bonds is indicated at BDT
Denomination: 1,000,00000 Face
) Value
Total no. of Lots Up to 6,000
Mode of Placement: Private Placement
Maturity: Ergﬁiasefrom the Issue/Subscription date for the relevant
Part A Bonds: English Law (other than any clauses of the
Trust Deed relating to the creation of trust under the Trust
Deed as required under Bangladesh law which shall be
Governing Law: governed accordingly)
Part B Bonds: The laws of The People's Republic of
Bangladesh
Security: Unsecured
Form: Registered
Listing: Unlisted

e Trust deed

o Part A Subscription Agreement (with respect to the
Part A Bonds) and Part B Subscription Agreement
(with respect to the Part B Bonds)

Documentation / Transaction | * Information Memorandum
Documents e Termsand Conditions (with respect to each of the Part
A Bonds, and the Part B Bonds)

« Any other instrument(s) relating to such transaction
As more particularly detailed in Part A Subscription
Agreement (with respect to the Part A Bonds) and Part B
Subscription Agreement (with respect to the Part B
Bonds), including without limitation: (i) applicable
authorizations being obtained by the Issuer, (ii) receipt by
relevant subscriber of appropriate legal opinions from
external counsel, (iii) required insurance policies being
Conditions Precedent: entered into, (iv) compliance with environmental and
social action plan, and other environmental and social

requirements and (angfeement on parameters of certain
on-going
| ™ ,«;h\ ffinancial covenants. 2
> S - -
x 1.
Tanzim Alamgir
H HUSSAIN Managing Director & CEO

uce P’Qﬁ%‘;‘ipﬁ'ﬁ“ Limited

ahbubur Rahman FCS M Masud Rana FcA
pany Secretary DMD & Chief Financial Officer

Bank Limited Limited
BRAC aStn'ctly Private & cﬁﬁﬁt‘éﬁ?ﬂi -
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Trustee

Part A Bonds

Trustee: IDLC Investments Limited Part B Bonds
Trustee: IDLC Investments Limited

Agent: IDLC Finance Limited

Legal Counsel

A Rahman and Associates

b. Coupon Rate

Fixed 5.50% p.a.

c. Coupon Frequency

Semi-annual

d. Transferability /Liquidity

Freely transferable

e. Prepayment, Call,
Refunding, Conversion
features

No voluntary prepayment/call option or conversion.

f. Late Redemption

The Issuer shall pay a late payment penalty of 2% (two per
cent) above the coupon rate on any late redemption
amount (including principal, coupon or fees) and be
payable on the amount not paid on the due date up until
the date of actual payment, unless otherwise provided in
the Part

A Subscription Agreement (with respect to the Part A
Bonds) or the Part B Subscription Agreement (with respect
to the Part B Bonds).

g. Credit Rating Trigger

In the event the credit rating of any Part A or Part B Bond
tranche is downgraded by 2 notches (the “Ratin
Downgrade”) from the rating applicable at the date of
issuance of the same bonds in accordance with the Part A
Subscription Agreement or Part B Subscription Agreement,
as applicable (the “Initial Coupon Rate"), the coupon rate
of such Part A Bond or Part B Bond, as applicable, tranche
shall be subject to a risk

premium of 0.25% p.a. above the Initial Coupon Rate with
respect to any coupon payable following the date of the
Rating Downgrade.

h. Tax Features

As per applicable law and transaction documents with
respect to the Part
A and Part B Bonds

i. Aggregate Cost related to
the 1ssue of the Part A and
Part B Bonds

Total of Arrangement fee, “Trustee, Paying Agent,
Registrar, Transfer Agent fee,” (for 5 years), Bond Rating
fee & Legal Counsel Fee, Other fees: BDT 28,200,000.00
(approx.

Application Fee to BSEC: BDT 10,000

Consent Fee to BSEC: 0.10% on the total face value

j. Repayment Schedule

Bullet, at final maturity of the relevant Bond tranche. For
details, please see clause 16 at page 56.

k. Enforcement of Charges
over securities

IDLC Investments Limited in its separate capacities as
Trustee for the Part A and Part B Bonds may at its
discretion take proceedings against the Issuer to enforce
the obligations of the Issuer under the Trust Deed with
respect to the relevant Bonds, provided that the Trustee
shall not be under any obligation to do any of the
foregoing unless it shall have been so requested in writing
by the corresponding Bondholders (except for matters
expressly stated as requiring a Resolution in the Trust
Deed) or shall have been so directed by a Resolution (as
further set out in the Trust

Deed with respect to such Bonds).

LY

M Masud Rana FCx
ief Financial Officer
any Secretary DMD & Chief Fi

iy BRAC Bank Limited
C Bank Limited
B Strictly Private & Confidential

ubur Rahman FCS

(/'

AN Tanzim Alamgir

3 Managing Director & CEC;j

Ucei |nvestment Limite
Page | 67
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Convertible, Subordinated Bond Term Sheet:

l

Issuer: BRAC Bank Limited
T To raise Tier 2 Capital and undertake normal commercial banking
i activities with the proceeds as permitted by the Bangladesh Bank

Lead RSA Capital Limited

Arranger:

2 IDLC Finance Limited

Manager:

Trustee: The City Bank Limited
90% of the total issue size shall be offered to institutional investors

Investors: including onshore and offshore investors and the remaining 10% shall
be offered to public through offering.

Issue Size: BDT 3,000,000,000 (Bangladesh Taka Three Billion)

Issue Type: Subordinated Convertible_Bond Issue (“Bond") of BRAC Bank Ltd with

i qualification as Tier 2 capital.

Tenor: 84 months from the date of issue, bullet repayment

Face Value: Each Bond will have a Face Value of BDT 1,000 (One Thousand)

Market Lok Each Market Lot will consist of 5 (five) bonds each with a Face Value of

t BDT 1,000 (One Thousand)
Public Listing of BDT 3,000,000,000 Subordinated Convertible Bond in

Listing Size: the ratio of 90:10 for private placement and repeat public offerings,
respectively in DSE and CSE.

The Reference Rate is the latest 182-days Bangladesh Government T-
Bill as published on Bangladesh Bank website or other sources of
publication.

“Quotation Day" means, in relation to any period for which an interest
rate is to be determined, 5 business days before the first day of that

Reference penad.

Rete; If a Reference Rate is not available on the Quotation Day, the Trustee
will be entitled to apply a Treasury Bill rate with the next lower
maturity: or if such a rate is unavailable then the Issuer shall negotiate
in good faith with the Trustee (upon request of the Investors) in order to
arrive at a mutual agreement upon the applicable interest rate and
period of interest for the Facility. Such determination thereof shall be
conclusive and binding on the Issuer.

Interest

EYALgI dlova Margin is 6.50% determined during the book building exercise and

the Reference gt —— .

Ritatorthe market conditions as the precise time of issuance.

Issue:

The Interest Margin plus the Reference Rate will be set at 12.50% (the

Interest Floor: :

Interest Floor) at all times.
(i) Interest on the “Bond" is to be paid semi-annually on the

Interest interest payment dates. The interest payment dates

Payment currently are determined gs 15" October and 15" April

Dates: ﬁi lity. Interest payment will be

during the tenor of the f
L \ calculated on the actual lumber of days over a 360-day (year

za“man FCS

Campany Secretary

i k Limited
BRAC B?t'ﬁc"f‘l’}'ﬂ%ﬁate s cBlentiol

~N
v

M Masud RanalFr,» |
DMD & Chief Financial Office!

Tanzim Alamgir
Managing Director & CEO
UCBpapesiegnt Limited
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of twelve 30-day month) basis and will be payable semi-

annually.
Interest A 180-day period between an Interest Payment and the date falling
Period: immediately prior to the next occurring Interest Payment Date.

Full Principal Payment, minus the converted portion of the bond (if
any), will be in the form of a single bullet payment at the end of

Principal maturity in the event the Investors decide not to convert into common
Paymentand | shares for the eligible convertible portion.

Principal

Payment Principal Payment Date will be the date of maturity of the Bond 84
Date: months after the date of issue of the Bond to the Investors:

The Investor at the predetermined Principal Payment Dates of the Bond
reserve the night and option to convert 25% of the Face Value of the
Bond at a pre-determined Conversion Strike Price into the common
shares of BRAC Bank Ltd. However, conversion is not mandatory.

Conversion
Option:

Conversion The Conversion Date is the same date will be 5th, 6th & 7th anniversary
Date: of Bond issuance date.

The Conversion Strike Price is the predetermined conversion price of the
available convertible portion of the bond.

Conversion Strike Price = Conversion Multiplex NAV per share as per
last audited financial statements of the Bank

Conversion
Strike Price: Conversion Multiple = (Daily average market price of the immediate
previous 6 months average market price of BRAC Bank shares in the
Dhaka Stock Exchange, prior to signing date of the transaction) / (NAV
per share as per last audited financial statements of the Bank prior to
signing date of the transaction) = 1.70

i 5% of issue sire at the 5th Year at the above mentioned pre-
determined multiple of book value of the immediately
available last audited book value of BRAC Bank.

Converted Face Value = 5% of the Face Value of the bonds held by the
bondholders

il 10% of issue size at the 6th Year at the above mentioned
Conversion pre-determined multiple of book value of the immediately
Method: available last audited book value of BRAC Bank

Converted Face Value = 10% of the Face Value of the bonds hold by
bondholders

iii. 10% of issue size at the 7th Year at the above mentioned
pre-determined multiple of book value of the immediately

| r\\aw.lilable last audited/zook value of BRAC Bank.
S

M
o e T N e
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Converted Face Value = 10% of the Face Value of the bonds held by
bondholders

In the event of Conversion, the Investors will receive exactly the amount
of shares as determined by dividing Face Value by Conversion Strike
Price for determining the number shares to be received in each Investor.
Fractional amount of shares will be paid in cash at existing market
price.

Converted No. of Shares = [Converted Face Value]/[Converted Strike
Price]

The right of a bondholder to convert 25% of the principal amount of any
bond held by himself herself into shares is called Conversion Right.

Corverilon A Conversion Right may only be exercised if in respect gf one or more
Right: Bonds. If more than one Bond held by the same holder is converted at
' any one time by the same holder, the number of Shares to be issued
upon such conversion will be calculated on the basis of the relevant
percentage of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds to be
converted.
The Conversion Right attaching to any Bond may be exercised, at the
option of the holder thereof as at the 42" business day prior to each
Conversion Date, during the period commencing 40 business days prior
to such Conversion Date up to the close of business on the twentieth
business day prior to such Conversion Date.

The Trustee shall notify the Bondholders in accordance with not less
than 2 business days prior to start of each Conversion Period of the
commencement date and the final date of such Conversion Period.

All notices are validly given if:

(i) mailed to the Bondholders at their respective addresses in
the Registers:

(i) published for three consecutive days in one English
newspaper and one Bengali newspaper, each having wide
circulation in Bangladesh;

(1) emailed to the Bondholders at their respective addresses set
out in the Issuer Register provided that such notices will anly
be considered as validly given unless followed up with hard
copies of the notices being mailed to the Bondholders or
published for three consecutive days in a leading newspaper
as aforesaid.

Conversion
Notice:

Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the seventh day
after being so mailed or on the later of the date of such publications.

~

Tanzim Alamgir
Managing Director & C_EO
g R UCB Investment Limited
BRAC BanX Limited Page | 70
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Description of Equity Securities:

P BRAC BANK

Number of Shares Amiount
Date of Cash Issued of Shares Total Paid upCapital
Allotment Dividend L. Capital Cumulative
:;::;2 Subscription (BF:J'T] ( )
First (Subscription tothe
i rticles""ﬂ‘;”;:;ﬂ;‘g‘ii’:n} o 20-May-99 2,000,000 | 200,000,000 200,000,000
time of Incorparation

BRAC (subscription) 7-Jun-01 - - 500,000 50,000,000 250,000,000

BRAC (subscription) 28-Dec-03 - 674,500 67,450,000 317,450,000
ShoreCap International Ltd. 15-Jan-04 m; 875,700 87,570,000 405,020,000
International Finance 2-Sep-04 : ) 949,800 94,980,000 500,000,000

Corporation

IPO 20-Dec-06 - - 5,000,000 500,000,000 1,000,000,000

Bonus 20% 15-Jul-07 2,000,000 200,000,000 1,200,000,000

Bonus 10% 27-Apr-08 - 1,200,000 - 120,000,000 1,320,000,000

Right Share 20% 30-Aug-08 - = 2,640,000 264,000,000 1,584,000,000

Bonus Share 30% 2-Jul-09 - 4,752,000 - 475,200,000 2,059,200,000

Bonus Share 30% 11-Apr-10 - 6,177,600 - 617,760,000 2,676,960,000

Bonus Share 20% &Cash 10% 31-Mar-11 267,696,000 | 5,353,920 - 535,392,000 3,212,352,000
Bonus Share 20% 5-Apr-12 64,247,040 642,470,400 3,854,822 400

Bonus Share 15% 26-May-13 - 57,822,336 * 578,223,360 4,433,045,760

Bonus Share 10% and Cash 10% 24-Apr-14 443,304,576 (44,330,457 - 443,304,570 4,876,350,330
Right share 50% 6-Jun-14 - 221,652,288 |2,216,522,880 7,092,873,210

BRAC

ank Limited ) 2
trictly Private & Confidential

i Masud Rana rca
DMD & Chief Financial Officer
BRAC Bank Limited

Tanzim Alamgir
Managing Director & CEO
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Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Sharcholders of BRAC Bank Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BRAC Bank Limited and its subsidiaries (the
“Group™) as well as the separate financial statements of BRAC Bank Limited (the “Bank™), which comprise
the consolidated and separate balance sheets as at 31 December 2022 and the consolidated and separate
profit and loss accounts, consolidated and separate statements of changes in cquity and consolidated and
separate cash flow statements for the year then ended. and notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and separate financial
statements of the Bank give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and
the separate financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated and separate
financial performance and its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as explained in note 2 and other applicable laws
and regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group and the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(BSEC) and Bangladesh Bank, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

Description of key audit matters 1 Our response to key audit matters

Measurement of provision for loans, advances and leases

The process for estimating the provision for loans. | We tested the design and operating effectiveness of
advances and leases portfolio associated with credit | key controls focusing on the following:

risk is significant and complex. e Credit appraisal, loan disbursement procedures,

o = monitoring and provisioning process;

For the individual analysis for large exposure, ) ; o A
o g o ) | o Completeness of appropriate documentation

provisions calculation considers the estimates of

future business performance and the market value of

collateral provided for credit transactions.

before disbursement of loans as well as
recording of loan balance:
o Altemate procedures applied by management to

For the collective analysis of exposure on portfolio asgess new loan/renewal of existing loans where

st audited financial statements of the

) rm)\@}s.nol available;

a,Dhaka- 1215,Bangladesh

basis. provision calculagion ah reporting are

atlonal Office : BTMC & 7N Floor), 7-@ Karwan B
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[ manually processed that deals with voluminous
databases, assumptions and estimates of’ complex

design and implementation.

At year end the Group reported total gross loans and
advances of BDT 412,085 million (2021: BDT
322,135 million) and provision for loans and
advances of BDT 15,387 million (2021: BDT
13,998 million).

In addition, special general provision = COVID 19
has been also maintained as per BRPD circular no.
53 dated 22 December 2022 on the outstanding
balance from clients who have taken the deferral
facility due to COVID 19.

judgements and estimates which could give rise to
material misstatement or management bias;

o Completeness and timing of recognition of loss
events in accordance with criteria set out in
BRPD circular no 14, dated 23 September 2012
and BRPD circular no 03, dated 21 April 2019;
and

e For individually assessed provisions, the
measurement of the provision may be dependent
on the valuation of collateral, estimates of exit

values and the timing of cash flows.

Provision measurement is primarily dependent upon
key assumptions relating to probability of default,
ability to repossess collateral and recovery rates.

We have focused on the following significant | °

e ldentification of loss events, including early
warning and default warning indicators; and

o Reviewed quarterly Classification of Loans
(CL).

Our substantive procedures in relation to the
loans  and
comprised the following:

provision for advances portfolio
e Reviewed the adequacy of the general and
line
Bangladesh Bank guidelines;

e Assessed the methodologies on which the

specific  provisions in with  related

provision amounts are based, recalculated the

provisions and tested the completeness and

accuracy of the underlying information:

Evaluated the appropriateness and presentation

of disclosures against relevant accounting

standards and Bangladesh Bank guidelines.

e Finally, compared the amount of provision
requirement as determined by Bangladesh Bank
inspection team (o the actual amount of
provision maintained.

Due to long-term impact of COVID 19, flood
situation in north-eastern areas of Bangladesh and
prolonged conflict/war outside the country, many
borrowers were adversely impacted during the year.
Accordingly, Bangladesh Bank has given certain
flexibility from classification requirement for loans
vide issuing various circulars such as BRPD 14
dated 22 June 2022, and BRPD 51 dated I8
December 2022 whereby Banks are allowed to keep
a loan/customer as unclassified subject to the
payment of certain percent of quarterly instalment
due by 31 December 2022.

The Bank has caleulated required provision as per
Bangladesh Bank letter DBI- 4/115/2023-384 dated
03 April 2023.

Sce note # 8 and 17.1 to the financial statements

hbubur Rahman FCS
any Secretary
BRAC Bank Limited
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Managing Director & CEO
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M Masud Rana FcA
DMD & Chief Financial Officer
BRAC Bank Limite!




Hoda Vasi
Chowdhury & Co

Risk

Our response to the risk

Interest income recognition

_Izccognilion and measurement of interest income
involve complex IT environment as well as require
critical estimates and judgment. Since interest
income from loans and advances is one of the key
performance indicators of the Bank there is an

inherent risk of fraud and error in recognition of
interest income.

Moreover. as per Bangladesh Bank BRPD circular
1no. 53 dated 22 December 2022, considering future
risk banks were allowed to recognize outstanding/
arrear interest income on loans where deferral
facilities were given upon considering potential risk
of future recovery and receiving certain percent of
quarterly instalment due by 31 December 2022.

Accordingly this has been considered as key audit
maller,

during the year ended 31 December 2022,

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of
key controls including automated control over
recognition and measurement of interest on loans
and advances.

For selected customers and loan files on sample
basis we have also performed substantive test of
details including recaleulation and cut-of testing to

check accuracy of interest income.

Finally, we also conducted substantive analytical
procedures to assess reasonableness ol interest
recognised during the year with reference to the
product wise outstanding loan balances.

However, due to the current uncertainty of the
overall economic situation, and in particular impacts
from major global events such as continuation of
COVID 19 related disruptions, Russia-Ukraine
conflict, volatility in fuel and commodity price,
strengthening of USD, ete., there is inherent risk that
the actual recovery of accrued interest income
especially from those clients receiving deferral
facility could be materially different than the actual
situation in future and a portion of interest accrued

l_Sm: note # 27 to the financial statements

Risk

Our response to the risk

Adequacy of income tax provision and measurement of deferred fax assets

Caleulation of income tax provision required
compliance with the Income Tax Ordinance 1984
consideration  of
temporary and permanent differences. Furthermore,
upon final settlement of pending tax assessments

including  careful various

any excess or short provision of current tax is also
adjusted in the current year.

Finally. significant judgment is required in relation
to deferred tax assets as their recoverability is
dependent on forecasts of future profitability over a
number of years.

Accordingly. this area has been considered as key
audit matter.

We obtained an understanding. evaluated the desig?
and tested the operational effectiveness of the
Bank’s key controls over the recognition and
measurement of both current tax and deferred tax,
including the assumptions used in estimating the
Bank’s taxable income.

We reviewed tax position for those years where
income tax assessment is pending and assess
adequacy of tax provision recorded by the Bank.
Special focus attention
reversal/adjustment of income tax provision from

was given to any

prior year.

We afso assessed the completeness and accuracy of
the dhta

1 for the estimations of future taxable

™
5 ahhumé:?g?:r e M Masud Rana Fch SELIM i&fwi—\‘[‘ Ta;;n-‘ﬂamgir
Py s DMD & Chief Financial Officer "M Managing Director & CEO
BRAC Bank Limited BRAC Bank Limited BRRAC Ba i LITINOU UCE I_nwstmmn Limited
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At vear end of 2022 the fiﬁlhi(?&p@l‘ted income tax
provision net of f AI'T of Tk 4,144 million (2021: Tk
5,022 million) and corresponding current income
tax charges of Tk 3,766 million (2021: 3,467
million). In addition, total deferred tax assets of
BDT 4,770 million (2021: BDT 4,147 million) and
deferred tax income of BDT 590 million (2021:
BDT 1,125 million) recognised by the Bank,

income, The Bank has sufficient taxable profit to
recover the deferred tax assets in foreseeable future,

We involved tax specialists to assess key
assumptions, controls, recognition and
measurement of current and deferred tax.

Finally — assessed the appropriateness  and

presentation of disclosures against IAS 12 Income
Tax including deduction of DTA on specific
provision from regulatory capital.

See notes no 10,4, 17.9, 43 to the financial statements

Risk

[ Our response to the risk

Valuation of treasury bill and bond and unquoted corporate bond

Investment in treasury bills and a portion of treasury
bonds are classified as HFT and hence measured at
mark to market/fair value,

On the other hand a portion of treasury bills and
portfolio of corporate bonds are classified as HTM
and measured at amortised cost.

In the absence of a quoted price in an active market,
the fair value of T-Bills and T-Bonds is determined
using complex valuation techniques which may take
into consideration direct or indirect unobservable
market data and complex pricing models which
require an elevated level of judgment.

Similarly, impairment assessment of financial

instruments  measured at  amortised cost also
required mainly unobservable market data and

assumptions.

Accordingly, this is considered as a key audit
matter.

We assessed the processes and controls put in place
by the Bank to identify and confirm the existence of
treasury bills and bonds, and corporate bonds,

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design
and tested the operating effectiveness of the key
controls over the corporate bonds, treasury bills and
bonds valuation/impairment assessment processes,
including controls over market data inputs into
valuation models, model governance, and valuation
adjustments.

We tested a sample of the valuation models and the
inputs used in those models, using a variety of
techniques, including comparing inputs to available

market data.
assessed  the appropriateness  and
of

standards

Finally
presentation relevant

Bank

disclosures  against

accounting and  Bangladesh

guidelines,

See note # 7 to the financial statements

Risk

Our response to the risk

Impairment of goodwill in consolidated financial statements of the Group and fair value of
investments in standalone financial statements of the Bank

The Bank has adopted IFRS 9 Fair value through

other comprehensive income (FVOCI) method for

measurement of equity investment in subsidiaries

and associates in  the standalone financial

statements. As all such investiments zu'wmuoted
|

investment, management used netgssets vglue of the

Our audit procedures on both assessment of
goodwill impairment at the Group level and carrying
value of finvestments in subsidiaries at the Bank

ided, among others;

level inc

YV V4
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each investment as per the financial statements of
the entity every year as fair value as management
has assumed that if buyer offer any price of the
Bank's investments, they will refer to NAV as
reference price. The carrying value of such
investment at 31 December 2022 the carrying
amount was Tk 13,593 million (2021: 13,182 Tk
million).

Similarly, the Group has recognised goodwill of
BDT 1,373 million (2021: BDT 1,427 million)
which were arisen from acquisition of BRAC EPL
Stock Brokerage Limited, BRAC EPL Investments
Limited.

The determination of fair value of the Bank’s
investment in subsidiary and annual impairment
testing of goodwill at the Group level are considered
to be a key audit matter due to the complexity of the
and the significant
judgement required in determining the assumptions
to be used to estimate the recoverable amount (i.e.

accounting requirements

the higher of the value in use or fair value e.g.
NAV). Both the value in use and fair value have
been determined with a number of valuation
assumptions and inputs including estimates ol
revenue, operating costs, terminal value, growth
rates and the weighted average cost of capital
(discount rate).

o evaluating the  appropriateness ol the
assumptions applied to key inputs such as
revenue, operating costs, inflation and long-
term growth rates used by management,
including comparing these inputs with our own
assessments based on our knowledge of the

entity and the industry:

o checking mathematical accuracy of the model,
recalculating discount rate used in the model,
reviewing other inputs in the model and
corroborating these inputs with reference 1o
external market  information, third-party

SOUTCES.

e performing our own sensitivity analysis, which
included assessing the effect of reasonably
possible reductions in growth rates and forecast
cash flows to evaluate the impact on recoverable
amount of the respective subsidiaries; and

e evaluating the adequacy of the financial
g quacy

statement disclosures.

On winning the appeal from honourable Court in
UK against suspension notice issued earlier, BRAC
Saajan Exchange Limited resumed its operations in
December 2022. However, considering the negative
net asset value and negative cash fows, an
impairment loss of goodwill amounting to BDT
54,905,518 related to BRAC Saajan has been
accounted for in the consolidated financials,

The Bank has continued to consider bKash Limited
as its subsidiary because of holding 51% equity
shares as well effective control-on-the - Board.
biCash issued convertible
preference shares and these preference shareholders
do not have any voting rights but has same rights as

However, has also

equity shareholders with respect 10 economic
interest in the company. Accordingly. consolidated
financial statements of the Group have been
prepared using 35.74% instead of 51% of the
economic interest on bKash considering the
potential dilution.

See notes 12 and 38 to the financial statements

) |
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[ Risk

l. Our response to the risk

Legal and regulatory matters

We focused on this area because the Bank and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) operates in a legal and
regulatory environment that is exposed 10

significant litigation and similar risks arising
from disputes and regulatory proceedings. Such
matters are subject to many uncertainties and the
outcome may be difficult to predict.

These uncertainties inherently affect the amount
and timing of potential outflows with respect to
the provisions which have been established and
other contingent liabilities.

As per the instruction of Bangladesh Bank, the
Bank has transferred 50% of income earned
through foreign exchange transactions during the
months of May and June 2022, after adjustment
of related income tax to a dedicated CSR Fund.
Management is in discussion with Bangladesh
Bank on utilization of this CSR Fund.

Pursuant to BRPD Circular Letter No. 28 dated
26 July 2022 and BRPD Circular Letter No. 30

Bangladesh are instructed to reduce certain
expenses at specific percentage from the
allocated amount.

dated 27 July 2022, all schedule banks of

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design
and tested the operational effectiveness of the Bank’s
key controls over compliance with various regulatory
directives and process to create provision, if any.

We enquired to those charged with governance to
obtain their view on compliance status of all regulatory
matters.

We enquired of the Bank's internal legal counsel forall
significant litigation and regulatory matters and
inspected internal notes and reports.

We have checked the calculation of the transfer to the
CSR Fund after deducting appropriate tax.

We are informed that the Bank has taken several
initiatives such as rationalizing the usage of office
reduce  electricity  cost, restricting
entertainment expenses and travelling, reducing and

space 1o

deferring the expenses on computer and accessories
which are not urgently required etc. are disclosed in the
financial statements.

We also assessed the Bank's provisions and contingent
liabilities disclosure.

Risk

Our response to the risk

IT systems and controls

Our audit procedures have a focus on I'T systems
and controls due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the 1T environment, the large
volume of transactions processed in numerous
locations daily and the reliance on automated and
IT dependent manual controls.

Our areas of audit focus included user access
management. developer access to the production
environment and changes to the [T environment.
These are key to ensuring 1T dependent and

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of the
Bank’s I'T aceess controls over the information systems
that are critical to financial reporting.

We tested IT general controls (logical access, changes
management and aspects of IT operational controls).
This included testing that requests for access to systems
were appropriately reviewed and authorized.

We tested the Bank’s periodic review of access rights
and reviewed requests of changes to sysiems for
appropriate approval and authorization.

application  based controls  are operating
effectively. We considered the control environment relating to
various interfgbes, configuration and other application
< layer controlgfideptified as key to our audit.

ubur Rahman FCS
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Reporting on other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information in the Annual Report other than the consolidated and separate financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If. based on the work we have performed, on the other information obtained prior to the date of this audit
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Munagement and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements and Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and also separate financial statements of the Bank in accordance with [FRSs as
explained in note 2, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. The Bank Company Act, 1991 and the Bangladesh Bank Regulations require
the Management to ensure effective internal audit, internal control and risk management functions of the
Group and the Bank, The Management is also required to make a self-assessment on the effectiveness of
anti-fraud internal controls and report to Bangladesh Bank on instances of fraud and forgeries.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group's and the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group and the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's and the Bank’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Our objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements as a whole are free [rom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

hconomic decisions of users taken on the

M Masu na FoA SELIM R/F. HUBSSAN Tanzim Alamgir
DMD & Chief Financial Officer \ fmearin oo and CEQ Managing Director & CEO
imi iy UCB Investment Limited
BRAC Bank Limited BRAC Bank Limited BRAC B2 nvestment Limi
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Bank’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and the Bank to cease (o continue as a going concern.

! e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of ffie current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ repoft unless law or regulation precludes public

stermine that a matter should

—

bubur Rahman FCS T 5
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not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 0 f doing so would reasonably be
expected o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020, the Bank Company
Act. 1991 and the rules and regulations issued by Bangladesh Bank, we also report that:

(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
beliel were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

(i) to the extent noted during the course of our audit work performed on the basis stated under the
Auditor’s Responsibility section in forming the above opinion on the consolidated financial
statements and considering the reports of the Management to Bangladesh Bank on anti-fraud
internal controls and instances of fraud and forgeries as stated under the Management’s
Responsibility for the financial statements and internal control:

(a) internal audit, internal control and risk management arrangements of the Group as disclosed
in the financial statements appeared to be materially adequate;

(b) nothing has come to our attention regarding material instances of forgery or irregularity or
administrative error and exception or anything detrimental committed by employees of the
Group and its related entities {other than matters disclosed in these financial statements};

(iii)  Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 of local subsidiaries namely BRAC
EPL Investments Limited, BRAC EPL Stock Brokerage Limited and bKash Limited have been
audited by Rahman Rahman Hug, Chartered Accountants and one associate namely BRAC 138
Services Limited have been audited by Howladar Yunus & Co., Chartered Accountants. The group
reporting pack of the foreign subsidiary BRAC SAAJAN Exchange Limited have been audited by
Reddy Siddiqui LLP, UK. All these entities have been properly reflected in the consolidated
financial statements:

(iv)  inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group and the
Bank so far as it appeared from our examination of those books;

(v) the records and statements submitted by the branches have been properly maintained and
consolidated in the financial statements:

(vi) the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated profit and loss account together with the annexed
notes dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

(vii)  the consolidated financial statements have been drawn up in conformity with prevailing rules,
regulations and accounting standards as well as related guidance issued by Bangladesh Bank;

(viii) adequate provisions have been made for advance and other assets which are in our opinion,
doubtful of recovery;

(ix) the information and explanatidgs required by us have begn reps and found satisfactory;

Tanzim Alamgir
Managing Director & CEO
UCB Investment Limited
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(x) we have reviewed over 80% of the risk weighted assets of the Bank and spent over 3,000 person
hours; and :

(xi)  Capital to Risk-weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR) as required by Bangladesh Bank has been
maintained adequately during the year.

o, W G Ve

Sabbir Ahmed FCA, Partner
Enrolment number; 770
Dhaka, 11 April 2023 Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
DVC No: 2304100770AS807408 Chartered Accountants

.

Tanzim Alamgir
Managing Director & CEO
UCB Investment Limited

M Masud Rana Fca SELIM R, HIHUSSAR
DMD & Chief Financial Officer  Mi@aging Dirdbtor and CEO
BRAC Bank Limited BRAC Bank Limited BRAC Bank Limited

bubur Rahman FCS



BRAC Bank Limited and its subsidiaries
Consolldated Balance Sheet

YY)

As at 31 December 2022
2022 2021

Particulars Note Taka Tako

PROPERTY AND ASSETS

Cash 4 31,871,593,250 23,459,424,430
Cash in hand (Including foreign currency) 11,918,067,777 9,207,161,626
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank(s) 19,953,525,473 14,252,262,804
(including foreign currency)

Balance with other banks and financial institutions 5 52,951,344,277 78,264,312,910
Inside Bangladesh A7,797,240,230 70,561,465,538
Outside Bangladesh 5,154,104,047 7,699,847,372

Money at call on short notice 6,826,376,000 3,500,000,000

Investments 116,651,993,868 70,068,593,304
Government 107,319,008,486 60,998,642,835
Others 9,232,9856,372 9,069,950,469

Loans and advances 8 412,084,750,584 322,135,188,439
Loans, cash credit, overdrafts etc. 222,711,877,598 169,128,372,833
Small and medium enterprises 187,247,111,913 150,749,009,625
Bills purchased and discounted 2,125,761,073 2,257,805,981

Fixed assets including premisas, furniture and fixtures 9 13,463,5614,348 12,834,169,424

Other assets 10 20,803,842,677 16,222,224,464

Non-banking assets 11 11,344,700 4,541,700

Goodwill 12 1,372,563,393 1,427,468,911

Total property and assets T 655,037,330,087  527,012,923,582

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Liabllities

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and agents 13 38,908,810,526 24,150,953,707

Borrowings from central bank & government agencies 14 42,184,501,809 23,175,903,824

Affordable housing bond 15 4,751,000,000 -

Money at call on short notice u =

Deposits and other accounts 16 447,058,816,329 364,329,900,482
Current accounts and other accounts 187,855,608,325 164,417,743,536

Bills payable 1,739,503,614 2,367,889,416
Savings deposits 71,890,957,598 ©68,334,676,200
Term deposits 182,873,780,522 127,956,809,129
Other deposits 2,598,966,270 1,252,882,201

Other liabllitles 17 42,004,580,813 39,308,075,071

Total liabilities 574,907,709,477 450,964,833,084

Capital and shareholders' equity

Pald up capital 18.2 14,965,853,280 13,921,723,930
Share premium 18.7 3,853,767,032 3,853,767,032
Statutory reserve 19 11,148,169,834 10,067,956,958
Dividend equalization fund 20 355,218,455 355,218,455
Revaluation reserve on govt. securities 21 1,337,245,165 2,490,292,927
Fair value reserve 78,920,073 78,920,073
Foreign currency translation reserve 23 328,402,260 16,632,383
Surplus in profit and loss account/Retained earnings 241 29,086,051,630 26,402,962,532

Total shareholders' equity 61,153,627,729 57,187,474,350

Mon-controlling Interest 24.2 19,875,982,881 19,760,616,148

Total equity 81,029,610,610 76,948,090,498

Total llabllities and equity 655,937,320,087 527,912,923 582

ivi Miasud Rana FCA

SELIN

{USSAIN
rand CEO

ahbubur Rahman FCS
any Secretary
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\ BRAC Bani Limited and its subsidiaries
| Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2022
2022 2021
Particulars Note Taka Taka
Off balance sheet items
Contingent liabilities
Acceptances and endorsements 25 £3,028,540,659 50,478,536,940
Irrevocable letters of credit 25 27,451,963,219 26,598,203,443
Letter of guarantees 25.2 18,607,062,875 11,793,414,671
Bills for collection 25.3 21,612,714,770 16,438,866,245
150,700,281,523 105,309,021,299
Other commitments
Swap deals with banks and customers 25.4 13,070,011,143 10,726,189,903
spot and forward deals with banks and customers 25.4 2,074,308,915 18,161,697,791
15,144,320,058 28,887,787,694
Total off balance sheet ltems 165,844,601,581 134,196,808,993
Net asset value (NAV) per share 49 | 40.86 | | 38.21 |

The notes, 1 to 51.5 and annexures A to J form an Integral part of these financial statements.

Director

Mana@ﬂirecwr and CEO

Director Chairman

As per our report of same date.

Als— H- N\m-m/
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Sabbir Ahmed FCA, Partner
Enrolment No: 770

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants

Dhaka, 11 April 2023
DVC No: 2304100770AS807408

Tanzim Alamgir
Managing Director & CEQ
UCB Investment Limited

M Masud Rana FCA
DMD & Chief Financial Officer
BRAC Bank Limited
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BRAC Bank Limited

BRAC Bank Limited and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2022

7 2022 2021
Particulars Note Taka Taka
Interestincome 27 31,365,476,735 24,225,217,948
Interest paid on deposits and borrowing etc. 28 12,953,873,731 7,912,883,508
Net interest income 18,411,603,004 16,312,334,440
Investment income 29 7,685,930,404 7,142,434,925
Commission, exchange and brokerage 30 11,522,088,039 7,992,853,236
Other operating income 31 313,551,635 175,087,450 '
Total operating income (a) 37,833,173,082 31,622,710,051
Salaries and allowances 12,044,197,472 9,889,092,833
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc. 32 697,538,365 645,414,492
Legal expenses 62,177,773 62,840,810
Postage, stamps, telecommunication ete. 33 411,043,177 317,984,231
Stationery, printing, advertisement etc. 34 3,223,940,283 2,608,773,879
Chief Executive's salary and fees 35 24,471,250 19,424,250
Directors' fees 36 4,534,312 4,572,209
Auditors' fees 37 8,469,389 7,125,166
Impairment of goodwill 3as 54,905,518 -
Depreciation and repair of the bank's assets 3o 5,382,602,590 4577,470,806
Other expenses 40 4,474,735,716 3,383,027,192
Total operating expenses (b) 26,388,615,545 21,615,425,868
Profit before provisions (¢ = a-b) 11,444 557,537 10,107,284,183
Share of profit of associates 41 4,860,182 3,742,052
Gain on disposal of associates 2,049,419 17,373,182
Profit/(loss) before provisions (d) 11,451,467,138 10,128,399,417
Provision for loans/investments:
Loans and advances 1,938,266,664 2,971,016,470
Diminution in value of investments 20,539,430 (74,000,000)
Off balance sheet items 204,740,420 251,500,000
Other provisions 23,870,068 70,093,002
Total provisions (e) 42 2,187,416,682 3,218,608,472
Total profit/(loss) before taxes (f= d-g) 9,264,050,556 6,909,789,945
Provision for taxation:
Current tax expense 4,280,691,722 3,737,018,428
Deferred tax expense/(income) (1,138,637,890) (1,479,828,777)
Total provision for taxation (g) 43 3,142,063,832 2,257,189,651
Net profit/(loss) after taxatlon (f-g) 6,121,996,724 4,652,600,294
Attributable to:
Equity holders of BRAC Banlk Limited 6,013,972,880 5,464,672,680
Non controlling interest 24241 108,023,844 (812,072,386)
6,121,996,724 4,652,600,294
Retained earnings brought forward from previous year 26,402,962,532 16,368,391,545
Net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Bank 6,013,972,880 5,464,672,680
Net effect of all items directly recognised in equity/retained earnings  24.1.4 {104,780,581) 7,322,532,868
Profit available for appropriation 32,312,154,831 29,155,597,093

any Secretary

M Masud Rana Fca
DMD & Chief Financial Officer
BRAC Bank Limited
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BRAC Bank Limited and Its subsidiaries
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Particulars Note Tala Taka
Appropriations:
Statutory reserve 1,080,212,876 662,939,230
General reserve - -
Dividend 2,088,258,589 1,088,817,706
Start-up Fund 57,631,736 100,877,625

3,226,103,201 2,752,634,561

Retalned surplus 29,086,051,630 26,402,962,632
Earnings per share (EPS) [previous year's figure restated] a8 | 4.02 | | 3.65 |

The notes 1 to 51.5 and annexures A to J form an integral part of these financial statements.

Manaw Director and CEQ < L Director

q%b . 93; . ! ALahH« PL-M—W

Director Chairman

As per our report of same date.

Dhalka, 11 April 2023 Sahbir Anmed FCA, Partner
DVC No: 23041007 70AS807408 Enrolment No: 770
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants
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BRAC Bank Limited

BRAC Bank Limited and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2022

M ahi::ubu: Rahman FCS

2022 2021
Particulars Nate Taka Yaka
A. Cash flows from operating actlvities
Interest receipts in cash 37,022,269,415 30,510,937,817
Interest payment {10,349,004,887) (8,765,182,197)
Dividend receipts 294,041,064 225,198,769
Fees and commission receipts in cash 44 272,349,310 36,148,193,743
Recoveries on loans previously written off 809,572,845 707,517,594
Cash payments to employees (11,662,291,298) (9,942,261,926)
Cash payments to suppliers (34,548,789,786) (29,490,800,154)
Income tax paid (10,350,920,142) (7,109,584,330)
Receipts from other operating activities 45 953,966,643 592,067,664
payment for other operating activities 46 (5,714,933,022) (4,049,473,180)
Opelrgt.lngf:ash flow before changes in operating assets and 10,726,260,142 8,826,613,800
liabilities (i)
Increase/(decrease) in operating assets and liabilities
Loans and advances (90,450,491,062) (47,687,679,964)
Other assets (484,467,659) (376,833,057)
Borrowings from other banks and financial institutions 33,877,162,172 10,667,650,315
Proceeds from lssuance of affordable housing bond 4,751,000,000 -
Deposits from customers 80,145,069,185 31,712,233,455
QOther liabilities (937,467,563) 483,029,607
cash utilised in operating assets and liabilities (ii) 26,900,805,083 (5,101,599,644)
Net cash flows from operating activities (I+1i) (a) 37,627,065,225 3,725,014,156
. Cash flows from investing activities
Treasury bills 1,155,677,121 7,996,369,494
Treasury bonds (48,629,080,534) 14,187,750,778
Investment in shares (615,054,764) (863,128,507}
Sale/ (Investment) in bonds 410,000,000 642,282,917
Acquisition of fixed assets (3,541,826,973) (4,696,385,425)
Disposal of fixed assets 17,736,063 601,372,687
Net cash used in investing activities (b) (51,202,559,087) 17,868,261,954
. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of convertible preference shares - 22,330,724,613
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 112,140,000 -
Cash dividend paid (1,042,217,221) (1,383,245,432)
Net cash flows from financing activities ( c) (930,077,221) 20,947,479,181
Net increase/(decrease) In cash (a+b+c) (14,505,5671,083) 42,540,755,291
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 105,222,018,140 62,639,236,011
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalent 934,394,370 42,026,838
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 44 91,650,841,427 105,222,018,140
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year:
Cash in hand (including foreign currency) 11,918,067,777 9,207,161,626
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agents bank(s) 19,953,625,473 14,252,262,804
(including foreign currency)
Balance with other banks and financial institutions 52,951,344,277 78,261,312,910
Money at call on short notice 6,826,376,000 3,500,000,000
Prize Bond 1,627,900 1,280,800
91,6560,841,427 105,222,018,140
Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS) 50 | 25.14 | ( 249 |

The notes 1 to 51.5 and annexures A to J form an integral part offthese financial statements.

M Masud Rana FCA
DMD & Chief Financial Officer
BRAC Bank Limitet!
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BRAC Bank Limited
Balance Sheet

[
M Mahbubur Rahman Fcs

As at 31 December 2022
2022 2021
|

Particulars Note Taka Taka

PROPERTY AND ASSETS

Cash 4 31,776,214,097 22,676,943,467
Cash in hand (Including foreign currency) 11,822,688,624 8,424, 680,663
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank(s) 19,953,625,473 14,252,262,804
{Including foraign currency)

Balance with other banks and financial institutions 5 16,255,534,724 19,880,951,145
Inside Bangladesh 11,127,982,840 12,261,365,946
Outside Bangladesh 5,127,551,884 7,619,585,199

Money at call on short notice 6 6,826,376,000 3,600,000,000

Investments T 64,287,682,264 51,690,814,842
Government 56,637,669,673 44,051,798,178
Others 7,650,012,591 7,539,016,664

Loans and advances 8 410,676,406,960 324,212,230,987
Loans, cash credit, overdrafts etc. 221,303,533,974 168,205,415,381
Small and medium enterprises 187,247,111,913 150,749,009,625
Bills purchased & discounted 2,125,761,073 2,257,805,981

Fixed assets including premises, furniture and fixtures 2 7,779,346,693 7,454,867,399

Other assets 10 25,626,075,864 22,763,775,341

Mon-banking assets 14 11,344,700 4,541,700

Total property and assets 563,238,978,302 449,084,124,881

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Liabilities

Borrowings from other banks, financial Institutions & agents 13 38,685,377,271 24,134,564,025

Borrowings from central bank & government agencles 14 42,184,501,809 23,175,903,824

Affardable housing bond 15 4,751,000,000 -

Money at call on short notice - B

Deposits and other accounts 16 384,466,775,242 314,590,914,520
Current accounts & other accounts 123,148,401,399 109,462,945,554
Bills payable 1,739,503,614 2,367,889,416
Savings deposits 71,890,957,598 68,334,576,200
Term deposits 185,088,946,361 133,172,621,149
Other deposits 2,598,966,270 1,252,882,201

Other liabilities 17 34,760,769,207 32,763,271,381

Total Liabilities 504,848,423,529 394,664,653,750

Capital and shareholders' equity
Paid up capital 18.2 14,965,853,280 13,921,723,990
Share premium 18.7 3,853,767,032 3,853,767,032
Statutory reserve 19 11,112,086,248 10,067,956,958
Dividend egualization fund 20 355,218,455 355,218,455
Revaluation reserve on govt, securities 21 1,337,245,165 2,490,292,927
Fair value gain/{loss) on equity investment 22 7,643,913,224 7,384,920,564
Foreign currency translation reserve 23 323,536,914 15,729,653
Surplus in profit and loss account/Retained earnings 24 18,798,934 455 16,329,861,552

Total shareholders' equity 58,390,654,773 54,419,471,131

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 563,238,978,302 449,084,124,881

M Masud Rana FCA |
DMD & Chief Financial Officer

b Tanzim Alamair

Cqmpany Secretary BRAC Bank Limited

Managing Director & QEO
UCB Investment Limited



BRAC Bank Limited

Balance Sheet
| As at 31 December 2022
1
|
| . 2022 2021
Particulars MNote Taka Toka
Off balance sheet items
Contingent liabilities
Acceptances and endorsements 25 83,028,540,659 50,478,636,940
Irrevocable letters of credit 25 27,451,963,219 26,598,203,443
Letter of guarantees 25.2 18,607,062,875 11,793,414,671
Bills for collection 25.3 21,612,714,770 16,438,866,245
150,700,281,523 105,300,021,299
Other Commitments
Swap deals with banks and customers 25.4 13,070,011,143 10,726,189,903
Spot and forward deals with banks and customers 25.4 2,074,308,915 18,161,597,791
15,144,320,058 28,887,787,694
Total off balance sheet items 165,844,601,581 134,196,808,993
Net asset value (NAV) per share 49 | 39.02 ][ 36.36 |

The notes 1 to 51,5 and annexures A to J form an integral part of these financial statements,

7
Ma nagint?reutof and CEO | Director

E;ﬁ ; }2 | Als— W F{M‘w

Director ' Chairman

As per our report of same date.

Dhaka, 11 April 2023 Sabbir Anmed FCA, Pariner
DVC No: 23041007 70AS807408 Enrolment No: 770
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants

~
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Managing Director & QEO
UGB Investment Limited
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BRAC Bank Limited
Profit and Loss Account

For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Particulars Note Taka Taka
Interest income 27 28,462,101,118 21,686,220,747
Interest paid on deposits and borrowing etc. 28 13,227,359,203 7,589,298,326
Net interest income 15,234,744,915 13,996,922 421
Investment income 29 5,184,549,425 5,780,677,077
Commission, exchange and brokerage 30 5,884,319,986 3,440,196,921
Other operating income 31 267,298,708 146,093,679
Total operating income (a) 26,570,910,034 23,363,890,098
Salaries and allowances 8,151,587,989 6,625,995,876
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity ete. 32 507,158,511 473,700,396
Legal expenses 30,384,953 33,352,689
Postage, stamps, telecommunication etc. 33 308,505,338 222,631,352
Stationery, printing, advertisement etc. 34 396,662,334 221,634,405
Chief Executive's salary and fees 35 24,471,250 19,424,250
Directors' fees 36 2,552,000 2,437,600
Auditors' fees 37 1,840,000 1,840,000
Depreciation and repair of the banls assets 39 2,304,559,343 2,191,026,040
Other expenses 40 3,713,939,396 2,627,953,670
Total operating expenses (b) 15,444,661,114 12,419,996,278
Profit before provisions (¢ = a-b) 11,129,248,920 10,943,893,820
Provision for loans/Investments:
Loans and advances 1,945,536,063 2,810,975,910
Diminution in value of investments 20,539,430 (74,000,000)
Off balance shest items 204,740,420 251,500,000
Other provisions 19,672,671 65,866,351
Total provisions (d) 42 2,190,388,484 3,064,342,261
Total profit/(loss) before taxes (e= c-d) 8,938,860,436 7,889,651,559
Provision for taxation:
Current tax expense 3,765,699,754 3,467,399,481
Deferred tax income (590,012,891) (1,124,778,486)
Total provision for taxation (f) 43 3,175,686,863 2,342,620,995
Net profit after taxation (e-f) 5,763,173,573 5,546,930,564
Retained earnings brought forward from previous year 16,329,861,552 13,680,255,527
Net effect of all items directly recognised in equity-retained earnings (104,081,055) (144,689,978)
Profit available for appropriation 21,988,954,070 19,082,496,113

20

) |
/ - i i
M (ahbubur Rahman FCS  \j Masud Rana FcA SEIM R, JHUSSAL mzn A nA
ecretary MD & Chief Financial Officer Mas l Jior 2nd 0140 Managing Director & CEQ
Ca D UJCB Investment Limited

BRAC Bank Limited BRAC Bank Limited BRAC Bark Limiiz



BRAC Bank Limited
Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Particulars Note e 2024

Taka Taka
Appropriations:
Statutory reserve 1,044,129,290 662,939,230
General reserve e =
Dividend 2,088,258,589 1,088,817,706
Start-up Fund 57,631,736 100,877,625

3,190,019,615 2,752,634,561

Retained Surplus 18,798,934,455 16,329,861,662
Earnings per share (EPS) [previous year's figure restated] a8 [ 3.85 || 371

The notes 1 to 51.5 and annexures A to J form an integral part of these financial statements.

7
L Director

Mana@Dlrecmr and CEO
M\ﬁ’w(

Al b ;Lk,__._/

Chairman

Director

As per our report of same date.

e e

Sabbir Ahmed FCA, Partner
Enrolment No: 770

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants

Dhaka, 11 April 2023
DVC No: 2304100770A5807408
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BRAC Bank Limited

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Particulars Note Take Taka
A, Cash flows from operating activities
Interest receipts in cash 31,508,895,124 27,105,416,678
Interest payment (10,508,367,195) (8,504,508,879)
Dividend receipts 232,498,460 174,618,013
Fees and commission receipts in cash 5,884,319,987 3,440,196,921
Recoveries on loans previously written off 809,572,845 707,517,594
Cash payments to employees (8,135,922,799) (6,597,572,669)
Cash payments to suppliers (680,215,058) (480,845,623)
Income tax paid (4,642,899,233) (2,557,956,724)
Receipts from other operating activities 45 1,033,184,962 710,776,014
Payment for other operating activities 46 (5,385,487,007) (3,597,592,564)
(I)pe‘r.ayﬂg cash flow before changes in operating assets and 10,115,580,086 10,400,048,761
liabilities (I}
Increase/decrease in operating assets and liabilities
Loans and advances (89,464,175,973) (48,149,037,787)
Other assets (524,779,722) (400,388,462)
Borrowings from other banks and finanaial institutions 33,559,411,231 11,942,273,035
Proceeds from lssuance of affordable housing bond 4,751,000,000 -
Deposits from customers 67,558,949,157 26,460,328,428
Other liabilities (996,961,563) 912,507,742
Cash utilised in operating assets and liabilities (i) 14,883,443,130 (9,234,317,044)
Net cash flows from operating activities (I+ii) (a) 24,999,023,216 1,165,731,717
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Treasury bills (422,721,002) 170,075,754
Treasury bonds (13,316,198,255) 15,284,380,330
Sale/ (Investment) in shares (520,995,927) (1,107,182,775)
Sale/ (Investment) in bonds 410,000,000 642,282917
Acquisition of fixed assets (2,118,856,350) (2,955,859,632)
Disposal of fixed assets 17,653,002 601,254,376
Net cash used in investing activities (b) (15,951,118,532) 12,634,950,970
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid [ (1,042.217,221]] | (1,383,245,433)|
Net cash flows from flnancing activities ( ¢) (1,042,217,221) (1,383,245,433)
Net increase/decrease in cash (a+b+c) 8,005,687,463 12,417,437,254
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 46,059,175,412 33,603,286,202
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalent 794,789,846 38,451,956
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 44 54,859,652,721 46,059,175,412
Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year:
Cash In hand (including lforeign currency) 11,822,688,624 8,424 680,663
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agents bank(s) 19,953,525,473 14,252,262,804
(including foreign currency) :
Balance with other banks and financial institutions 16,255,634,724 19,880,951,145
Money at call on short notice 6,826,376,000 3,500,000,000
Prize Bond 1,627,900 1,280,800
54,859,652,721 46,069,175,412
Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS) 50 | 16.70 || 0.78 |

The notes 1 to 51.5 and annexures A to J form an integral part of these financial statements.

The reconciliation of net profit with cash flows from operating activiti

bubur Rahman FCS
any Secretary
BRAC Bank Limited

M Masud Rana Fca
DMD & Chief Financial Officer
BRAC Bank Limited

s (standalone basis) has been presented at note - 47.
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BRAC Bank Limited
Mates to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

1 THE BANK AND ITS ACTIVITIES

1.4 BRAC Bank Limited

BRAC Bank Limited (the "Bank® or "BRAC Bank”) is a scheduled commercial bank established under the Bank Company Act, 1991, and
incorporated as a public company, limited by shares, on 20 May 1999 under the Companies Act, 1994, in Bangladesh, vide RISC registration no.
C-37782(2082)/99. The primary objective of the bank is to conduct all kinds of banking businesses. On completion of all legal formalities, the
bank commenced its operations on 4th July 2001. At present, the bank has 187 banking branches (2021: 187 branches), 11 sub-branches,
198 Area offices (2021: 198 Area offices), 456 SME unit offices (2021: 456 SME unit offices), 1,000 agent banking outlets (2021: 785 agent
outlets), 324 ATMs (2021: 373 ATMs) and 39 RCDMs and spread across the country. The registered address of the bank is: Anik Tower, 220/8
Tejgaon Guishan Link Road, Tejgaon, Dhaka-1208. BRAC Bank was listed on the Dhaka Stock Exchange and Chittagong Stock Exchange as a
publicly traded company on 28 January 2007 and on 24 January 2007 respectively. The Bank has four subsidiaries and one associate
companies in related operations. A brief description of the subsidiaries and associates of the Bank has been provided in Note 1.6,

1.2 Principal activities and nature of operations
The principal activities of the Bank are banking and related activities including accepting customer deposits, lending to retail, small and mediurn
enterprise (SME) and corporate customers, trade financing, lease financing, project financing, issuing letter of credit (LCs), inter bank borrowing

and lending, dealing in government securities, equity shares ete. Thera have been no significant changes in the nature of operations of the Bank
during the financial year under review,

As a fully operational commercial bank, BRAC Bank Limited focuses on pursuing unexplored market niches in the SME business, which hitherto
has remained largely untapped within the country. Significant percentage of BRAC Bank's clients had no prior experience with formal banking.
With the view to reaching clients, the Bank has established a wide network of branches, zonal offices, SME unit offices and agent ba nking outlets
offering services in the heart of rural and urban communities.

As a founder member of GABY and being the trailblazer of values-based banking in Bangladesh, Bank always strives to contribute towards
achieving the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), where financing for SMES to generate employment in an environmentally-friendly manner
remains as our top priority. The Bank also serving as intermediary for Triple Bottom Line (TBL) by supporting individual or enterprises delivering
impact in at least one of the following categories: social empowerment (people), environmental regeneration (planet), and/or economic resiliency
(prosperity).

1.3 Off-shore banking unit (0BU)
The Bank commenced its off-shore banking operation an cbtaining permission from Bangladesh Bank in 2010. The Off-shore Banking Unit (OBU)
is govarned by the rules and guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. The consolidated and separate financial statements of the bank ingluded the
operations of OBU. In addition, a separate financial statements of OBU has been presented in Annexure-H. In addition, the principal activities of
0BU are to provide all kinds of commercial banking services to its customers in Bangladesh in forelgn currency.

1.4 Custodian Service
The Bank obtained permission to work as a security custodian from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission vide its certificate no. SC-
1072009 dated 12 November 2009 under the Securities and Exchange Commission (Securities Custodian Service) Rules 2003. Financial
performance of Security Custodial Services have been separately reported in Annexure-l along with Bank's audited financial statements in
compliance with the requirement u/s 10(2) of Security Custodial Services Rules 2003. The due certificate from external auditors has been
obtained on internal control and financial statements of security custodial operations of the Bank and annexed with the financial statements.

1.5 Agent banking

BRAC Bank obtained permission from Bangladesh Bank on 11 March 2048, vide reference no. BRPD(P-3)745/(50)2018-1806, to commence
agent banking outlets and subsequently started commercial operations on 11 September 2018, Till 31 December 2022, the bank has already
apened 1,000 agent banking outlets in 64 districts across the country. Services thal are currently being dispensed include account opening
(current, savings & term deposit), cash deposit and withdrawal, instant fund transfer within BRAC Bank and outside BRAC Bank accounts
through BEFTN, SME loan disbursement & repayment collection, foreign remittance disbursement, corporate bill/distributor fee collection, retail
loan and credit card lead generation, credit card bill collection, insurance premium colleetion, utility bill collection, cheque book & debit card
request process & delivery, internet and SMS banking and balance inquiry ete.

1.6 Subsidiaries and associates of BRAC Bank Limited
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity if it 1s exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
invalvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether it has
control if there are changes to one or more of the elements of control. This includes eircumstances in which-protective rights held (e.g. those
resulting from a lending relationship) become substantive and lead to the Group having power over an investee. Financial statements of

subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control
ceases.

An associate Is an enterprise in which the investor has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a Jeint venture of the investor
{1AS-28: Investments in Assaclates and joint venture ). Significant influence Is the power to participate in the financial and operating palicy
decisions of the Investee, but there is no contral over those policles, Investment in assceiates is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the "equity method'. Under this method, the investment Is Initially recorded at cost and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor's share of profits or losses of the investee after the date of acquisition. The investor's share of the investee's

profits or losses is recognised in the investor's profit and loss account. Distributions received from an investes reduce the carrying amount of the
investment,
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

1.6.1

1.6.2
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If the holding in subsidiary disposed-off in such a way that the status of the holding now comes to 'Assaciate’ then the fair value of the holding
retained in the said entity at the date of such disposal has been considered as opening balance of investment in associate in consolidated
financial statements and related gains and losses have been recognised directly in consolidated equity. Any share of profits and losses after

such change/disposal have been recognised in consolidated profit and loss as per equity method.

Summary of shareholding In subsidiaries and associates
BRAC Bank's shareholding position in its four subsidiaries and gne associate is summarized below:

Name of Face No. of ardinary shares held by ||BBL's percentage of|
T  of ord h

subsidiaries and || value per || Nature of business ARG CE TOTNNT SRaTRe BBL shareholding

Sieaites i 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 | 2021

i i BOT10  |[Merchant banking || 258,500,000 | 258,500,000 | 258,358,734 | 258,358,734 || 99.95% | 99.95%

Investments Ltd.

BRACEPL Stack Nlpir 100 [fstock brokerage 8,411,446 | 8,411,446 7,570,249 | 7,570,249 || 90.00% | 90.00%

Brokerage Ltd.

biash Ltd. got 400 ||Mebile financial 381,049 381,949 194,800 194,800 || 51.00% | 51.00%
senvicas (MF5)

BRAG SAMAN il epy | [|RemEATIGE & 1,333,333 333,333 1,250,000 250,000 || 93.75% | 75.00%

Exchange Ltd. exchange services

E:‘:;AG IT Services li%Too A saidaa 233,729 233,729 23,372 30,190 || 9.9996% | 12.92%

BRAC EPL Investments Limited (subsidiary)

BRAC Bank acquired 51% shares of Equity Partners Limited on 31 July 2009, This entity was incorporated in Bangladesh on 19 April 2000 as a
private limited company, under the Companies Act, 1994, and was subsequently renamed as "BRAC EPL Investments Limited”. BRAC Bank
acquired an additional 25% shares in the entity in 2011 and an additional 18.57% in 2016, During 2017, the bank acquired a further 5.275% in
the entity. During 2019, the bank acquired another 0.10%, thus taking the total shareholding to 99.945% at the end of the year 2019.

BRAC EPL Investments was established to cater to the needs of the fast growing capital markets of Bangladesh. It works as a merchant bank
with a full-fledged merchant banking license from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), The company's service portfolio
comprises lead managing initial public offerings, domestic and international placements, portfolio management and project development and
consultancy.

BRAC EPL Stack Brokerage Limited (subsidiary)

BRAC Bank Limited acquired 51% shares of Equity Partners Securities Limited on 31 July 2009. Equity Partners Securities Limited was
incorporated in Bangladesh an 16 May 2000 as a private limited company under the Companies Act, 1894. Subséquently, the management
decided to rename Equity Partners Securities Limited as BRAC EPL Stock Brokerage Limited. In the year 2011, the bank acquired an additional
29% shares of EPL Stock Brokerage Limited. As a result, the bank's controlling interest has risen to 90% of EPL Stock Brokerage Limited.

BRAC EPL Stock Brokerage Limited was established to cater to the nesds of the brokerage business in Bangladesh. |t has corporate membership
of both Dhalka Stock Exchange and Chittagong Stock Exchange.

biash Limited (subsidiary)

BRAC Bank Limited formed bi{ash Limited, a private company limited by shares incorporated on 1 March 2010 under the Companies Act, 1994,
biKash Limited was established to introduce maobile financial services In Bangladesh, The bank has obtained a license from Bangladesh Bank for
bKash Limited to render mobile financial services (MFS). BRAC Bank currently holds 51% equity shares in the company.

With the consent of all existing sharehelders, in 2014 Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation (B&M), in 2018 Alipay Singapore E-Commerce Private
Limited ("Alipay") and in 2021 SoftBank further invested in bKash Limited in the form of convertible preference shares. As on 31 December
2021, out of the total 163,104 convertible preference shares, B&M holds 22,525 shares, Alipay holds 55,433 shares and SoftBank halds
85,146 shares, Preference shareholders do not have any voting rights but has same rights as equity shareholders with respect to economic
interest in the company. These preference shares are convertible at a 1:1 basis to ordinary shares subject to consent as per sharsholders’
agreement, Consolidated financial statements have been prepared using 35.74% instead of 51% considering the potential dilution, or otherwise
according to economic interest on bKash.

BRAC SAAJAN Exchange Limited (subsidiary)

At the inception, BRAC Bank Limited acquired 75%+1 shares of "SAJAN Worldwide Money Transfer Limited® (SWMTL) in the UK. Bangladesh
Bank provided necessary approvals of GBP 500,000 to acquire SWMTL and setting up two new branches in Luton and Bradford, UK. As per
permission of Bangladesh Bank, SWMTL has been renamed as "BRAC SAAJAN Exchange Ltd" (BSEL). BRAC SAMJAN Exchange Limited was
established to offer remittance and exchange services in the UK.

Notable that the operation of BRAC SAAJAN Exchange Limited was suspended in 2021 on regulatory ground by the local regulator in UK,
Management lodged an appeal against the suspension before the Court in UK. After long hearing, the honorable Court released a verdict in 2022
in favour of BRAC Saajan and nodded the company to resume its operations. Accordingly, the company has resumed its operations in December
2022,
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BRAC Bank Limited
Motes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

Considering the minimum capital requirement as per Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), UK and to resume its full-fledged operations, the
company (BRAC Saajan) converted the outstanding OD Loan facilities of BRAC Bank as additional share capital of GBP 1,000,000 (equivalent to
BOT 112,140,000) with due approval from the regalators. Gurrently, BRAC Bank Limited holds 93.75% shares (1,250,000 no. of shares out of
the total 1,333,333 shares) of BRAC SAAJAN Exchange Ltd (BSEL).

1.65 BRACIT Services Limited (biTS) (assoclate)
BRAC IT Services Ltd. (biTS) was initially founded as Documenta™ Ltd, a digital archiving firm, in 1999, BRAC IT Services Ltd. was then formed in
April 2013 through the merger of Documenta™ Ltd and the IT Division of BRAC Bank. BRAC Bank acquired 51% shares of BRAC IT Services
Limited, a private company limited by shares under the Companies Act, 1994, incorporated on 9 April 2013. It currently operates as an (T
services company. In the year 2017, BRAC Bank reduced its holding in BRAC IT Services Limited from 51% to 48.67% by sel ling 1,034 shares to
BRAC. However, due to additional Investment by BRAC, the holding percentage of BRAC Bank further reduced to 12.92% at the end of the year
2020.

In 2022, BRAC Bank further disposed off 6,818 no. of shares (2.92% sharehclding) to BRAC upon approval from Bangladesh Bank and the
bank's shareholding in biTS reduced to 9.9996%. Considering the significant management involvement, the company is still considerad as an
associate of the Bank as per international accounting standards (IASs)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Preparation of consolidated and separate financisl statements
Preparation of separate financial statements of the bank for the year ended 31 December 2022 comprise the operation of the Domestic Banking
Unit {DBU) {main operations), as well as oparations of the Off-shore Banking Unit (0B, together referred to as ‘the Bank',

Consolidated financial statements include separate financial statements of the BRAC Bank Limited and financial statements of all subsidiaries’,

as those of a single economic entity and together referred to as ‘the Group'. There were na significant changes In the operations of the
bank/group entities.

The consalidated financial statements have been prepared In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 10:
Consolidated Financial Statements. The consolidated financial statements are prepared to a common reporting year ended 31 December 2022,
Intra-company transactions, balances and intra-group gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated on consolidation.

2.2  Statement of compliance with applicabls laws, regulations and standards
The Financial Reporting Act 2015 (FRA) was enacted in 2015. Under the FRA, the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) was formed in 2017 and has
adopted International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as the applicable Financial Reporting
Standards for public interest entities such as banks with effect from 2 Novemnber 2020.

The consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and the bank have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS adopted by FRC
and in addition to this, the bank also complied with the raquirements of the following laws and regulations from varlous gavernment bodies:

iy The Bank Company Act, 1991, and amendment thereon;

ii) The Companies Act, 1994;

iy Circulars, Rules and Regulations issued by Bangladesh Bank (BB) time to time;

i) Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020; Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Act, 1993 and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Public Issue) Rules 2015 and amen dments thereon;

v)  Thelncome Tax Ordinance, 1984, and amendments thereon;

vi) The Yalue Added Tax Act, 2012, The Value Added Tax Rules, 2016 and amen dments thereon;

vii) Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE), Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) and Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL) rules
and regulations; and

viii) Financial Reporting Act, 2015.

Thig Central Bank of Bangladesh (‘Bangladesh Bank’), as primary regulator of the banking industry, has issued a number of circulars/directives
which are not consistent with the requirements spesified in 1ASs/IFRSs. In case any requirement of the Bank Campany Act, 1991, and provisions
and circulars issued by Bangladesh Bank (BB) differ with those of IFRSs, the requirements of the Bank Company Act, 1981, and provisions and
circulars issued by BB shall prevail.

Bank has departed from certain contradictory requirements of IFRSs in order to comply with the rules and regulations of Bangladesh Bank which
are disclosed below:

1) Investment In equity Instruments except investment in subsidiarles and assoclates

Treatment as per IFRS | Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines
As per requirements of IFRS 9: Classification and measurement of||As per Banking Regulation and Policy Department (BRPD) circular
investment in equity instruments depend on how these are managed||na. 14, dated 25 June 2003, investments in quoted shares and
{the entity's business model) and their contractual cash fiow|| unquoted shares ara revalued at the year-end at market price and
characteristics. Based on these factors, it would generally fall either||as per the book valus of the last audited balance sheet,
under ‘at fair value through profit and loss account' or under 'at fair|| respectively. Provisions should be made for any loss arising from
value through other comprehensive income’ where any change in thefldiminution in value of investments; otherwise investments are
fair value (measured in accordance with IFRS 13) at the year-end is{|recognised at cost.
talken to the profit and loss account or other comprehensive income,
respectively. N

27

ranzim Alamair
Mdhaging Direclorﬁf CIEO
UGB Investment Limited

M Nahbubur Rahman FCS M Masud Rana FcA SELIMR. F
C ny Secretary DMD & Chief Financial Officer  ps..
BRAC Bank Limited BRAC Bank Limited




BRAC Bank Limited
Motes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

1) Subsequent measurement of Government securities
Treatment as per IFRS Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guldelines

Government securities refer primarily to various debt instruments||As per DOS Circular no. 05, dated 26 May 2008, and subsequent
which inglude both bonds and bills. As per requirements of IFRS 9:||clarification in DOS Circular no. 05, dated 28 January 2009,
Financial Instruments, these investments can be categorised as||Government securities/bills are classified into Held for Trading|
*Amortised Cost (AC)", or "Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)", or|[(HFT) and Held to Maturity (HTM). HFT securities are revalued on
"Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)"||the basis of mark-to-market and at year-end, any gains on
Investments designated as Amortised Cost are measured at amortised||revaluation of securities which have not matured as at the halance
cost method, and interest income is recognised through profit and loss||sheet date are recognised in other reserves as a part of equity, Any
account. Any changes in fair value of investments designated as FVTPL||losses on revaluation of securities which have not matured as at
is recognised in the profit and loss account. Any changes in fair value||the balance sheet date are charged in the profit and loss account.
of investments designated as FVOC! is recognised in other reserves, as||Interest on HFT securities, including amortisation of discount, are
a part of equity. recognised in the profit and loss account. HTM securities which
have not matured as at the balance sheet date are amortised at
year-end, and gains or losses on amortization are recognised In
other reserves as part of equity.

iii) Provision on loans and advances

Treatment as per [FRS Il Treatment adopted as per BB clrculars and guidelines
As per IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, an entity shall recognise an||As per BRFD circular no. 14 dated 23 September 2012, BRPD
impairment allowance on loans and advances based on expected|icircular no. 19 dated 27 December 2012, BRPD circular no. 05
credit losses. At each reporting date, an entity shall measure|dated 29 May 2013, BRPD circular no, 16 dated 18 November
impairment allowance for loans and advances at an amount equal to||2014, BRPD circular No, 12 dated 20 August 2017, BRPD circular
the lifetime expected credit losses, if the credit risk on these loans and||No. 15 dated 27 September 2017, BRFD circular no. 1 dated 20
advances has increased significantly since initial recognition, whether||February 2018, BRPD Circular no. O7 dated 21 June 2018, BRPD
assessed on an individual or collective basis, considering alll|Circular no 13 dated 18 October 2018, BRPD circular no. 3 dated
reasonable information (including that which is forward-looking). Forl{21 April 2019, BRPD circular no. 16 Dated 21 July 2020, BRPD
those loans and advances for which credit risk has not increased| circular no, 52 Dated 20 October 2020, BRPD circular no. 19 dated
significantly since initial recognition, at each reporting date, an entity|{26 August 2021, BRPD circular no. 51 dated 29 December 2021,
shall measure the impairment allowance at an amount equal to 12-||BRPD circular no. 52 dated 29 December 2021, BRFD circular no.
month expected credit losses that may result from default events on{]O3 dated 20 January 2022, BRPD circular no. 09 dated 7 Aprll
such lpans and advances that are possible within 12 months after the|| 2022, BRPD circular no. 07 dated 27 April 2022, BRPD circular no.
reporting date. 14 dated 22 June 2022, BRPD circular no. 51 dated 18 December
2022, the general provision at 0.25% to 2% under different
categories of unclassified loans (good/standard and SMA loans)
has to be maintained regardless of objective evidence of
impairment. Also, provision for different categories of classified
loans (sub-standard, doubtful anc bad and loss loans) has to be
provided at 20%, 50% and 100%, respectively, for loans and
advances depending on time past due,
Furthermore, as per BRPD circular no, 14 dated 23 September
2012 and BRPD circular no. 07 dated 21 June 2018, a general
provision at 1% is required to be provided for all off-halance sheet|
exposures excapt on 'bills for collection’ and 'guarantees’ where the
counter guarantees have been lssued by multilateral development
bank (MDBY/international bank having BB rating grade 'Y
equivalent outlined in the Guidelines on Risk Based Capital
Adequacy (Revised Regulatory Capital Framewaork for banks, in line
with Basel-lll).
As per BRPD circular no. 16 dated 21 July 2020, provision @ 5%,
20% on SMEF financing on SS and DF except medium enterprise
has to be maintained. Such provision policies are not specifically in
line with those prescribed by IFRS 8. Such provision palicies are not
specifically in line with those prescribed by IFRS 8.

Iv) Other comprehensiva income

Treatment as per IFRS Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guldelines
As per IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, other||Bangladesh Bank has issued templates for financial statements
comprehensive income is a component of financial statements or theffwhich is followed by all banks. The templates of financial
elements of other comprehensive income are to be included in single|| statements Issued by Bangladesh Bank neither include Other
comprehensive income statements. Comprehensive Income nor the elements of Other Comprehensive
Income allowed to be included in a single Other Comprehensive
Income {OCH) statement. As such, the bank does not prepare Other|
Comprehensive Income statement. However, elements of OC, if
any, are shown in the Statement of Changgs In Equity.
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v) Financial instruments - presentation and disclosure

Treatment as per IFRS

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guldelines

some disclosure and presentation requirements of IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures and IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation cannot be made in the financial statements.

In several cases, Bangladesh Bank guideline categorize, recognise,
measure and presant financial instruments differently fram those
prescribed in IFRS 9: Financial Instruments.

vi) R

epo and raverse rapo transactions

Treatment as per IFRS

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

As per IFRS 9, when an entity sells a financial asset and
simultaneously enters into an agreement to repurchase the asset (or a
similar asset) ata fixed price on a future date (repo), the arrangement
is treated as a loan, and the underlying asset continues to be
recognised at amortised cost in the entity’s financial statemeants. The
difference between selling price and repurchase price will be treated
as Interest expensa. The same rule applies to the opposite side of the
transaction (reverse repa),

As per DOS Circular letter no. 6, dated 15 July 2010, and
subsequent clarification in DOS Circular no. 03, dated 30 January
2012 and DOS circular no. 2, dated 23 January 2013, when a bank
sells a financial asset and simultaneously enters inte an agreement
to repurchase the asset {or a similar asset) at a fixed price on a
future date (repo or stock lending), the arrangement is accounted
for as a normal sales transaction, and the financial assets are de-
recognised in the seller's baok and recognised in the buyer's book.
However, as per DMD circular letter no, 7, dated 29 July 2012, non-
primary dealer banks are eligible to participate in the Assured
Liquidity Support (ALS) programme, whereby such banks may enter
collateralised repo arrangements with Bangladesh Bank. Here, the|
selling bank accounts for the arrangement as a loan, thereby
continuing to recognise the asset,

vil) Financia! guarantees

Treatment as per IFRS

I

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

As per IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, financial guarantees are
contracts that require an entity to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs if a8 specified debtor fails to|
make payment when due, in accordance with the term of debt
Instruments. Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised initially at
their fair value, and the initial fair value is amortized over the life of
the financial guarantee. The financial guarantee liability is
subsaguently carried at the higher of this amortised amount, and the|
loss allowance determined as expected credit loss under IFRS 9.
Financial guarantees are prescribed to be included within other|
liabilities.

As per BRPD circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003, financial
guarantees, such as Letter of Credit and Letter of Guarantee should
be treated as off balance sheet items. No liability is recognised for
the guarantee, except the cash margin.

viil) Cash and cash equivalents

Treatment as per IFRS

Treatment adopted as per BB clrculars and guldelines

Cash and cash equivalent items should be reported as cash item as
per IAS 7: Staternent of Cash Flows.

Some cash and cash equivalent items, such as money at call and
on short notice, treasury bills, Bangladesh Bank bills and prize
bonds are not shown as cash and cash equivalents. Money at call
and on short notice is shown separately in the balance sheet.
Treasury bills, Bangladesh Bank bills and prize bonds are shown
under investment in the balance sheet. However, in the cash flow
statement, money at call and short notice and prize bonds are
shown as cash and cash equivalents beside cash-in-hand, balance|
with Bangladesh Bank and other banks.

Ix} N

on-banking assets

Treatment as per IFRS I

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

There is no particular/specific guideline about non-banking assets in|

As per BRPD circular no. 22, daled 20 September 2021, there is a

IFRS.

separate balance sheet item titled as non-banking asset that exists
in the standard format.

x) Cash flow statement

Treatment as per IFRS

I

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guldelines

As per IAS 7. Statement of Cash Flows, cash flow statement can be
prepared either in direct methed or indirect methed. The presentation
Is selected to present these cash flows In @ manner that is most
appropriate for the business or industry. The method selected is
|applied consistently.

As per BRPD circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003, the cash flow
statement is a mix of both the direct and indirect methods.

xi) B

alance with Bangladesh Bank

Balance with Bangladesh Bank should be treated as other asset, as it
is not available for use in day to day operations, as per IAS 7:
Statement of Cash Flows.

Balance with Bangladesh Bank is treated as cash and cash
equivalents.
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xil) Presantation of intangible asset

Treatment as per IFRS

Treatment adopted as per BB clrculars and guldelines

Intangible assets must be identified and recognised, and the
disclosure must be given as per 1AS 38: Intangible Assets,

Intangible assets are shown in fixed assets, including premises and
furniture and fixtures, as there is no specific regulation for
intangible assets in BRPD circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003.

xili) Off balance sheet items

Treatment as per IFRS

[ Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

As per [FRS, there is no requirement for disclosure of off balance sheet
items on the face of the balance sheet.

As per BRPD circular no. 14, datad 25 June 2003, off balance
sheet items, e.g. Letter of Credit, Letter of Guarantee and
Acceptance must be disclosed separately on the face of the
balance sheet.

xlv) Disclosure of appropriation of profit

Treatment as per IFRS

I Treatment adopted as per BA circulars and guldelines

There is no requirement to show appropriation of profit on the face of
statement of comprehensive income,

As per BRPD circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003, appropriation of
profit should be disclosed on the face of profit and loss account,

xv) Loans and advances/investments net of provision

Treatment as per IFRS

Treatment adopted as par BB circulars and guldelines

As per IFRS 9, leans and advances/investments should be presented
net of provision.

As per BRPD circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003, provision on
loans and advances/investments are presented separately as
lability and cannot be nettad-off against loans and advances.

xvi

=

Recognition of interest [n suspense

Treatment as per I[FRS

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guldelines

Loans and advances to customers are generally classified at
amortised cost as per IFRS 9, and interest income is recognised in the
profit and loss account by using the effective interest rate methad to
the gross carrying amount over the term of the loan. Once a loan
subsequently becomes credit-impalred, the entity shall apply the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of these loans and
advances.

As per BRPD circular no. 14, dated 23 September 2012, once a
loan Is classified as Sub-standard, Doubtful BL (special reason),
interest accrued on such loans are not allowed to be recognised as
income, rather the corresponding amount needs to be credited to
an interest in suspense account which is presented as other
liability in the balance sheet,

xvii) Provision on undrawn loan commitments

Treatment as per IFRS

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

As per IFRS 9, the bank shall recognise credit losses on undrawn loan
commitments, such as Letter of Credit (L/C), Letter of Guarantee
(L/G), etc., as the present value of the difference between the
gontractual cash flow that are due by the customer if the commitment
is drawn down and the cash flows that the bank expects to receive,

As per BRPD Circular no. Q7, dated 21 June 2018, and BRPD
Circular no. 14, dated 23 September 2012, the bank is required to
maintain a provision at 1% rate against off balance sheet
exposures (which includes all types of undrawn loan commitments).

xvili) Name of the financial statements

Treatment as per IFRS

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guldelines

As per IAS 1, complete set of financial statements consists statement
of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statemant of
cash flows and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and
other explanataory information.

The forms of financial statements and directives for preparation
thereof of the bank companies in Bangladesh are guided by BRFD
Circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003 and subsequent amendments
thereof from time to time. BRPD circular no. 14 states the
statement of financial position as balance sheet and statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as profit and loss
account.

2,2.2 Summary statement of compliance with IFRSs

Ref. Name of the standards

Status

IFRS-1 First-Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards Not applicable
IFRS-2 Share-based Payment Not applicabla
IFRS-3 Business Combinations Complied
IFRS-4 Insurance Contracts Not applicable
IFRS-5 Mon-current assets Held for Sale and Discounted Operations Not applicable
IFRS-6 Exploraticn for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources Not applicable
IFRS-T Financial Instruments: Disclosures Complied *
IFRS-8 Operating Segments Complied *
IFRSQ Financial Instruments Complied *
IFR5-10 Consolidated Financial Statements Complied
IFRS-11 Joint Arrangements Not applicable
IFR5-12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entitles Complied
IFRS-13 Falr Value Measurement Complied

.
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IFRS-14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts Not applicable

IFRS-15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers Complied

IFRS-16 Leases Complied
IAS-1 Presentation of Financial Statements Complied *
1AS-2 Inventories Not applicable
1AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows Complied *
1AS-8 Accounting Policles, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors Complied
1AS-10 Events after the Reporting Period Complied
1AS-12 Income taxes Complied
IAS-16 Property, Plant and Equipment Complied
1AS-19 Employee Benefits Complied
1AS-20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance Complied
1AS-21 The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchanges Rates. Complied
1AS-23 Borrowing Cost Complied
IAS-24 Related Party Disclosures Complied
1AS-26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans Not applicable
1AS-2T Separate Financial Statements Complied
IAS-28 Investment in Assoclates and Joint Venture Complied
1A5-29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies Nct applicable
1AS-32 Financial Instruments: Presentation Complied *
IAS-33 Earnings Per Share Complied
IAS-34 Interim Financial Reporting Complied
1AS-36 Impairment of Assets Complied
1AS-37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets Complied
1AS-38 Intangible Assets Camplied *
IAS-40 Investment Property Not applicable
1AS-41 Agriculture Mot applicable

* Complied to the extent possible subject to compliance to Bangladesh Bank guldelines in this respect,
*# Complled In the preparation of interim financial reports of the Bank.

Standards Issued but not yet effactive
A number of new standards and amendments to standards are issued but not yet effective for annual periods beginning after 01 January 2022

and earlier application Is permitted. However, the Bank has not adopted early the following new or amended standards in preparing these
financial statements.

A) Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction (Amendments to IAS 12)

B) Other standards: The following new and amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the bank's standalone and
consolidated financial statements:

- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to 1AS 1)

-IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

- Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)
- Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)

- Lease liability in sale and leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16)

Golng cancern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern assumption that the Bank will continue in operation aver the
foreseeable future. The Bank has neither any intention nor any legal or regulatory compulsion to liquidate or curtail materlally the scale of any of
its operations, Key financlal parameters (including liquidity, profitability, asset quality, provision sufficiency and capital adequacy) of the bank
continued to damonstrate a healthy trend for a couple of years. The rating outlook of the bank, as reported by all the rating agencies is 'Stable’,

The management do not see any issue with respect to going concern due to recent pandemic COVID-19. Besides, the management is not aware
of any other material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the bank's ability to continue as a going concem.

Materlality and aggregation

Fach material item considered by the management as significant has been displayed separately in the financial statements. No amount has
been set off, unless the Bank has a legal right to set off the amounts and intends to settle on net basis. Income and expenses are presented on a
net basis only when permitted by the relevant accounting standards.

Comparative Information

Accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Bank and are consistent with those used in the previous year. Comparative
information is rearranged wherever necassary to conform with the current presentatian.
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26 Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT), which is the bank's functional currency. The functional currency of the Bank's
Off-shore Banking Unit (OBU) and one of the Bank's subsidiaries, namely BRAC SAAJAN Exchange Limited, is in United States Dellar (USD) and
Great Britain Pound (GBP), respectively. Financial statements of the above-mentioned unit and subsidiary have been translated into the
prasentation currency, L.e. Bangladeshi Taka (BDT), following the guidelines of IAS 21: The Effect of Changes in Forelgn Exchange Rates. The
functional and presentation currency of other subsidiaries and associates is in Bangladeshi Taka (BOT). Except as indicated, figures have been
rounded-off to the nearest Taka.

2.7  Reporting perlod
These financial statements cover one calendar year - from 01 January to 31 December 2022.

2.8 Basls of measurement of elements of financial statements
The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the following:

- Government Treasury Bills and Bonds designated as "Held for Trading (HFT)' at present value using marked to market with gains, if any,
credited to revaluation reserve.
- Government Treasury Bills and Bonds designated as ‘Held to Maturity (HTM)" at present value using amortization concept.

2.8  Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reparted amounts of ts, liabilities, r and exp . Actual results may differ
from these estimates. It also requires disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Provisions and
accrued expenses are recognized in the financial statement in line with the IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets".

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. However, the estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and the revision is recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future pericds affected,
Significant areas where management requiring the use of estimate and judgment:

a) Provision for loans and advances, investments and leases for future Impairment
by Useful life of fixed assets and Right of use of assets (RoU) as per IFRS 16
¢) Remeasurement gain/(loss) of defined benefit obligation and plan assets

d) Deferred Tax assets/liabilities

e) Provision for gratuity fund

f) Right of use of assets (RoU) as per IFRS 16

g) Lease liabilities

h) Impairment testing of goodwill

i) Provision for taxation

J) Fair value determination of unguoted investments/shares

2.10 Forelgn currency transactions

Mark-to-market valuation of forelgn currency transaction

The treasury back-office values all outstanding positions (Spot and Forward including on and off balance sheet iterms) at the current market rate
to determine the current market value of these positions. This exercise alsp provides the profitability of the outstanding contracts. The treasury
back office gathers the market rates from an independent source i.e. other than traders (Reuters/Bloomberg, BAFEDA, calling other bank back
offices) of the same organization which is required to avold any conflict of intarest. Revaluation Is done dally and the profit and loss impact is
adjusted accordingly.

i Translation of foreign currency operations
1 3 The results of financial statements of any foreign operation (including subsidiaries, off-shore banking unit, etc.) whose functional currency is not
Bangladeshi Taka are translated into Bangladeshi Taka as follows:

a. assets and liabilities for each statement of balance sheet have been translated at the closing rate on the date of the balance sheet.
b b. income and expenses for the profitand loss account have been translated at average rate.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in OCI and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve, except to the extent that the
translation difference is allocated to NCI.

Exchange rates =
‘ The assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2022 in foreign currencies have been converted to BDT at the following rates:
MName of Currancles 2022 2021
USD 1= BDT 103.30 85.80
SGD 1= BOT 76.60 63.41
I GBP 1= B80T 124,43 115.70
i AUD 1= BDT 69.44 62.33
g EUR 1= BDT 110.01
CHF 1= BDT 11174
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JPY 1= BOT Q.77 0.75
CAD 1= BDT 7597 67.12
AED 1=BDT 2813 23.36
CNY 1= BDT 14.84 13.46

Translatlon resarve in separate financial statements

The functional currency of the Bank's Off-shore Banking Unit (OBU) s in United States Dallar (USD). So, transiation reserve has baen generated in
separate financial stalements for translating offshore banking operations in bank's presentation currency (BDT).

Translation reserve In consolidated financial statements
The functional currency of one of the Bank's subsidiaries BRAC SAAJAN Exchange Limited Is in Great Britain Pound (GBP). As a result, in

consolidated financial statements translation reserve includes the balances of separate financial statements as well as the belances for
translating SAAJAN's GBP operations to bank's presentation currency (BOT),

2,11 Provisions, contingent llabliities and contingent assets
The Bank recognises provisions only when it has a present chligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
No provision Is recognised for-

a.  Any possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-accurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the bank; or

b, Any present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because-
f) It is not probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or
ii) A reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made.

Such obligations are recorded as contingent liabilities, These are assessed continually and only that part of the obligation for which an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is probable, is provided for, except In extremely rare circumstances whera no reliable estimate can be
made,

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statement since these may result in the recognition of income that may never be realised.
Hawever, due to regulations of Bangladesh Bank (Central Bank of Bangladesh) and Bank Company Act, 1991, as amended, all items of such
contingent assets/liabilities ara shown as off balance sheet items under balance sheet of the bank as a separate section.

242 Statement of changes In equity

Statement of Changes in Equity has been prepared in accordance with 1AS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements” and following the guidelines
of Bangladesh Bank BRPD circular no.14 dated 25 June 2003,

2.13 Cash flow statement
Cash Flow Statement is prepared principally in accordance with IAS 7 * Statement of Cash Flows® under the guidelines of BRPD circular no.14
dated 25 June 2003. The Cash Flow Statement shows the structure of and ch anges In cash and cash equivalents during the year, It Cash Flows
during the period have been classified as operating activities, investing activities and financing activities.

2.14  Basis of preparation of liquidity statement
The liquidity statement of assets and liabilities as on the reporting date has been prepared on residual maturity term as per the following basis:
a) Balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at call and short notice ete. are on the basis of their maturity term.
b)  Investments are on the basis of their residual maturity term.
c) Loans and advances are on the basis of their repayment/ maturity schedule,
d) Fixed assets are on the basis of their useful life.
€} Other assets are on the basis of their adjustment.
f)  Borrowing from other banks, financial institutions and agents as per their maturity/ repayment term,
g} Deposils and other accounts are on the basis of their maturity term and behavioural past trend,
h)  Other long term liability on the basis of their maturity term.
) Provisions and other liabilities are on the basis of their settlement.

2,14 Changes in accounting policies, estimates and errors ;
IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes In Accounting Estimates and Errors , states that the effect of a change in accounting policy and correction of
errors, if material, is to be applied retrospectively, and change in an accounting estimate is to be applied prospectively. The carrying amount of-
assets, labilities, or equity may be changed following a change in accounting estimates in the period of the change. The bank followed the same
accordingly.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements except the
recognition of defined benefit obligation and plan assets relating to the gratu ity fund on the balance sheet of the Bank from 2018, The net effect
in opening balance for such recognition has been charged in profit and loss considering the effect as immaterial as per 1AS - 8.
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3.1  Assets and the basis of their valuation

3.1.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and cash at bank (regardless of
maturity), highly liquid interest bearing investment/securities with original maturities of less than three month, Cash flow statement is prepared
in accordance with IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, However cash flows from operating activities have been presented according to the format
mentioned in BRPD circular no. 14 dated 25 June 2003,

3.12 Investments (Categorized and reported as per Bangladesh Bank)

Investment In securities

All investment securities are initially recognised at sost, including acquisition cha rges associated with the investment. Premiums are amortised
and discount accredited, using the effective yield method, and are taken to discount income. The valuation method of marking-to-markel for
investments used are:

Held To Maturity (HTM)

Investments which have fixed or determinable payrments and fixed maturity that the group has the positive intent and ability to held to maturity,
other than those that meet the definition of 'Held at amortised cost others' are classified as held to maturity. These investment are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, less any provision for impairment in value. Amortised cost Is caloulated by taking into account any discount or
premium in acquisition. Any gain or lass on such investments is recognised in the statement of income when the investment Is de-recognised or
impaired.

Held For Trading (HFT)

Investments classified in this category are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing - in short trading or if designated as
such by the management. After initial recognition, investments are measured at market value, and any change in the fair value is recognised in

the statement of income for the period in which it arises, Transaction costs, if any, are not added to the value of investments at initial
recognition.

Revaluation of governmant securities

According to DOS Circular no. 05, dated 26 May 2008, DOS Circular no. 05, dated 28 January 2009 and DOS Circular no, 02, dated 19 January
2012, HFT securities are revalued once each week using marking-to-market concept, and the HTM securities are amortised once a year
according to Bangladesh Bank guidelines. HTM securities are also revaluated if they are reclassified to HFT category with the Board's approval.
Investment In quoted securlties

These securities are bought and held primarily for the purpose of sefling them in the future or holding for dividend income, which are reported at
cost. Unrealised gains are not recognised in the profit and loss statement, But required provisions are kept for diminution in value of investment.

Investment In mutual funds

The Department of off-site Supervision (D0S) of Bangladesh Bank vide its circular letter no, 03 dated 12 March 2015 directed that investment in
mutual fund (closed end) will be revalued at lower of cost and (higher of marker value and 85% of NAV). Provision should be made for any loss
arising from diminution in value of investment on portfolio basis; othenwise investments are recognized at cost,

Investment In unquoted securities
Investment in unlisted securities Is reported at cost under cost method. Adjustment is given for any shortage of book value over cost for
determining the carrying amount of investment in unlisted securities. As per Bangladesh Bank DOS Circular no. 04, dated 24 November 2011,

provision for diminution in value of investment was made by netting off unrealised gain (loss) of shares from market price/book value less cost
price.

Besides, the Bank complied with Bangladesh Bank BRPD Circular no, 14, dated 25 June 2003, as follows, "All investments In shares and
securities (both dealing and investment) should b revalued at the year end. The quoted shares should be valued as per market price in the

stock exchange(s) and unquoted shares as per boak value of the last audited balance sheet. Provisions should be mads for any loss arising from
diminution in value of investment,”

Summary of recognition and measurement basis has been shown as under:

Measurement after
Investment Class Initial Recognition Recording of chan,
i AR Recognition g i
i fai fil
Government Treasury Bils (HET) Cost Marking to Market/ fair Loss to Ipro itand loss A/G, gain to
value revaluation reserve
Y o -
Government Treasury Bills (HTM) Cost Amortised cost ari g gam.to EURIIG o roaeive
and loss to profit and loss
L fi . Bal
Government Treasury Bonds (HFT) Cat Marking to Market/ fair 088 to profit and loss A/C, gain to
value revaluation reserve
- T
Government Treasury Bonds (HTM) Cost Amortised cost Anirtised SNt rovaluation e
and loss to profit and loss
Zero Coupon Bond Cost Cost N/A
Prize Bond and Other Bond Cost Cost N/A
Debentures Cost Prafit and Loss Account
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Un-quoted Shares (ordinary) Cost Law_a Fofcost oriAY.cf last Profit and Loss Account
audited account
Lower of cost or marlet Loss {net off gain) to Profit and Loss
price at balance sheet date [Account but no unrealized gain
Provision for unrealised loss (net) to
Mutual Fund (open-end) Cost Lower of cost or 95% of NAV |profit and loss account but no
unrealised gain booking,
Provision for unrealised loss (net) to
profit and loss account but no
unrealised gain booking.

Quoted Shares (ordinary) Cost

Lower of cost or (higher of

M I Fi losed-end Cost
MR VRN market value or 85% of NAV)

3.1.3 Loans and advances

8) Loans and advances are stated In the balance sheet on the gross basis.

b} Interest on loans and advances is calculated daily on acerual basis for all loans accounts but charged in client statements monthly,
quarterly and Instaliment date based on product type.

¢) Commission and discounts on bills purchased and discounted are recognized at the time of realization.

b) Provision for loans and advances is made on the basis of period-end review by the management following instructions contained in
Bangladesh Bank BRPD Circular no. 14, dated 23 September 2012, BRPD aircular no. 15, dated 23 September 2012, BRPD Circular no.
19, dated 27 December 2012, BRPD Circular no. 05, dated 29 May 2013, BRPD Circular no. 16, dated 18 November 2014, BRPD Circular
no. 08, dated 02 August 2015, BRPD Circular no. 12, dated 20 August 2017, BRPD Circular no. 15, dated 27 September 2017, BRPD
Circular no. 01, dated 20 February 2018, BRPD Circular no. 07, dated 21 June 2018, BRPD Circular no 13, dated 18 October 2018 and
BRPD Circular no. 03, dated 21 April 20189, BRPD circular no, 52 Dated 20 October 2020, BRPD circular no. 16 dated 21 July 2020, BRPD
circular No: 56 dated 10 December 2020, BRPD circular No: 14 dated 22 June 2022, BRPD circular No: 51 dated 18 December 2022,
Provisions and interest suspense are separately shown under other liabilities as per the First Schedule of the Bank Company Act 1991
{amended up to 2018). The rates of provision for loans and advances are given below:

Unclassified Classified
Type of Loans and Advances Special Mention Substandard
Standard Account (SMA) (s8) Doubtful (DF) | Bad and Loss (BL)
Consumer financing - House building 1% 1% 20% 50% 100%
Consumer financing - Loans for professionals 904 2% 20% 50% 100%
Consumer financing - Other than house
bullding and professionals =% - 20% bo% ROGK
Loans to BHs/ MBs against share etc. 2% 2% 20% 50% 100%
Small and medium enterprise (Medium) 0.25% 0.25% 20% 50% 100%
Small and medium enterprise (Cottage, Migro, 0.25% 0.25% 5% 20% 100%
Small)
Short term Agriculture/ Micro credit 1% 1% 5% 5% 100%
Credit Card 2% 2% 20% 50% 100%
All others 1% 1% 20% 50% 100%
Off Balance Sheet exposure 1% N/A N/A N/A N/A

[+

Interest on classified loans and advances is kept in a suspense account as per BRPD circular no. 27, dated 31 August 2010 and recognised
as income on realisation, as per BRPD circular no, 14 and 15, dated 23 September 2012, Interest is not charged on bad and loss loans as
per the guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. Records of such interest amounts are kept in separate accounts.

d) Write off Loans and Advance: Loans and advances are written-off to the extent that (i) there is no realistic prospect of recovery and (ii)
against which legal cases are filed and classified as bad and loss, as per BRPD circular no. 02, dated 13 January 2003 and 13, dated 07
November 2013, These write-offs however will not undermine/affect the claim amount against the borrower. Detailed memorandum
records for all such write-off accounts are meticulously maintained and followed up.

3.1.4 Fixed assets including premises, furniture and fixtures

A. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment (PPE) include all type of tangible assets i.e. land, office floor space, furniture & fixtures, office equipments, IT
hardware and mator vehicles etc.

Recognition and measurement
All fixed assets including land are stated at cost less accumulated de preciation, as per IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment. Right-of-use assets
ara measured at cost, less any accumulated depreclation, and adjusted for any re-measuremeant of lease liabilities.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future ecanamic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the entity; and the cost of the Item can be measured reliably,
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The cost of the items of property, plant and equipment comprises:

i) any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the management.

i) any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and conditian necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the management.

lii)y  the initial estimate of the cost of dismantling and removing the itern and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which an

entity incurs either when the item is acquired or as consequence of having used the item during a particular perlod of purpose other than to
produce during that period,

Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs of enhancement of existing assets are recognised as an addition to the asset, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
expenses are charged to the profit and loss account during the financial period in which they are incurred,

Depreciation of PPE

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is charged on straight-line basis. In case of acquisition of fixed assets, depreciation is charged from the

month of acquisition, whereas no depreciation on assets disposed-off is charged from the month of disposal. Asset category-wise depreciation
rates are as follows:

BRAC Bank BRAC EPL BRAG EPL Stock BRAC Saajan
af
i Limited Investments Limited || Brokerage Limited Exchange Limited biash Linitad
Furniture and fixture 10% 10%-20% 12.5% 10% 20%
Building 2.5% 5% 2% - -
Office equipment 20% 10%-20% 20% 10% 20%
IT equipment - Hardware 20% 25% - - 20%
IT equipment - PC, Laptop,
UPS, Printer and Scanner 33.33% 33.33% 25% 33.33% 33.33%
IT equipment - Software 10%-20% 33.33% 33.33% 20% 20%
Motor vehicles 20% 20% 20% - 20%
Office decoration/ renavation 10% 15% 169 10% 20%
wWorks

The consolidated financial statements of BRAC Bank for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been prepared applying uniform depreciation
policy In compliance with IFRS 10 * Consolidated Financial Statements”.

Gain or loss on disposal of PPE

Sale price of fixed assets are determined on the basis of fair value of the assets. Gain or loss on sale of assets are recognised in the profit and
loss account as per provision of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment.

Impairment of PPE

At each balance sheet date, the bank assesses whether there Is any indication that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. If any such indication exists, the Bank should estimate the recoverable amount of the asset. An asset is carried at more than its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount exceeds the amount to be recovered through use or sale of the asset. If this is the case, the asset is
described as impaired and impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account unless the asset Is carried at revalued
amount in accordance with IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, in which case any impairment loss of a revalued asset should be treated as
revaluation decrease under the accounting standard, No impairment loss was recognised up to the reporting period in separate financlal
statement, as no such indication existed as on the balance sheet date. -

B. Intangible assets

Software

Software acquired by the bank is stated at cost less accumulated amartisation and accumulated impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure on
software assets is capitalised only when it increases future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All expenditure
Is expensed as incurred. Amortisation is recognised In profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the software, from the
date that it is avallable for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in
the asset. The estimated useful life of software is five to ten years. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each

financial year-end and adjusted, if appropriate.

License

Value of the license is recognised at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration over the fair value

of the BRAC Bank group’s share of the assets acquired and the liabilit and contingent liabilities assumed on tha date of the acqulsition and is
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses in accordance IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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BRAC Bank Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

Impairment of Intangible assets
Intangible assets with indefinite useful life, like goodwill etc., are tested for impairment at the end of each year, As per IAS 36 Impairment, any

intangible assels with definite useful life are first reviewed for any indication of impairment. If any indication exists, then the impairment test is
carried out.

C. IFRS 16 "Leases" and Its relevant assumptions and disclosures

IFRS 16: "Leases” has come into force on 1 January 2019, as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). BRAC
Bank applied IFRS 16 using modified retraspective approach where the bank measured the lease liability at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted it using the bank's incremental barrowing rate at the date of initial application, and recognised a right-of-use asset
at the date of the initial application on a lease by lease basis.

Right-of-use assets

The Bank recognises right-of-use assets at the date of initial application of IFRS 16. Rightof-use assets are measured al cost, less any
accumulated depreciation, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a stralght-line basls
over the lease term. The right-of-use assets are presented under property, plant and equipment.

Lease llabilitles
At the commencement date of the lease, the bank recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term using incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. Lease liability Is measured by increasing the carrying amount to

reflect Interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments, and re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications.

Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term shall be the amount that produces a constant pericdic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the lease liability.

Shart-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Bank has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low value assets and short-term leases, Le. for which
the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial application. The Bank recognises lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense.

The contracts for premises with all branches, head office, regional offices, data centers and disaster recovery centers are considered for lease
calculation.

Accaunting of lease modification

IFRS 16 defines a modification as a change in the scope of a lease, or the consideration for a lease, that was not part of the original terms and
conditions of the lease. Any change that is triggered by a clause that is already part of the original lease contract {including changes due to a
market rent review clause or the exercise of an extension option) is not regarded as a madification,

Gain or loss on termination of lease agreements

As per IFRS-16, If the lease is modified to terminate the right of use of one or more underlying assets or to shorten the contractual lease term,
the bank (lessee) remeasures the lease liability at the effective date of the modification using a revised discount rate. Furthermore, it decreases
the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets to reflact the partial or full termination of the lease. Any gain or loss relating to the partial or full
termination Is recognised in profit or loss.

D. Capital work-In-progress (CWIP)

Costs incurred, but if the related asset is yet not ready or available for use as intended by management, are recognised as capital work-in-
progress and disclosed as a part of fixed assets. Once the underlying asset is ready and avallable for use, It Is transferred ta fixed assets.
However, no depreciation is charged on CWIP.

E. Investment properties

Investment property is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both and the future economic benefits that are associated with the
investment property but not held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Investment property-is-accounted for under cost modet in the

financial statements. Accordingly, after recognition as an asset, the property s camrled at its cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated Impairment loss.

3.15 Other assets and basls of their measurement
Other assets include mainly all other financial assets, interest and other unrealised income receivable, advance for operating expenditure and
stocks of stationery and stamps ate.

a. Interest receivables

Interest receivable is the amount of Interest that has been earned but has not yet been received in cash. Interest on loars and advances is
calculated and accrued on a daily product basis but charged to customer accounts in different frequency based on product nature. The accrued
but uncharged interest portion Is reported as interest receivables on reporting date. Interest receivables is recognized only when the
unconditional right to receive the cash flows of the loans and advances is established.
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BRAC Bank Limited
Motes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

b. Reporting investment in subsidiaries and associates in separate financial statements
In accordance with the IAS 27 *Separate Financial Statements", an entity may choose any of the following methods to account for investment in
subsidiaries, assaciates and joint ventures In its separate financial statements:

- atcost;
- inaccordance with IFRS 9; or
- using the equity method as described in 1AS 28;

BRAC Bank adopted IFRS 2 Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) method for accounting equity Investment in subsidiaries and
associates since June 2020. As all of the investment ars in unquoted investment, management used net assets vaiue of the each investment as

per the financial statements of the entity every year as fair value because if buyer offer any price of our investments, they will refer to NAV as
reference price,

Accordingly, below cumulative fair value ga in/(loss) has been directly recognised in equity in the separate financial statements of the bank till to
date 31 Decernber 2022,

Name of the subsidiaries and || BBL's investment Net assetvalue of || BBL's share of nat Gros: fa]lz:llua Gain/(loss) net of
associates at cost Investee asset gain/(loss) deferred tax

BRAC EPL Investment Ltd. 2,891,704,014 1,302,350,935 1,301,639,222 (1,590,064,792)|  (1,351,555,073)
f:;‘c ERL S Rromeaep 1,344,147,500 1,457,088870(  1,311,371,003 (32,776,497) (27,860,022)
hikash Ltd. 168,921,800 30,602,346,146 10,937,169,476 10,768,247,676 9,153,010,525
BRAC Saajan Exchange Ltd, 171,528,531 22,534,817 21,126,396 (150,402,135) (127,841,815)
BRAC IT Services Ltd. (biTS) 23,372,000 212,076,519 21,206,835 (2,165,165) (1,840,390)
Total 4,589,673,845 33,596,397,287 13,692,612,932 8,992,839,087 7,643,913,224

For shareholding percentage, please refer to Note 1.6
percentage of bKash 35.74% has been used for BBL'

ordinary shares.

©. Reporting investment in subsidiarles and assoclates In consolldated financial statements
Investment in subsidiary is consolidated In the consolldated financial statements considering as a single economic entity in accordance with the
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements and IFRS 10 Consalidated Financial Statements respectively,

Investment in associate is recognised in the consalidated financial statements under

Joint Ventures.

The summary of accounting of equity investment In subsidiaries and associate both in

follows:

"Summary of shareholding in subsidiaries and assosiates”. Economic sharsholding
s share of net asset considering dilution for bKash's preference shares having rights like

equity method as per IAS 28 Investments in Associates and

congolidated and separate financial statements is as

Investment class

Initial recagnition

Measurement after recognition

Recording of changes

Fair value through other comprehensive
income in separate financial statements

Impairment  loss s adjusted
automatically in OCI due to fair value

and equily method less accumulated
impairment, if any,
financial statements,

in consolidated

Investment in subsidiary Cost and equity method less accumulated|accounting. Goodwill impairment s
impairment, if any, in consclidated recognised in profit and loss in
financial statements, consolidated financial statements.
Fair value through other comprehensive Impairment loss s adjusted
income In separata financial statements automatically in OCI due to fair value

Investment in associate Cost

accounting, The share of post
acquisition Income is recognised in
consolidated profit and loss account.,

3.2  Liabilitles and provisions

3.2.1 Borrawings from other banks, financlal institutions and agents
Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and agents include interest-bearing borrowings redeemable at-call, on-demand and short-
term deposits lodged for periods of less than 6 months. These ltems are brought to account at the gross value of the outstanding balance which
includes accruad interest,

3.2.2 Deposits and other accounts

Deposits include non interest-bearing current deposit redeemable at call, interest bearing on-demand and short-term deposits, savings deposit
and term deposit lodged for perlods from 3 months to 12 years. These items are brought to account at the gross value of the outstanding
balance which includes accrued interest,
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BRAC Bank Limited
Notes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.2,3 Other liabilities
Other liabilities comprise itams such as provision for loans and advances, provision for Interest receivables, provision for taxes, interest
suspense, accrued expenses. Other liability is recognised in the balance sheet according to the guideline of Bangladesh Bank, IAS and IFRS,
Income Tax Ordinance-1984 and internal policies of the Bank. Provisions and accrued expenses are recognised in the financial statements when
the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past evenl, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to
settle the ohligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

a. Provision for loans and advances

Provision for loans and advances is created for covering the Bank from possible loan losses in the future. General provision is made on the
outstanding amount of loans and advances without considering the classification status following the prescribed rate of Bangladesh Bank.
Classified loans and advances of the Banks are categorised as Sub-Standard, Doubtful and Bad/Loss as per Bangladesh Bank guidelines. For

loans which are classified as sub-standard, doubtful or bad/loss, specific provision is created netting off security value and inlerest suspense
from the amount outstanding.

b. Provislon for other assets
Other assets excluding investment in subsidiaries is subject to making provision based on their ageing as per Bangladesh Bank BRPD circular

no. 14 dated 25 June 2001 and BRPD circular no. 04 dated 12 April 2022, Full provision is kept on other assets which are outstanding for one
year or more or classified as Bad/Loss.

c. Provision for diminution In value of Investments
Please refer to above note 3.1.2 for detail policies for recognition, measurement and provisioning of investment.

d. Provisions for off balance sheet items

No provision Is kept on items of derivatives as theré is no exposure on such gross value for the Bank. Provision for ather off balance shest itams
made as per BRPD circular no. 14 dated 23 September 2012 and BRPD circular no, 7 dated 21 June 2018 except on "bills for collection® and
‘guarantees’ where the counter guarantees have been issued by Multilateral Development Bank (MDB)/International Bank having EB rating

grade '1' equivalent outlined In the Guidelines on Risk Based Capital Adequacy (Revised Regulatory Capital Framework for banks in line with
Basel |I1).

8, Provisions for nostro accounts

Provisions for unsattled transactions on nostro accounts made are reviewed on a monthly basis by management in Risk management meeting
{RMM) and certified by the Bank's external auditors on a semi-annual basis In accordance with Bangladesh Bank Foreign Exchange Policy
Department (FEPD) circular letter No. (FEPD)/01/2005-677 dated 13 September 2005, At the Balance Sheet date, Bank is not required to make

provision regarding un-reconciled debit entries which are outstanding for more than six (0B) months in accordance with BRPD circular no. 04
dated 12 April 2022 .

f. Interest suspense

Classified loans and advances of the Banks are categorised as sub-standard, doubtful and bad/loss as per guidelines of Bangladesh Bank,
Interest acerued on Sub-Standard, Doubtful and Bad/Loss loans is transferred to Interest suspense accuunt and not considered as interest
income, This interest is recognised as interest income when it s realised in cash by the bank.

3.2.4 Share capital and shareholders' equity

Capital Managament
The Bank has a capital management process in place to measure, deploy and monitor its available capital and assess its adequacy. This capital
management process aims to achieve four major objectives; exceed regulatory thresholds and meet longer-term internal capital targets, maintain

strong credit ratings, manage capital levels commensurate with the risk profile of the Bank and provide the Bank's shareholders with acceptable
returns,

Capital is managed in accordance with the Board-approved Capital Management Planning from time to time. Senior management develop the
capital strategy and overses the capital management planning of the Bank. The Bank's Finance, Treasury and Risk Management department are

key in implementing the Bank's capital strategy and managing capital. Capital is managed using both regulatory capital measures and internal
matrix.

a. Authorlzed capital
Authorized Capital Is the maximum amount of share capital that the bank is authorised by its Memorandum of Association and Article of
Assoclation to issue to shareholders.

b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid up capital

The issued share capital of the bank is the total nominal value of the shares of the bank which have been issued to shareholders and which
remain outstanding.

Pald up share capital represents total amount of shareholder capital that has been paid in full by the ordinary shareholders. Holders of ordinary
shares are enlitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to vote at sharehalders' meetings. In the event of a

winding up of the Bank, ordinary shareholders rank after all other shareholders and creditors and are fully entitled to any residual proceeds of
liquidation.
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BRAC Bank Limited
Naotes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

c. Share Premium
Share premium is the capital that the Bank raises upon Issuing shares that is in excess of the nominal value of the shares, The share premium

shall be utilised in accordance with provisions of section 57 of the Companies Act, 1994 and as directed by Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission in this respect.

d. Statutory reserve
The Bank is required to transfer at least 20% of its profit before tax to the Statutory Reserve in accordance with provisions of section 24 of the

Banking Companies Act, 1891. This Is mandatory until such raserve is equal to the paid up capital together with amount in the share premium
account,

. Dividend Equalization Fund

According to BRPD Circular No, 18, dated 20 October 2002, the equivalent amount of exceeding 20% cash dividend shall be hept separately
under Dividend Equalization Fund which shall be treated as permanent capital. On June 02, 2016 cash dividend @ 25% (Tk. 2.5 per share of 10
each) amounting to Taka 1,776,092,275 was approved by the shareholders in 17th Annual General Meeting and the cash dividend was paid
accordingly. Therefore the excess 5% cash dividend equivalent amounting to Taka 355,218,455 has been transferred to Dividend Equalization
Fund. This Is treated as Common Equity Tier-1 (CET1)" of the Bank.

f. Revaluation reserve on govt. securitles

Revaluation reserve represents revaluation on Treasury bond (HFT and HTM) in accordance with the DOS circular no. 05, dated 26 May 2008
and DOS circular no. 05, dated 28 January 2009,

g. Remeasurements gain/(loss) of defined benefits liability (assets)

Remeasurement gain/loss arises from the actuarial valuation report carried out by professional actuary time to time on BRAC Bank Employess’
Gratuity Fund. The last actuarial valuation were carried out based on 31 December 2022 and actuarial gain/loss was recognised in equity as a
component of equity net of any deferred tax impact,

h. Non Controlling Interest

Non-contralling interest (NCI) in business s that portion of the profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to equity interests that are
not owned, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, by the parent, The portion of the NCI (percentage of ordinary shares ownad by non-
controlling shareholders) in BRAC EPL Investments Limited, BRAC EPL Stock Brokerage Limited, biash Limited and BRAC SAAAN Exchange
Limited are 0.05%, 10%, 49%, and 6.25% respectively.

3.2,5 Off-balance sheet exposures and other commitments
0Off Balance Sheet ltems include various non-derivative financial instruments primarlly letter of credit (L/C), lettar of guarantee (L/G), acceplance
and endorsements, bills for collection etc. and various derivative instruments like forward contracts and currency rate swaps ete,

3.2,6 Revenue and expense recognition

Interest Income
Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis. Interest on loans and advances ceases to be taken into income when such advances are

classified, kept in interest suspense account. Interest on classified advances is accounted for on a realisation basis as per Bangladesh Bank
guldelines.

a. Interest and fees recelvable on credit cards
Interest and fees receivable on credit cards are recognised on an accruals basis. Interest and fees cease to be taken into income when the
recovery of interest and fees Is in arrear for over three months, Thereafter, interest and fees are accounted for on realisation hasis.

b. Income on Bills purchased and discounted
Income on Bills purchased and Discounted is recognised on accrual basis.

Interest pald on daposits and borrowings ate,
Interest paid and other expenses are recognised on an accrual basis.

Investment income

Income on investments is recognised on an accruals basis. Investment income includes interest on treasury bills, treasury bonds, zaro coupon,
shares, debantures etc.

Dividend Income on Shares

Dividend income from investment in shares is recognised when the right to receive the dividend Is established, 1tis recognised when:
a) Itis probable that the economic benefit associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and
b) The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Cammission, exchange and brokerage
The Bank earns fees and commission from a diverse range of services provided to its customers. These include fees and commission income
arising on financial and other services provided by the Bank including trade finance, credit cards, debit cards, passport endorsement, visa

processing, student service, loan processing, loan syndication, locker facllities and SMS banking etc. Fees and commission income arises on
services rendered by the Bank are recognised on a realisation basis,
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BRAC Bank Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

Other operating income
The profit on sale of fixed assets Is detarmined as the difference between the carrying amount of the assets at the time of disposal and the

proceeds of disposal, and is recognised as an item of other income in the year in which the significant risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the buyer.

3.2.7 Employee benefits

a. Provident Fund (Defined Contribution Plan)

A"Defined Contribution Plan” Is a post employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate entity and will have
no legal constructive obligation to pay further amounts, Provident Fund benefits are given to the staff of the Bank in accordance with the
registered Provident Fund Rules. The commissioner of Income Tax, Large Tax Payers Unit, Dhaka has approved the Provident Fund as a
recognized fund within the meaning of section 2(52) read with the provisions of part - B of the First Schedule of Income Tax ordinance 1984, The
fund is oparated by a Board of Trustees consisting of employees of the Bank, All confirmed employees of the Bank are contributing 10% of their
basic salary as subscription of the fund. The bank also contributes equal amount of the employess’ contribution to the fu nd, In addition, there
will be an option for a voluntary contribution of a maximum of 10% (at a multiple of 5%) from the monthly basic salary of the employee at the
time of payment thereof and will be paid to the Trustees account mentioned in Rule -13. Upon completion of 1 year of service length after
confirmation employees are entitied to 100% of employer's contribution along with his/her own contribution. Interest earned from the
investments is credited to the members' account on half yearly basis.

b. Gratuity Fund (Defined Benefit Plan)

Gratuity Fund benefits are given to the staff of the Bank in accordance with the approved Gratuity Fund rules. Employees are entitled to Gratuity
benefit after completion of minimum 05 (five) years of service in the Bank. The Gratuity is calculated on the basis of last basic pay and is payable
at the rate of one month's basic pay for every completed year of service, or in the case of service of 10 years or more at the rate of one and half
month's basic pay for every completed year of service. Beyond 5 years, 6 months and more shall be considered as full year of service. Gratuity
fund is a "Defined Benefit Plan" and contribution to Gratuity Fund is measured through the result of actuarial valuation of the fund.

The Bank's net obligation in respect of gratuity Is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation of defined benefit obligations
is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liahility, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in OCI. The Bank
determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense,
current service cost and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised as salaries and allowances in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or
loss on curtaliment is recognised immediataly in profit or loss.

c. Worker's Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)
Consistent with the industry practice and in accordance with section 11(1) of the Bank Company Act, 1991 (as amended up to date) and

subsequent clarification given by Bank & Financial Institutions Division (BFID), Ministry of Finance, no provision has been mads by bank in the
reporting periad for WPPF,

d. Life Insurance
The objective of the scheme Is to provide death or permanent disability benefits to its confirmed emplayees and on their families with a sum
equal to 50 times (in case of normal death) and 100 times (in case of accidental death) of the last drawn basic salary to the nominee.

e, Welfare Fund

The objective of the Employees’ Welfare Fund is to provide regular category employees from Officer Grade-1 to Senior Principal Officer of the
BRAC Bank incurring severe accidents during official job, extended iliness (not less than 3 manths), Education for Children, Marriage of Children
which costs would not be affordable by the employee and which are not covered by any other means. All regular confirmed employees of the
Bank are contributing monthly to the Fund according to the designation, The sum subscribed monthly from salaries of the employees is credited
separately in an "Employee Welfare Fund” as a liability of the Bank. There are atleast 3 (three) members of Management Committee to manage
the fund. The Managing Director and CEO of the Bank Is the Chairman of this committee and other 2 (two) members are nominated from the
regular category staff.

f. Hospltalization Insurance

The Bank has introduced a health insurance scheme ta its confirmed employees and their respective dependents at rates provided in the health
insurance coverage policy,

E£. Performance bonus

BRAC Bank provides performance bonus to the eligible employees every year, This bonus amount is being distributed among the employees

based on their performance rating and manzgement decision. The benus amount is paid annually, normally In the following year and the costs
are accounted for in the period to which it relates,

v

(-’—'

o Alamgir
Tanzim €0

i irector & C
Managing Director & &
UGB Investment Limited

(lbur Rahman Fcs M Masud Rana rca
any Secretary DMD & Chief Financial Officer
ank Limited BRAC Bank Limited




BRAC Bank Limited
Notes to the flnanclal statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

h. Staff leave facilities

Annual leave

The provision for leave fare represents the current outstanding liability to employees at the balance sheet date. Leave Fare Assistance is a non-
recutring benefit for all permanent employees of the Bank who are entitled ta annual leave. According to Bangladesh Bank policy all permanent
employees have to avail 15 consecutive days of mandatory leave and LFA will be given in this leave period.

Casual leave

Casual leave means a leave of absence for a very short period granted to an employee who may be unable to attend duty due to sudden iliness
or urgent private affairs. Casual leave up to 5 working days can be granted per year, Not more than 3 days casual leave can be taken at a time.
Sick leave

Employee may avail Sick leave up to 14 calendar days in a year. Sick Leave for more than 2 days can be taken subject to submission of medical
certificates.

Paternity leave

All regular male employees are entitled to avail paternity leave for a period of 5 working days. Such leave can be taken before and/or after the
birth of the child anly to look after his family and home. A male employee can avail this leave only twice during his service life.

Maternity leave

Female employees of the Bank ara entitled to 6 (six) manths of paid maternity leave. They will be eligible to avail this paid maternity leave after 6
(six) months of continuous service with the bank for the first 2 (two) children. A female employee who wants to avail maternity leave befare
completion of 6 {six) months of continuous service with the bank will also be entitled to maternity leave but that would be without pay.

i. Subsidized Scheme - Staff Loan

Personal, House building and car loans are provided to the parmanent staff at a subsidized rate. Criteria and details of types wise stalf loan is
given below:

Personal Loan: A permanent staff can avail personal loan taking approval from department head and Head of HR subject to completion of a
specific service length and performance rating,

House bullding Loan: A permanent staff completing 5 year of service can avail house building loan taking approval from House Building Loan
Committee subject to performance rating and completed service length with BRAC Bank.

Car Loan: All confirmed staff at job grade from PO can avail staff car loan taking approval from department head and head of HR.
3.2.8 Taxation

Income tax on profit for the year comprises current and deferred tax and is based on the applicable tax law in Bangladesh. It is recognised in the
income statement as tax expense. :

a. Current Tax
Cument tax Is the expected tax payable on taxable Income for the year, based on tax rates and tax laws which are enacted at the reporting date,

including any adjustment for tax payable in previous periods. Current tax for current and prior periods are recognised as a liability or asset to the
extent that It is unpaid or refundable.

b. Deferred Tax

The Bank accounted for deferred tax as per IAS 12 Income Taxes. Deferred tax is accounted for any temporary differences hetween the carrying
amounts of assets and llabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax base.

Deferred tax assets, including those related to the tax effests of income tax losses and credits available to be carried forward, are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences or unused tax
losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. They are also recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on
investments and it Is probable that temporary differences will reverse in future. Deferred tax assets associated with these interests are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary difference,

Deferred tax assets and llabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period(s) when the asset and liability giving rise
to them are realised or settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been anacted or substantively enacted ty the reporting date. The
measurement reflacts the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Bank, at the reporting date, recovers or settles the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

3.2.9 Earnings Per Share
Earnings Per Share (EPS) has been computed by dividing the basic earning by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding at
the end of the year as per 1AS 33 Earnings Per Share.
a. Baslc earnings

This represents earnings for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders.
fully attributable to the erdinary shareholders.

et profit after tax less preference dividend has been considered as

b
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Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
This represents the number of ordinary shares outstanding at the beginning of the year plus the number of ordinary shares issued during the

year multiplied by a time welghted factor. The time weighting factor is the number of days the specific shares are outstanding as a proportion of
the total number of days in the year.

The basis of computation of number of shares is in line with the provisions of 1AS 33 Earnings Per Share. The logic behind this basis is, that the
bonus shares are issued to the existing shareholders without any consideration, and therefore, the number of shares outstanding is increased
. without an increase in resources generating new earnings. In contrast, other shares were jssued against consideration in cash or in kind, and
accordingly there is an increase in resource generating new earnings, Therefore, the total number of shares issued in particular year are

multiplied by a time welghting factor which is the number of days the specific shares were outsta nding as a proportion of total number of days in
the period.

b. Diluted earnings per share

The objective of diluted earnings per share is consistant with that of basic earnings per share; that is, to provide a measure of the interast of
each ordinary share In the performance of an entity taking into account dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

As per IAS-33 "Earnings Per Share', the calculation of diluted earning per share does not assume conversion, exercise or other Issue of potential

ardinary shares that would have an anti dilutive effect on earning per share. The bank has no dilutive instruments that is why we are not
considering the diluted sarning per share.

3.3  Dividend policy

Dividend on ordinary shares is recognised as a liability and deducted from retained earnings when they are approved by shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Bank.

Dividend on ordinary shares for the year that s recommended by the Directors after the balance sheet date for approval of shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting are disclosed in Mote - 51.5 to the financial statements,

3.3.1 Dividend Distribution Policy of BRAC Bank
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) has made it mandatory for the listed Company to have their dividend distribution policy
and disclosed it in the Company's website and in the Annual Report. Accordingly, BRAC Bank has formulated the dividend distribution policy

which has been approved by Board of Directors in its 303rd meeting held on 20 September 2021, The policy Is also available in bank's website
accordingly.

The BRAG Bank Ltd shall propose and declare dividend by ensuring compliance with the regulatory guidelines on dividend declaration and other
directives from Bangladesh Securities and exchange commission (BSEC), DSE, CSE, Bangladesh Bank, NER and other a pplicable regulatory
requirements as well as aligned with company's business strategy.

3.4 Reconcillation of inter-bank/Inter-branch account

Books of accounts with regard to interbank (in Bangladesh and outside Bangladesh) are reconciled on a monthly basis, and there are no material
differences which may affect the financial statements significantly,

3.5  Statement of Segment Reporting
As per IFRS 8 “Operating Segments®, an operating segment is a compenent of an entity:

i) That engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (include revenues and expenses relating to
transactions with other components of the same entity);

i) Whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performances, and

Iii}  For which discrete financial information Is available.

The Bank identifies segment based on its business segment as well as its subsidiaries. Business segment comprises SME, Retail, Corporate and
Treasury under Conventional hanking. The Bank reviews the segments at the end of each raporting period to identify which of its segments are
reportable and disclose the related information for those reportable segments accordingly.

There are 4 (four) operating segments (SME, Retail, Corporate, and Treasury) on standalone basis as on 31 December 2022, Each operating
segment Is reportable as per latest evaluation in accordance with IFRS 8: Operating segments.

In consolidated basis, each of subsidiary can be considered as operating segment in addition to segments on standalone basis. However, no
segment reporting has been made for subsidiaries as thelr audited financial statements have been appended with Bank's financial statements.

3.6  Related party disclosures
Related Party Is a party related to an entity if;
i} Directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party controls, is contralled by, or is under control with, the company; has an
interest in the company, that gives it significant influence over the company; or has join control over the company;
i) The party Is an associate (as defined in IAS 28 Investment in Assaciates and Joint ventures);
ill) The party is a joint venture in which tha entity is a venture ( as per IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures);
W) The party is member of the key management of personal of the entity or its parent;
v) The party is a close mamber of the family of any Individual referred to in (i) or (iv);
vi) The party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or ipdirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) gr (v); or
vii] The party is post-employmdqt benefit plan for the benefit of emplfivees of the entity. or of any entity that is related party of the entity.
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3.7 Events after the Balance Sheet Date
As per IAS - 10 "Events after the Reporting Period" events after the reporting period are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue. Two types of event can be
identified:
a} Adjusting events afler the reporting period which provide evidence of conditions which existed at the end of the reporting pericd; and
b) Non adjusting events after the reporting period, are those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period.

The details about the events after reporting period can be found at note - 51.5.

3.8 Risk management
Risk management is a discipline at the core of every entarprise and encompasses all activities that affect ts risk profile. The Standards of Risk
Management, as taken up by the Bank for International Settlements (BIS) and, particularly, Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS),
has been applied by bank regulators across the world, The Central Bank of Bangladesh, i.e. Bangladesh Bank also issued revised risk
management guidelines in Ostobar 20418, which forms the basis of risk management of all scheduled banks in Bangladesh.

BRAC Bank Limited (BBL) rigarously follows a robust risk management framework across the organization and across all risk types, underpinned
by our culture and values where we follow the three lines of defense model. Each of the three lines of defense plays distinct roles in BBL's
broader governance framework. Bank's risk management framework is applied enterprise-wide and consists of three key elements: risk
governance, risk appetite, and risk management tools. Major risks for BBL include credit, market, liquidity and operational risk. In line with the
regulatory requirement and elevating its risk management function, BRAC Bank has established comprehensive risk management guidelines,
duly approved by its Board of Directors. The bank's risk management strategy is basad on a thorough awareness of diverse risks, a disciplined
risk assessment process, and cautious measurement processes with ongoing monitoring. The bank is continuing to improve its risk management
systems, not only to meet regulatory obligations, but also to achieve superior riskadjusted returns and optimal capital use while keeping the
organization's business objectives in mind. The bank handles risk across two strategic layers: the managerial layer and the operational layer, for
affective risk management. Risk discussions are held at those levels with the goal of identifying and measuring the impact of various types of
risk in core hanking. Risk mitigation and viable solutions are examined, and conclusions are reached as a result.

A. Operating Environment
The Bank's operating environment during the year ended 2022 were impacted by a number of major global events such as continuation of COVID
19 related disruptions, start of Russia-Ukraine conflict, increase in fuel and commodity prices, strengthening of US Dollars, etc, Most of these
events also had significant impact on the local economic environment affecting the Bank's operations. From time to time, the Government of
Bangladesh and the local Central Bank (Bangladesh Bank) has issued various directives to manage impacts from these events which the Bank
has followed. Management on regular basis review and monitor the global and country specific macro-economic situation and factor these issues
Into the decision making process.

B. Credit risk management
Effactive credit risk management is a vital component of a comprehensive risk management strategy and critical to any bank's long-term
sustainability. Considering key elements of credit risk, the bank has separate divisions for Corporate, SME, Retail and Credit Cards are entrusted
with the responsibility of maintaining effective relationship with customers, marketing credit products, exploring new business opportunities, etc.

For transparency in operations during the entire credit process, teams for I. Gredit Approval, ii. Asset Operations, iil. Recavery Unit and Special
Asset Management have been set up.

The entire process involves relationship teams of respective asset portfolios (Retail, SME and Corporate} booking clients and the underwriting
team conducting thorough assessment before placing the facility for approval with the authority. Risk assessment includes borrower risk
analysis, industry risk analysis, financial risk analysis, security risk analysis, account performance risk analysis, AML risk analysis and
environmental & social risk analysis of the customer, Post-approval, the Credit Administration Department ensures compliance with all legal
formalities, completion of documentation, including security of propased facility, and eventual disbursement. This arrangement has not only
ensured segregation of duties and accountability, but also helped in minimizing risk of compromise with quality of the credit portfalio,

To ensure sound practices in credit risk management, including taking calculated risk and maintaining asset portfclio quality, BRAC Bank follows
well-established Credit Policy Guidelines, as approved by the Board of Directors and prepared in line with internationally-accepted risk
management principles and best practices. The guidelines are also aligned with the ‘Guidelines on Credit Risk Management (CRM) for Banks'
(March, 2016) by Bangladesh Bank, the Bank Company Act, 1991 (Amended in 2013), Risk Management Guidelines for Banks (October, 2018)
and creditrelated circulars and instructions of Bangladesh Bank circulated from time ta time. In 2022, BRAC Bank has updated its credit policy
in line with with the instructions issued by Bangladesh Bank for the loan accounts at tha time of sanctioning or renewal, whera applicable.

In 2022, BRAC Bank has complied with the Instructions given by Bangladesh Bank vide BRPD Circular letter no 04 dated 04-Jan-21 and BRPD
Circular letter no 35 dated 06-Jul-21 for the loan accounts at the time of sanctioning or renewal, where applicable.

C. Forelgn exchange risk management
Foreign exchange risk arises from fluctuations in currency prices, influenced by various macro and micro economic factors. Contemporary
financial institutions engage in activities starting from basic currency buy, sell, imports, exports and remittances to complex structured products.
Within the bank, the Treasury division is vested with the responsibility to measure and minimize risk associated with bank’s foreign currency
position.
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All treasury functions are clearly demarcated between treasury front office, mid office and back office which has separate and independant
reporting lines to ensure segregation of duties and accountability and also helps minimize the risk of compromise. The front office is involved
only in dealing activities, mid office is involved in monitaring of different limits, e.g. counterparty limits, dealers' trading limits, stop/loss limits,
etc. and calculation of Value at Risk (VaR) and reports directly to the Chief Risk/Cperating Officer of the bank. Treasury back office is responsible
for all related processing functions with separate reporting line to the Head of Operations.

Dealing room is well-equipped with Reuter's dealing system, a number of FX trading platforms and voice loggers, etc. State-of-the-art treasury
system Is in place to ensure straight through processing (STP) of all deals. Dealing room also offers an FX trading platform 'BBL Electra’ to
counterparty banks where all deals are auto-hedged and processed through STP without creating any position for the dealing room. The robust
treasury system of the Bank also facilitates the mid office in effective monitoring and risk reporting and the back office with different reports,
along with easy processing of transactions, Countarparty limit is set by the Credit Committee and monitored by the mid office. Clearly expressed
dealers’ trading limits, stop-loss limits and currency-wise open position limits are in place that are monitored by the mid office. All Treasury
including FX transactions are carried out by welktrained and dynamic dealers who ensure local and global regulatory compliance.

D. Asset llabllity management
Changes in market liquidity and or interest rate exposes the bank’s business to the risk of loss, which may, in extreme cases, threaten the
survival of the institution. Thus, It is essantial that the level of balance sheet risks are effectively managed, appropriate policies and procedures
are established to control and limit these risks and proper resources are made available for evaluating and controlling these risks. The Asset
Liability Managament Committee (ALCO) of the bank monitors liquidity and market risks of the bank and plans balance sheet & pricing strategy
accordingly. Bank has dedicated ALM desk under Treasury and Fl division, to support ALCO in decision making.

ALCO also revisws the country's overall economic position, the bank's liquidity position, ALM ratios, interest rate risks, capital adequacy,
deposit/advances growth, cost of deposit and yleld on advances, FX gap, market interest rates, loan loss provision adequacy and deposit and
lending pricing strategy.

Qperational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss resulting a wide varlety of causes asscciated with the Bank's processes, people, technology or
infrastructure, or from external factors. Operatianal risk is inherent in the Bank's activities and as with other risk types Is managed through an

overall framework with checks and balances that include implementation of three line of defence, recognised ownership of the risk by the
businesses and independent risk management oversight.

E

The operational risk policy codifies the core gaverning principles for operational risk management and provides a framewaork for operational risk.
In accordance with the policy, each business area Is responsible to identify its key operational risks as well as the controls established to
mitigate those risks and to ensure compliance with laws, regulations, regulatory administrative actions and the Bank's policies.

The Bank's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the reputation of the Bank's
reputation with overall cost effectiveness and innovation. In all cases, the Bank's policy requires compliance with all applicable legal and
regulatory requirements.

F. Equity Risk

Equity risk arises from movement in market value of equities held. The risks are monitored by Bank's Treasury and Fis Division under a well
designed policy framewaork.

G. Prevention of Money Laundering (ML), Terrorist Financing (TF) and Proliferation Financing (PF)
The Bank as the legal framework of the “Money Laundering Prevention Act, 2012 (amended In 2015)" and Anti Terrorism Act, 2009 (amended In
2013), has been pursuing the policy of closed-fisted compliance with all directives and circulars issued by regulatory body to ensure the culture
of good governance in all aspects of its banking services and operations. The BRAC Bank has implemented additional processes and procedures
covering areas of COD/KYC, review of high-risk accounts, Trade CDD and risk grading of customers, PEP/IP, Ultimata Beneficial Owner guideline,
name screening (that includes sanctions and adverse media) are under monitoring and revision to ensure policles of the Bank remains up-to-
date.

New transaction manitoring reports that has been introduced with a risk-based approach resulted in the detection and reporting of suspicious
actlvitles/transactions (SAR/STR). Further discipline was brought in Improving the quality of the quarterly meeting and self-assessment reports
by branches through training and guidance notes to assess themselves. As the key objectives of the Bank are to ensure the implementation of
policies and procedures In line with BFIU Guidelines, improve employee awareness and commitment, integrate higher engagement and focus of
Senior Management within Bank's control measures to improve overall AML-CFT Governance and better mitigate the money laundering &
terrorist financing risk, thereby thriving to increase AML/CFT rating through a continuous process.

H. Internal Control and Compliance (ICC)
The bank has instituted internal control mechanism to provide reasonable assurance regarding the attainment of objectives in the effectivenass
and efficiency of operations, the reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws, regulations and internal policies. Through
internal control systems, the bank identifies weaknesses associated with the process and adopts appropriate measures to overcome these
deficiencies.

The main objectives of internal control are as follows:

a) Operations objectives: Attainment of the bank's mission and vision.

b) Reporting objectives: Timely, accurate and comprehensive reporting - financial and non-financial, internal and external,

¢) Compliance objectives: Conducting activities and taking specific actipns in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
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The bank has established an effective internal control system whose primary aim is to ensure the overall management of risks and also provide
reasanable assurance that the objectives set by the bank will be met, It has been designed to develop a high level of risk culture among our
people, establish efficient and effective operating standards, ensure reliability of internal and external information, including accounting and
financial Information, secure the bank's operations and assets, and camply with laws, regulatory requirements and internal policies.

The key functions that have been established in reviewing adequacy and integrity of the system of internal controls are as follows:
a) Various committees are established by the Board to assist it in ensuring the effectiveness of the bank's daily cperations are in accordance
with the corporate objectives, strategies and the annual budget, as well as approved policies and business directions.

b) The Internal Audit Department of the Bank checks for compliance with policies and procedures and the effectiveness of the internal control
systems on an ongoing basis using samples and rotational procedures and highlights significant findings in respect of any non-compliance.

¢) Audits are carried out on various departments/units, SME Service Centres and all branches in accordance with the annual audit plan,
approved by the Audit Committee of the Board. Findings of the internal audit are submitted to the Audit Committee of the Board for review
at their periodic meetings.

d) The Audit Committee of the Board of the bank reviews internal control issues identified by the Internal Audit Department, Bangladesh Bank,
External Auditors and the management, and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control

systems. The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings of the Board are ta bled at the meetings of the Board of Directors of the bank on a
periodic basis.

8) Self-assessment of anti-fraud internal controls is carried out on a semi-annual basis and Is sent to Bangladesh Bank, as per req uirements of
DOS Circutar Letter No, 10, dated 09 May 2017, issued by Bangladesh Bank.

f) In assessing the Intemal control system, identified officers of the bank continued to review and update all procedures and controls that ara
connected with significant accounts and disclosures of the financial statements of the bank.

. Information and communication technology (ICT) security
BRAC Bank is dedicated to provide high-quality service and banking security. The bank has an ICT security strategy for cyber security and ICT risk
mitigation, in accordance with the Bangladesh Bank ICT guidelines stated in BRPD circular no. 14 dated 23 October 2005 regarding “Guideline
an Information and Communication Technology for Scheduled Banks”, BRPD circular no. 21 dated 20 May 2010 and BRPD circular no. 09 dated

17 September 2015 and well-established frameworks and international standards and contrels, such as COBIT, ITIL, IS0 27001, 1SO 18788,
NIST, GDPR, PCl, and SANS,

Bank has implemented multiple robust security solutions to prevent any unwanted/unautharized/ unauthorized malware attack as well as a zero
day attack based on static behavior, to detect and prevent data leakage, unauthorized use and transmission of sensitive information, and to
reduce insider threats by detecting the inappropriate actions that can lead to malware infections or data breaches, etc. The Bank has also
implemented a tharough Data Leakage Prevention scheme to safeguard the data of its clients and the bank itself,

Comprehensive annual maintenance contracts (AMCs) and service level agreements (SLAs) were established with partners of major data
center equipment manufacturers to guarantee 24x7 servicing for all active data center and disaster recovery site equipment, With the upgrade
to the monitoring system of the data center and disaster recovery site, the bank is now able 1o proactively monitor all system parameters and

take appropriate preventative action. Additionally, BRAC Bank has implemented the ITIL framework of best practice recommendations to ensure
complete IT sevice management.

The BRAC bank believes integrated cyber protection and digital transformation to be essential. As a digitally oriented bank, BRAC Bank has built
a comprehensive cyber security roadmap and is aiming to equip itself with the finest personnel, security sclutions, processes, and procedures.
BRAC Bank utilizes premier worldwide external organizations to undertake assessments and regularly assesses its cyber security posture and
future readiness.

J. Implementation of BASEL- Il
To cope up with the internaticnal best practices and to make the bank's capital shock absorbent ‘Guidelines on Risk Based Capital Adequacy
(RBCA) for banks was introduced by Bangladesh Bank &s per BASEL IIl. BASEL I framework has three main components referred to as pillars:

i.  Pillar | addresses minimum capital requirement;
il.  Pillar Il elaborates the process for assessing the overall capital adequacy aligned with risk profile of a bank as well as capital growth plan;
and

iii. Finally, Pillar lll gives a framework of public disclosure on the position of a bank's risk profiles, capital adequacy, and risk management
system.

BRAG Bank has fully complied with all the directives provided by the Central bank from time to time, starting frem Pillar |, Il and Il reporting
requirements to perlodic Stress Testing actlvity etc. Formation of BASEL Steering Committee chaired by the Managing Director of the bank helps
us to ensure supreme governance and strict regimentation at execution level. As yet, BRAC bank has been able to successfully implement the
phase in transition arrangement for Basel |, which started from the year 2045 and ended In 2020,

As per RBCA Guideline, all scheduled banks are required to calculate Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR] based on 'Solo® basis as well
as on 'Consolidated’ basis. The calculation of CRAR under Basel |Ii has been made as per "Guidelines on Risk Based Capital Adequacy as issued
by Bangladesh Bank vide BRPD Circular no. 18 dated December 21, 2014 and subsequent related circulars of Bangladesh Bank.
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K. Disclosure on country risk exposure
Country risk refers to the possibility that a foreign obligator may be incapable or unwilling to fulfill his obligations due to country specific
economic, political, social ecological conditions. This may include the consequences of exchange control, currency devaluation, official
government actions or any significant socio-political changes in the country where plagements, lending and investments made. Major categories
of country risk comprises of sovereign risk, contagion risk, currency risk, indirect country risk, macroeconomic risk and transfer risk,

BRAC Bank Limited manages and monitor its country risk exposure in accordance with the guidelines issued by Bangladesh Bank in its BRPD
circular number 07 circulated on April 13, 2021. In compliance with this regulatory guideline, bank has assessed its position and found banks'
net funded exposure to a single country is below 2% of its total asset, Hence there is no additional pravision/capital requirement for exposure to
any single country,

L. Disclosure on credit rating information
In compliance with Bangladesh Bank's BRPD circular No. 06, dated July 05, 2006, and with a view to assure investors and other stakeholders of

the sustainable operating positions of the bank, while also safeguarding stakeholder interasts, BRAC Bank is subject to ratings assessment by
reputed credit rating agencies. The summary of Bank's credit rating as of 31 December 2022 is presented below:

Rating agency Long-term rating | Shert-term rating Outlaok Valid up to
Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh (CRAB) AAA 571-1 Stable 30 June 2023
Credit Rating Information and Services Ltd (CRISL) AA+ ST-1 Stable 02 July 2023
Emerging Credit Rating Ltd (ECRL) AA+ ST-1 Stable 30 Juns 2023
5&P global Ratings B+ B Stable Movembear, 2022
Moody's Ba3 NP Stable September, 2022

3.9 Director's and management's responsibilities on statement
| The Board of Directors and managements take respansibility for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.
: 3.10 Approval of the financial statemants
The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on 11 April 2023,
3.11 General
a) Figures appearing in the financial statements have been rounded-off to the nearest Taka.
b}  Figures of previous year have been rearranged, wherever considered necessa 1y, to conform with the current year's presentation,

c) The expenses, irrespective of capital or revenue in nature, acerued/due but not paid have been provided fer in the books of accounts.
d) The expenses include VAT charges on respective services or goods received,
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off-shore Banking Units

Annexura - H

Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2022
2022 2021

Particulars Note 1_ _1 I_ —]
_ - { usD |[ Taka | UsD I Taka |
PROPERTY AND ASSETS

Cash - A .
Cashin hand [

(Including foreign currency) 5

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent

bankls) :

(Including foreign currency)

Balance with other banks and financial

institutlons 3 23,060,934 2,382,125,360 69,634,716 5,074,658,656
Inside Bangladesh - - = S
Qutside Bangladesh 23,060,934 2,382,125,360 69,634,716 5,974,658,656
Money at call on short notice - - -
Investments - g - =
Government = i
Others - =
Loans and advances 4 478,265,314 49,403,372,048 402,592,989 34,642,478,506
Loans, cash credit, overdrafts etc. 457,081,025 47,215,098,5655 375,668,784 32,231,523,671
Small and medium enlerprises 1,312,019 135,527,658 1,712,685 146,948,408
Bills purchased and discounted 19,872,270 2,052,745,833 25,221,520 2,164,006,427
Fixed assets including premises, furniture and

fixtures = 3 %

Other assets 5 9,795,602 1,005,074,422 9,272,615 795,602,813
Total Property and Assets 511,121,940 52,790,671,828 481,500,320 41,312,740,975
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Liabilitles

Borrowings from other banks, fina ncial

institutions and agents B8 447,328,736 46,207,716,494 422,378,784 36,240,100,482
Money at call and short notice - - - .
Deposits and other accounts 7 21,650,219 2,236,402,572 9,716,023 833,634,780
Current acecounts and other accounts 626,567 64,722,483 809,354 69,442,695
Bills payable - - - .
Savings deposits - - - -
Fixed deposits 20,300,041 2,096,933,295 £,633,540 740,757,724
Other deposits 723,611 74,746,794 273,129 23,434,461
Qther llabilities 8 48,012,922 4,214,678,041 54,361,285 4,496,927,343
Total Liabilities 516,991,877 52,658,797,107 486,456,102 41,570,662,605
Capital and Sharehalders' Equity

Paid up share capital =
Statutory reserve - -
Revaluation reserve - - .
Foreign currency translation reserve - 329,930,810 12,610,122
Surplus in profit and loss account/Reta ined

earnings 9 (5,868,937)| | (198,156,089) (4,955,782) (270,631,752)
Total shareholders' equity (5,869,937) 131,774,721 (4,955,782) {257,921,630)
Total Liabllities and Shareholders' Equity 511,121,940 52,790,571,828 481,500,320 41,312,740,975

, 4
Mahbubur Rahman FC
Company Secretzfry
RAGC Bank Limited
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M Masud Rana Fc-
DMD & Chief Financial Officer
BRAC Bank Limited
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Managing Director & QEO
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off-shore Banking Units

Continuation of Annexure - H

Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2022
2022 2021
Partlculars Note I_ I }
I_ Usb | l Taka J r usD | l Taka
Off balance sheet Items
Contingent llabllities
acceptances and endorsements 10,857,616 1,121,559,199 12,205,159 1,032,165,486
Letter of guarantees 1,680,960 163,308,451 - -
Irrevocahle letter of credits - - 5,118,638 436,927,963
Bills for collection 14,422,755 1,480,827,345 13,603,469 1,129,567 424
Other contingent liabilities . - 176,241 -
Total 26,861,331 2,774,694,995 31,183,507 2,698,660,873
Other commitments
Swap deals with banks and customers - -
Spotand forward deals with banks and - - -
customers
Total off balance sheet ltems 26,861,331 2,774,694,995 44,193,507 2,608,660,873
115
M Nahbubur Rahman rcs M Masud Rana rca Tanzim Alamgif

Co eta
BRAC Bank Limited

ny Secretary
Y BRAC Bank Limited

DMD & Chief Financial Officer

SELIM R.

Tl

USSAIN
it I

Managing Director & QEO
ucB investment Limited



Continuation of Annexure - H
Off-shore Banking Units
Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Particulars MNote [ ) ] l gedl J
[ usp Il Taka [ usp 11 Taka |
Interest income 10 21,862,280 2,087,787,637 10,637,272 905,068,309
Interest paid on deposits and borrowing ete. 11 15,802,206 1514,202,169 6,883,601 576,258,553
Met Interest Income 6,060,774 573,585,468 3,763,671 328,809,756
Investment income - - - -
Commission, exchange and brokerage 12 602,932 55,988,762 508,614 43,131,480
Other operating income i3 391,005 36,401,181 520,967 45,018,624
Total operating Income 7,054,711 665,975,401 4,792,262 416,959,840
Salaries and allowances 1,088,154 102,230,848 830,182 70,720,500
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc. 14 89,169 8,355,139 78,498 13,874,663
Legal expenses 52 4,996 - -
Postage, stamps, telecommunication ete. 15 4932 459,035 4,024 342,605
Statianery, printing, advertisement etc. 16 9,218 871,479 4,466 381,255
Depreciation and repairs to bank’s assets 119,857 11,275,665 103,166 8,785,868
Other expenses 677,632 63,737,066 202,099 17,215,042
Total operating expenses 1,988,914 186,934,228 1,222,435 111,319,933
Profit befare provisions 5,065,797 479,041,173 3,669,817 305,639,907
Provislon for:
Loans and advances 17 4,787,320 406,665,510 10,976,329 938,079,064
Dff balance sheet items - - - -
Others = = - -
Taotal provision 4,787,320 406,665,510 10,976,329 938,079,064
Prafit/(loss) before taxes 27TBATT 72,375,663 (7,406,512) (632,435,157)
Provision for tax:
Current tax expense = = =
Deferred tax expense/ (income) . 5 5
Total provision for tax 18 - - - -
Total profit/(loss) after taxes 278,477.00 72,375,663 (7,406,512) (632,439,157)
anaF ChA =
asud R ) i (,_
2 ef Financia! Officer | UL

subur Rahman FCS D & Chief FineY ‘ .
athbuSecretaTY DB‘;AC pank Limited Tanzim Alamgir
4 Managing Director & CEO

BRAC Bank i UCB Investment Limited




Continuation of Annexure - H
Off-shore Banking Units
Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2022

202 I 2
Particulars - ——l L
UsD [ Taka |[__uso J[  Taka
A Cash flows from operating activitles
Interest receipts in cash 15,581,532 ' 1,394,352,068 9,543,342 809,552,379
Interest payment (12,722,8680) (1,171,094,674) (6,790,073} (566,899,959)
Fees and commissions receipts 602,932 55,988,753 508,613 43,131,459
Cash payments to employees (1,088,154) (102,230,848) (830,183) (70,720,500)
Cash payments to suppliers (14,150) (1,330,513) (8,489) (723,860)
Receipts from other operating activities 391,005 36,401,181 530,005 45,021,853
payment for other operating activities : (418,015) (43,711,111) (346,800) (36,747,012}
Operating cash flow before changes In operating
assets and liabilities (i) 2,332,470 168,374,856 2,606,415 222,614,360
Increase/decrease In operating assets and
llabliitles
Loans and advances to customers (75,672,323) {14,860,893,539) (157,942,112) (13,795,814,994)
Other assets (6,933,789) 483,784,961 67,943 (577,465)
Deposits from other ban ks/Dorrowings 24,949,943 9,967,616,012 154,703,199 13,540,915,651
Deposits from customers 11,834,195 1,402,767,792 146,412 22,421,222
Other liabilities (3,184,278) (796,591,722) 2,730,913 201,113,661
Cash utilised in operating assets and liabilities {ii) (48,9086,252) (3,803,316,496) (293,645) (32,241,925)
Net cash (used)/flows from operating activ [tles
Uf'r‘; {UBRL)/ R TR 0 BENG (46,573,782)  (3,634,941,640) 2,312,770 190,372,435
B. Cash flows from Investing activities
Investment in commercial paper [ = |l -l [ -1
Net cash used In Investing activitles - - - -
G.  Cash flows from financing activitles - . =
D. Netincrease/(decrease) In cash (A+B+C) (46,573,782) (3,634,941,640) 2,312,770 180,372,435
E. Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 69,634,716 5,974,658,656 67,321,946 5,708,975,151
Exchange difference - 42,408,344 - 75,311,070
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year (D+E} 23,080,934 2,382,125,360 69,634,716 5,974,658,656
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year:
Cash in hand (including foreign currency) - . -
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agents ) < .
bank(s) (including foreign currency)
Balance with other banks and financlal Institutions 23,060,934 2,382,125,360 69,634,716 5,074,668,656
23,060,934 2,382,125,360 69,634,716 5,974,658,656
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Gontinuation of Annexure - H
Off-Shore Banking Units

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

1 Status of the units

Off.shore Banking Units of BRAC Bank Limited, poverned under the rules and guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. The hank commenced the
operation of its Off-shore banking Unit from 2010 after obtaining necessary approval from Bangladesh Bank.

1.1  Principal Activities

The principal activities of the units are o provide all kinds of commercial banking services to its customers through its off-shore Banking
units in Bangladesh.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies and basis of preparation
24 Asummary of the principie accounting policies which have been applied consistently (unless otherwise stated), are set out below:

a) Basis of accounting
The off-shore Banking Units maintain its accounting records in USD from which accounts are prepared according lo the Bank Companies
Act 1991, International Financial feporting Standards and other applicable directives issued by Bangladesh Bank.

b) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounis of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongaing basis. Revision of accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

¢) Forelgn currency transactions and translations to presentation currency
Fareign currency transactions are converted into equivalent functional currency l.e. USD using the exchange rates ruling on the dates of
respective transactions as per IAS .21" The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates".

All revenue items have been translated to presentation currency i.e. BOT at average rate and all balance sheet items except retained
earnings were translated to presentation currency at the clasing rate. Any resulting differences have been recognised as foreign currency

Commitments for outstanding farward foreign exchange contracts disclosed in the financials are transl ated at contracted rates. Contingent
liabilities/ commitments for letter of credit and letter of guarantes denominated in foreign currencies are expressed In Taka terms at the
rates of exchange ruling on the balance date.

2.2  Reporting period
These financial statements cover one calendar year from 4 January to 31 December 2022.

2.3  Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and cash at bank, highly
liquid interest bearing investment/securities with original maturities of less than three month.
As per IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, cash flow statement can be prepared gither in direct method or in indirect method. The presentation

is selected to present these cash flows in a manner that is most appropriate for the business or industry . The method selected is applied
gonsistently. As per BRPD 14 dated 25 June 2003, cash flow statement should be a mixture of direct and indirect method.

2.4 \Loans and advances
a) Loans and advances of Off-share Banking Units are stated in the balance sheet on gross basis.
b) Interest is calculated on a daily product basis but charged and accounted for on acerual basis. Interest Is not charged on bad and loss
loans as per guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. Records of such interest amounts are kept in separate memorandum accounts.

2.5  Provision far liabllities

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the unit has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is
prabable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligaticns, in accordance with the |AS 3T " Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assels”.

26 General
a) Figures appearing in these financlal statements have been rounded off to the nearest Taka and rearranged wherever necessary.
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Continuation of Annexure - H

[ 2022 | 2021
Particulars
i ‘lr wso | Taka ] o || Taka |

3 Balance with ather banks and financial Institutions

JP Morgan Chase Bank, New York 6,799,986 702,418,166 1,612,754 138,374,289
JP Morgan AG, Frankfurt, Germany 247,489 25,564,908 4,957 425,313
JP Morgan Chase, N.A., London 13,459 1,390,286 17,005 1,458,054
BBL OBU to Other Bank OBU placement 16,000,000 1,652,752,000 68,000,000 5,834,400,000
23,060,934 2,382,125,360 69,634,716 5,074,658,656
4 Loans and advances
Loans, cash credits, overdrafts etc. (note 4.1) 457,081,025 47,215,098,555 375,668,784 32,231,523,671
Small and medium enterprises 1,312,019 135,527,658 1,712,685 146,948,408
Bills purchased and discounted (note 4.2) 19,872,270 2,052,745,833 25,221,520 2,164,006,427
478,265,314 49,403,372,046 402,692,989 34,542,478,506
44 Overdraits 2,259,757 233,426,083 5,150,889 441,946,251
Demand loans 409,950,673 42,346,674,651 326,653,467 28,026,867,478
Term loans 44,870,595 4,634,997 821 43,854,428 3,762,709,942
457,081,025 47,215,098,6556 375,658,784 32,231,623,671
ki 2022 o | L 2021
uso [ _Taka ][ USD — [ Teka
4.2  Bills purchased and discounted 19,872,270 2,052,745,833 25,221,520 2,164,006,427
Bills purchased and discounted SME - - - -
19,872,270 2,052,745,833 25,221,520 2,164,006,427
5 Other assets
Interest recelvables 9,207,982 944,365,760 2,926,535 250,930,191
Deferred revenue expenditure 587,710 60,708,662 200,313 17,186,834
Receivables against collateral margin-swap - - - 180,000
Receivable settlement account-0BU/ DBU . - 6,145,767 527,306,788
9,795,602 1,006,074,422 9,272,615 795,603,813
6 Borrowings from other banks, financial
Institutlons and agents
Inside Bangladesh:
Woarl Bank, Dhaka - . 5,000,000 429,000,000
On Shore to BBL Off Shore 72,822,436 7,522,339,223 141,090,169 12,105,536,457
72,822,436 7.522,339,223 146,090,169 12,534,5636,457
Outside Bangladesh:
State Bank of India, Hong Kong 24,000,000 2,479,128,000 - -
Nabil Bank Limited, Nepal 6,186,300 639,026,231 3,500,000 300,300,000
HDFC Bank Limited, India 15,000,000 1,549,455,000 10,000,000 858,000,000
Standard Chartered Bank, Singapore 5,000,000 516,485,000 27,600,000 2,368,080,000
DBS Bank Singapore - - 28,000,000 2,402 400,000
Asian Development Bank 30,000,000 3,098,910,000 30,000,000 2,574,000,000
Axis Bank Limited = - 20,000,000 1,716,000,000
Caixabank S.A. 67,000,000 6,920,899,000 30,000,000 2,574,000,000
Siddhartha Bank Limited, Kathmandu ¥ - 10,000,000 858,000,000
The National Bank of Ras Al-Khaimah, UAE 50,000,000 5,164,850,000 17,148,000 1,471,298,400
Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank, UAE 15,000,000 1,549,455,000 55,000,000 4,719,000,000
First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC, UAE = - 410,000,000 858,000,000
CDC Group Ple, United Kingdom 8,580,000 886,288,260 6,540,625 561,185,625

—

Tanzim Alamgir
Managing Director & CEO
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Continuation of Annexure - H

International Finance Corporation (IFC), USA 30,000,000 3,098,910,000 16,000,000 1,287,000,000
JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A. Singapore 49,000,000 5,061,5653,000 3,500,000 300,300,000
Bank Muscat Saog 17,000.000 1,756,049,000 10,000,000 £§58,000,000
Cargill Financial Services International 30,000,000 3,098,910,000
Commercial Bank Of Qatar 10,000,000 1,032,970,000
Mizuho Bank Ltd, Singapore 10,000,000 1,032,970,000
Yes Bank, India 7,740,000 799,518,780 - =
374,506,300 38,685,377,271 276,288,625 23,705,564,025
447,328,736 46,207,716,494 422,378,794 36,240,100,482
Deposit and other accounts
Local currency:
Current and other accounts -
Bills payable - - -
Saving deposits -
Fived deposits - - - -
Other deposits -
Foreign currency:
Current and other accounts 626,567 64,722,483 209,354 69,442,595
Bills payable - - - -
Saving deposits " & - -
Fixed deposits 20,300,041 2,096,933,295 8,633,540 740,757,724
Other deposlits 723,611 74,746,794 273,129 23,434,461
24,650,219 2,236,402,572 9,716,023 833,634,780
Total Deposit and other accounts 21,660,218 2,236,402,672 9,716,023 833,634,780
Other liabilitles
Provisians for loans and advances 16,631,233 1,717,956,454 24,297,996 1,958,679,094
Special provision COVID-19 364,561 37,348,170 435,293 37,348,170
Provision on interest receivable 91,394 9,440,739 21,488 1,843,706
Interest suspense 1,028,776 106,269,450 1,618,811 164,633,977
Provision for taxation net off AIT 654,488 67,606,624 787,956 67,606,624
Interest payable on borrowings 4,068,022 420,214,461 1,275,007 109,395,602
Accrued expenses 419,620 35,607,707 (48,975) (4,054,049)
Suppliers payable {680) (70,212) (231,137) (19,901,732)
Payable to on-shore 23,280,472 1,709,927,600 27,431,048 2,105,368,327
Payable against SWIFT charge 9,048 934,644
Others payable 1,468,988 109,442,404 (1,526,202) 76,007,624
48,012,922 4,214,678,041 54,361,285 4,496,927,343
l;uwlm [ 2022 o] = 2021 |
_ [ usp [ Taka [ usp [ _Taka |
Surplus in profit and loss account/ retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (4,955,782) (270,531,752) 2,450,290 235,781,082
Adjustment to retained earnings (1,192,632) - 440 126,126,323
Add: Retained surplus for the year 278.AT7 72,375,663 (7.406,512) (632,439,157)
(5,868,937) (198,156,089) (4,955,782) {270,631,752)
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Cantinuation of Annexure - H
10 Interest Income

Interest on loans and advances 21,824,509 2,084,233,475 10,634,503 904,832,171
Interest on money at call and short natice 5 H & .
Interest on Funding SWAP - . = »
Other interest income 38471 3,554,162 2,769 236,138
21,862,980 2,087,787,637 10,637,272 005,068,309

1% Interest paid on deposits and borrowing ete.

Interest on deposits 490,650 46,309,807 240,178 13,228,827
Interest on borrawing from banks & Fls 15,298,529 1,466,632.860 32,869 569,529,636
Interest on funding SWAP - - 6,602,017 721,430
Interest on money at call and short notice 13,027 1,259,502 ' 8,637 2,778,660
15,802,206  1,5614,202,169 6,883,601 576,258,663

12  Commission, exchange and brokerage

Commission from letters of credit-foreign 151,603 14,154,755 140,757 11,934,049

Import and export related fees 451,439 41,845,080 367,868 31,198,363

Other fees (110) (11,083) (11) {952)
602,932 55,988,752 508,614 43,131,460

13 Other operating income

Miscellaneous income 391,005 36,401,181 529,967 45,018,624
391,005 36,401,181 520,967 45,018,624

14  Rent, taxes, Insurance, electricity etc.

Rent, rates and taxes 78,667 7,360,485 68,008 5,792,806
Insurance 1,731 163,568 1,543 7,319,806
power and electricity 8,002 749,423 8,029 683,964
WASA and sewerage 769 72,663 918 77.997

89,169 8,355,139 78,498 13,874,663

15 Postage, stamp, telecommunication etc.

Postage and courler 977 88,099 661 56,171
Court fees & stamps 789 74,829 255 21,737
Telephone- Office 3,166 296,107 3,108 264,697

4,032 459,035 4,024 342,605

16 Stationery, printing, advertisement ete.

Stationery and printing 3,368 318,286 1,473 125,394
Security stationary 2,383 221,764 1,309 111,589
Advertisement 3,467 331,429 1,684 144,272

9,218 871,479 4,466 381,255

17 Provisions for loans and advances

For classified loans and advances 1,830,389 178,850,258 0,487,900 810,646,253

For unclassified loans and advances 2,883,633 220,308,571 1,488,429 127,432,811

Provisian for interest receivable 73,288 7,506,680 - -
4,787,320 406,665,510 10,976,329 938,079,064

18 Pravision for tax

Offshare Banking Unit (OBU) is an integral business unit of the Bank. The income from OBU Is Included in the separate financial statement
of the Bank and tax has been provided on total income of the Bank including income from OBU. Hence provision for tax has not been
calculated for 08U portion separately.
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Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co

Chartered Accountants

To whom it may concern

This is to certify that as detailed in the Annexure-l, BRAC Bank Limited made the custodian transactions on
account of custodian services provided during the year ended 31 December 2022, which have been verified with
the books of account, invoices and other related documents as produced to us for our verification.

We also certify that management of the Bank prepared and fairly presented of the income and expenses in
accordance with the requirement of the Securities and Exchange Commission (Securities Custodian Service)
Rules 2003, and made necessary disclosures in the Bank’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2022.
Sabbir Ahmed FCA, Partner
Enrolment No: 770
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Dhaka, 11 April 2023 Chartered Accountants

==

bubur Rahman FCS Masud Rana FC~ Tanzim Alamgir
Secretary DMD & Chief Financm‘- Officet Managing Dire clof & QEO
BRAC Bank Limited BRAC Bank Limited ucB Investment Limited

National Office: BTMC Bhaban (6% & 70 Eloor), 7-9 Karwan Bazar Commercial Area, Dhaka- 121 5,Bangladesh
Chattogram Office: Delwar Bhaban (4th Floor), 104 Agrabad Commercial Area, Chattogram-4100, Bangladesh



BRAG Bank Limited
Custodian Service
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Annexure - |

2022 2021

Particulars Sala Tt
Operating Income
Commission, exchange and brokerage 21,789,916 20,405,215
Total operating income 21,789,916 20,405,215
Operating expenses
Salaries and allowances 2,780,388 2,805,181
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity ete. 960,135 963,510
Postage, stamps, telecommunication etc. 149,391 121,790
Stationery, printing, advertisement etc. 924 909,363
Depreciation on and repairs to bank's assets 258,547 1,220,677
Other expenses 148,164 9,800,386
Total operating expenses 4,297,549 15,820,907
Operating profit 17,492,367 4,584,308

{'-,': Q; r /
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P BRAC BANK

13. FINANCIAL RATIOS FOR THE LAST 5 ACCOUNTING YEARS

(2018-2022)

Ratios (Solo)

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

Current Ratio N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Quick Ratio N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Breakeven Point N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
ngt-Eqmty Ratio Before Bond Issue 837 284 6.98 6.65 8.05
(times)
Ds?ht-Eqmty Ratio After Bond Issue N/A N/A N/A N/A 8.17
(times)
Debt-Total Assets (times) 0.84 0.83 0.82 0.81 0.83
Accounts Receivable Turnover Ratio N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Gross Profit Margin % 62 59 60 75 67 |
Operating Income % 6.45 6.25 5.31 552 5.25
Net Profit Margin % 18 16 13 18 14
Return On Assets (ROA) % 1.87 1.64 1.19 1.31 1.14
Return On Equitg.!r (ROE) % J 19.25 15.60 10.69 11.00 10.22
Earnings Per Share (EPS) in BDT | 450 4.26 3.26 3.71 3.85
Net Asset Value (NAV) Per ShareinBDT | 25.65 | 29.35 | 33.38 | 36.36 39.02 |

' Cost of Fund % 6.75 7.04 6.41 4.49 483 |
Cost Income Ratio % 54 53 58 53 58
Capital Adequacy Ratio / CRAR % 1367 | 1507 | 1455 | 1436 | 14.04

_ Non-Performing Loan Ratio (NPL) % 3.10 399 | 293 3.90 5 |

| TatatDeb &6 Tangible Assay Rtk 8294 | 9711 | 130.79 | 172.66 | 204.30

l (times) | |

‘ Nt.at Operating Cash Flow to Net Income 0.67 4.02 410 021 434
(times) .

| ADRatio % 82.8 gzl | 767 819 [ 799 |

N —,1_ K_

M fflahbubur Rahman FCS
Co y Secretary
BRAC Bank Limited ARA(
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14. CREDIT RATING SUMMARY

Credit Rating Status of BBL 2" Subordinated Bond

Date of Declaration

Valid Till
December 13,
June 14, 2023 5023 | |

Credit Rating Agency: Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh (CRAB)

Long Term Rating Short Term Rating Outlook

Stable J

Qutlook

Credit Rating Status of BBL

Date of Declaration Valid Till
April 30, 2023 June 30, 2024
i Credit Rating Agency: Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh (CRAB)

Long Term Rating  Short Term Rating

CRAB has assigned “AA: (o) (pronounced Double A one hybrid) rating in the long term to BRAC
Bank's issue of 2™ Subordinated Bond (upto BDT 7,000 million), in line with CRAB's standard
notching practices. The rating outlook is stable, reflecting the outlook on the Issuer. The rating
of the Bond includes “Hyb" as the subordinated bond has been structured for Tier-1l own fund
eligibility according to Bangladesh Bank regulation, thus combines both debt and equity
characteristics. The rating outlook is stable, reflecting the outlook of the issuer.

CRAB performed the rating based on audited financial statements as of December 31%, 2022,
unaudited financial statements as of March 315, 2023 and other relevant information up to the
date of rating declaration. The proposed BDT 7,000 million bond will be issued to strengthen
BBL's capital base (Tier Il Regulatory Capital Raising) in line with the Basel 11l framework. The
redemption of principal of the Bonds will be started from third year and final maturity of the
Bond will be at the end of seventh year from the issue date.

The bond rating reflects the Issuer's (BRAC Bank) strength in strong brand value, its ownership
structure as well as strong tier-I capital. The bank also has sound liquidity with good funding
profile and relatively low large loan concentration on the back of its SME focused business
model. BRAC Bank also continuously maintains substantial additional provision for loans against
regulatory requirement as a cushion. The Bank's robust network of branches & alternative
delivery channels are also considered while assigning the rating. On the other hand, BRAC Bank's
relatively higher cost to income ratio and 3.7% Non-Performing Loan (NPL) ratio are a subject of
concern.

Tanzim Alamgir
Managing Director & CEO
UCE Investment Limited

M Masud Rana‘Fcp\ |
DMD & Chief Financial Officer

BRAC Bank Limited

ubur Rahman FCS
Cokapany Secrele'try
sRAC Bank Limited

Strictly Private & Confidential

Page | 223



CRAB Ratings' Default Study 2022

Rating Category 1 Year Default Rate

% BRAC BANK
15. LATEST DEFAULT STUDY & TRANSITION MATRIX

3 Year Cumulative Default Rate (CDR)

0.00% 0.00%
AA 0.00% 0.00%
A 0.00% 0.00%
BBB 0.00% 0.00%
BB 0.00% 0.00%
B 0.00% 0.00%
ccc 0.00% 0.00%
CRAB Ratings' Transition Matrix 2022

; ; AAA AA A BBB BB B ccc

AAA 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% | 0.00%

AA 1.51% 97.73% 0.76% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% | 0.00%

A 0.00% 4.23% 93.46% 2.31% 0.00% 0.00% | 0.00%

. BBB 0.00% | 0.00% | 5.80% | 9420% | 0.0% | 0.00% | 0.00%

BB 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 32.86% _64.28%. 2.86% | 0.00%

B 0.00% | 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% |
ccc 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% |
) (WY
Tanzim Alamagir
M Masud Rana Fca Managing Director & CEO
MM buﬁur Rahman FCS DMD & Chief Financial Officer UCB Investment Limited

Company Secretary BRAG Bank Limited
BRAC Bank Limited
Strictly Private & Confidential
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BRAC BANK
16. DESCRIPTION OF TRUSTEE

UCB Investment Ltd (UCBIL) is a fully owned subsidiary of United Commercial Bank Limited —one
of the leading private commercial banks in Bangladesh. It was incorporated in Bangladesh with
the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms (RISCF), vide registration number: C-94654/11
dated 3rd August 2011 as a private limited company under the Companies Act (Act XVIII) of 1994.
It obtained full-fledged Merchant Banker & Portfolio Management license (Reg No: MB97/2020)
from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) on 5th October 2020.

The company has been inaugurated on 29th November 2020, and Mr. Tanzim Alamgir is
appointed as the founding Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the company. The
company aims to play a vital role in bridging the gap in professional financial management
services in the country and the gap between investors and investment opportunities. The
registered address of the company is Bulus Center, Road: 34, Plot: CWS- (A)-1, Gulshan Avenue,
Dhaka-1212.

With its group of versatile financial consultants, UCBIL covers all investment banking services
including Corporate Advisory, Fixed Income Securities, Syndicate Loans, IPO Management,
Portfolio Management, and many more. The entity aims at delivering top-class, customized
investment solutions to its clients to cater to their specific needs and be their long-term growth
partner.

Board of Directors Status in Board
Mr. Nabil Mustafizur Rahman Chairman
Mr. Touhid Shipar Rafiquzzaman Independent Director
Mr. Md. Shah Alam Bhuiyan Director, representative of UCB
Mr. Md. Abdullah Al Mamoon Director, representative of UCB
Mr. Alamgir Kabir _ | Director, representative of UCB
| Mr. Tanzim Alamgir _ | Managing Director & CEO =
Shareholders % of Share Holdings No. of Shares
United Commercial Bank Limited 99.999999% 99,999,999
| Mohammed Habibur Rahman 0.000001% 1 ]

Tanzim Alamgif

Managing Director & CEO

M Masud Rana FCh UCB Investment Limited

DMD & Chmmeancial Officer
ny Secretary BRAC Bank Limited

Com

BRAE ﬁﬁ%&?ﬁe&mﬁden tial
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2 BRAC BANK

Latest
Value Repayment outstandin
Mape of the Tenure ofdebt amount/Principal amount (asg Default Remarks
issue e =
{million) Redemption of May,
2023)
NRBC Bank
1 | Subordinated 07 years 3,000 - 3,000 Nil -
Bond-1 |
2 g:::eﬁ‘:l gong | PerPetual | 5,000 : 5,000 NiL |-
3 | r:r':::::leaian':jk perpetual | 5,000 : 5,000 Nil .
4 |MirAkhterZero | 4 yoqrg | 2,499 ; 2,499 Nil :
| Coupon Bond ) Ll
Envoy Textiles
5 | Zero Coupon 05 Years 2,000 - 2,000 Nil :
Bond
3rd
6 g‘;?“;r:;';a;‘;uu 07 years | 5,000 ; 5,000 Nil -
Crore
MTB 5th
7 | Subordinated 07 years 5,000 - 5,000 Nil -
_ Bond
‘ ICB 1st .
8 | Mudaraba 10 years | 10,000 - 10,000 Nil -
.| sukuk | | | |

\

Tanzim Alamgif
Managing Director & CEO
UCB Investment Limited

' M Masud Rana Fca
M Mahjubur Rahman FCS DMD & Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary BRAC Bank Limited i
BRAC Bank Limited YL ——
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P BRAC BANK
17. MODUS OPERANDI OF THE ISSUE

Application Procedure

Upon receiving the Consent Letter, the Information Memorandum shall be published by the
lssuer on its official website, within the timeframes specified in the Consent Letter; provided
further that a notice regarding the publication of Information Memorandum in the website
mentioning web-addresses shall be circulated in at least one Bangla and one English language
national daily newspaper. The approved Information Memorandum shall be made available in
the website of the Issuer until the final date for subscription of the Bonds. The Bonds thereafter
shall be distributed 100% through private placement on a best effort basis. Each Investor
(Bondholder) shall enter into a separate Subscription Agreement with respect to their
investment with the Issuer and shall be bound by the terms and conditions contained in the
Subscription Agreement and the Trust Deed containing in details the rights and obligations of
the Investor(s).

The Issuance of Bond

Notwithstanding anything contained anywhere in this Trust Deed, the Bonds shall be issued in
dematerialized form as per the CDBL Bye Laws and the Issuer shall apply to the respective stock
exchange(s) for listing in the Alternative Trading Board (ATB) immediately from the date of
availing ATB facilities under the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Alternative
Trading System) Rules, 2019 and respective regulations of the stock exchange(s) in this regard.

The Bond shall be rated by the Credit Rating Agency and its periodical surveillance rating shall
be done by the Credit Rating Agency in line with the provisions of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission, (Credit Rating Companies) Rules, 2022 up to the full and final
redemption or conversion of the issued securities.

Allotment

On the Closing Date, to be determined, the Issuer shall allot and issue the Bonds to the
Investor(s). The Bonds will be allotted according to the Rules.

Refund

Not applicable at the time of Issuance. However, subject to receiving proper consent from the
regulatory authorities Refund in relation to the subscription may be possible upon mutual
agreement between the Issuer and each Bondholder.

Transfer
Bonds are transferable subject to the Terms and Conditions set out in the Trust Deed.
Repayment and Coupon Payment

The Coupon generated on the Bonds shall be paid semi-annf]ally beginning at the end of __
months from drawdown dates. The Conpon Payment Dates shall be determined depending upon

/
“nbubur Rahman FCS
pany Secretary M M&Sud Rana Foa
BRAC Bank Limited DMD & Chief Financial Officer

strictly Private & ConfidentigPRAC Bank Limited

L.
Mg%%ujiﬂf\lamgir
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the Issue Date. Unless previously redeemed or purchased or cancelled, the principal of the Bonds
will amortize, and paid annually on a pro rata basis to the Bondholders in instalments of 20%
per year in 5 annual tranches commencing at the end of 36th, 48th, 60", 72" and 84" month
respectively from the date of drawdown. The final maturity of the Bonds will at the end of
seventh year from the Issue Date of the Bonds.

Repayment and Redemption features of the Bond

The Coupon generated on the Bonds shall be paid semi-annually beginning at the end of __
months from drawdown dates. The Coupon Payment Dates shall be determined depending upon
the Issue Date. Unless previously redeemed or purchased or cancelled, the principal of the Bonds
will amortize, and paid annually on a pro rata basis to the Bondholders in instalments of 20%
per year in 5 annual tranches commencing at the end of 36th, 48th, 60th, 72nd and 84th month
respectively from the date of drawdown. The final maturity of the Bonds will at the end of
seventh year from the Issue Date of the Bonds.

Trading or Listing with the Stock Exchange

The Issuer shall apply to the respective stock exchange(s) for listing in the Alternative Trading
Board (ATB) immediately from the date of availing ATB facilities under the Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (Alternative Trading System) Rules, 2019 and respective
regulations of the stock exchange(s) in this regard, and comply with the regulatory requirements
and guidelines relating to listing circulated from time to time.

REDEMPTION FEATURES

Each Bond shall be redeemed in accordance with Condition 8 of the Trust Deed (Redemption,
Repurchase and Cancellation).

Details of Conversion or Exchange Option

Not Applicable.

=1 4
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO
UCR Investment Limited
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% BRAC BANK

Non-Requlatory Fees 27945000
| Arranger Fee X 0.30% of Capital Raised 21,000,000
Pega1 Fee (Total) 150,000 one time 150,000
Credit Rating Fee (Total) 150,000 per year 1,050,000
| Annual Trustee Fee (Total) 300,000 per year 2,100,000
Non-Regulatory Fee 27,945,000
VAT on Non-Regulatory Fee 15% 3,645,000
Incidental Expense 1,000,000
Regulatory Fees 12,172,000
BSEC Application Fee At Actual 10,000
BSEC Consent Fee 0.10% of Capital Raised 7,000,000
BSEC Trustee Application Fee At Actual 50,000
BSEC Trustee Registration Fee At Actual 100,000
BSEC Annual Trustee Fee (Total) 50,000 per year 350,000
Trust Deed Stamp Duty At Actual 1,100,000
| CDBL Fee At Actual 1,050,000
CDBL Security Deposit At Actual 500,000
CDBL Annual Fee (Total) 26,000 per year 182,000 |
ATB Listing Fee _ At Actual 500,000
ATB Annual Listing Fee (Total) 190,000 per year 1,330,000
Total - 41,117,000
% Of Amount Raised 0.59%
Annualized Cost 0.05%

% 0507 o roied emout or

u - A
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